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PZ Cussons is an international consumer products
group. We develop leading brands in selected
mature and emerging markets that have potential
for future growth. World class supply chain and
distribution networks in Africa, Asia and Europe
enable us to deliver our brands quickly and
efficiently to local consumers.

Mission

We are an entrepreneurial, international company,
enhancing lives of consumers, with quality, value
and innovation.

Vision
- We are a profitable, growing
and dynamic company
— We are passionate about our leading brands
— We drive iInnovation in everything we do
— We have fantastic CAN DO people
-~ We are proud of our unigue culture
that binds us together
- We do well, we do good and we have fun!
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Group

Revenue growth of 4 7% despite
challenging trading condimons
durning the year particularly

in Nigena and Australia

Profits impacted by high raw
material costs, a worsening
trading environment in

the Australian Home Care
category, and the social and
economic tensions 1n Nigena
Major launch in the UK post
penod end of Cussons Mum &
Me anew brand of Personal Care
products specifically designed
for mothers and babies
Extension of the Beauty

division portfolio with the
acquisition of the Fudge hair-
care brand in January 2012
Supply chain optimisation project
under way to significantly reduce
the overhead footprint of the
Group's manufacturing activities
Healthy balance sheet with

only a small net debt position

at the end of the year

Total dvidend increased 1 6%
year on year reflecting the strong
batance sheet and the Board's
confidence in the future

Financial highlights 2012

Reported rasults (betore exceptional items')
Revenue

Operating profit
Profit before tax
Adjusted basic earmings per share

Statutory results

Operatng profit

Profit before tax

Basic earmings per share
Total dividend per share
Net {debt}/funds?

1

Africa

= Overall Increase in revenue of
6 8% reflecting a strong first
half but a second half affected
by the social unrest in the north
of Nigenia and the impact from
the fuel duty subsidy reduction

— Profits lower as a result of
the above as well as higher
raw material costs

= Construction of the palm
oll refinery with Wilmar on
track for completion by the
end of the calendar year

Asia

= Continued positive momentum in
Indonesia, with revenue and profit
frorn the market leading Cussons
Baby range ahead of the pnor year

= Qverall Asian revenue and profits
lower due to the challenging
trading conditions in the
Australian Home Care category

Europe

~ Robust performance in the UK
Washing and Bathing division
driven by brand innovation
and renovation despite
competitive trading conditions
— Strong performance in the Beauty
division with significant new
product launches across the
portfoiio of Sanctuary, St Tropez,
Charles Worthington and Fudge
= Strong trading in Peland
across both Home Care
and Personal Wash

Year ended Year ended
31 May 2012 31 May 201 % change
£858 9Im £820 7m 4 7%
£93 4m £108 1m (13 6%)
£92 3m £108 9m (15 29%)
14 74p 16 20p {9 0%)
£49 6m £107 3m (53 8%)
£48 5m £108 1Tm (55 1%}
803p 16 48p {51 3%)
6717p 661p 16%

(€17 9m} £618m

Excepuional tems totalling £43 8 rmillion before tax are detallecinnote 3
2 Net{debt)/funds abova and hereafter 1s defined as cash short-term deposits and current asset

investments less barrowings (zefer to note 18}
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Chairman’s
statement

The Group delivered revenue growth despite challenging
trading conditions Profits were lower with a robust
performance in the UK, strong trading in the Beauty
division and positive momentum in Indonesia, more
than offset by specific market challenges in Nigeria and
Australia, and the impact of the largest year-on-year
Increase in raw material costs we have expenenced

Despite the external challenges the Group remains committed 1o
driving profitable growth through brand renovation and innavation
and through further cost reduction During the year underlymg
revenue growth continued across the business particularly in

the UK inthe Beauty divisionand in Indonesia As we start the
current financial year this momentum together with our new
Cussons Murn & Me and Fudge ranges will help to ensure this
growth continues

Qur exciting josnt venture with Wilmaris on track with the
Nigenan palm ol refinery due to be completed by the end of
the calendar year

At the same time we are working actively to reduce our cost
base and the supply chain optimisation project announced in
March will sigruficantly reduce the overhead base of our
manufactunng actvities

Our balance sheet remains strong with only a small net debt
positicn and this gives us the capacity to pursue further
investment opporiunities which fit our strategic aims

Clearly the world remains uncertan and volatile However
consumer demand for high quality innovative products serving
day to day needs continues and we are well placed to serve

PZ Cussons Ple
Annual Report & Accounts 2012

those needs with a strong distnibution footprintin key geographic
markets Whilst the situatien in the Group s impartant Nigernian
market remains fragile we are confident that the Group will
return to profitable growth i the current financial year Overall
performance since the year-end has Deen in line with expectations

Derek Lewis who has served the Board as a Non-executive
Director since 2004 has indicated his intentien to ratire with
effect fromthe 2012 Annual General Meeting on 19 September
The Beard would like to thank him for fus significant contnbution
to PZ Cussons over the past eight years Following Mr Lewis
retirement James Steel aNon-executive Director since 2005
will be appointed Senior Independent Director in his place

I would hike to take this opportunity to thank all of the Group s
staff for thewr continued hard work and dedication Their skill and
commitment will be essential n maintaining our pregress and

15 highly appreciated both by me and by the Board of Directors

Richard Harvey
Non-executrve Chairman
24 July 2012




CANDO
people

As one of our strategic pillars, our team of over 7,000
CAN DO people embodies the core values that are firmly
embedded in our culture and are integral to our success
It 1s this CAN DO culture that we believe is the unifying
strength that binds together our diverse businesses

around the world.

We work with people who share our unique CAN DO values Qur
CAN DO culture 1s the umifying strength that binds together our
diverse businesses around the world We are responsible,
demanding and have a sense of fun

Our CAN DO values are

Courage

Wa challenge convention ourselves and each other We have
the strength willingness and determination to initiate make
things happen and to carry them through

Accountability

We are ali champions of our company We take personal
responsibility for achieving our objectives We do what we say
we shall do We dowhat is nght not merely what 1s expected

We actwith openness mtegrity and trust We ask for help,
adrut 1o our mistakes and put things nght

Networking

We are one company across all functions and geographies
We work towards a commaon goal through co-operation
and teamwork

Dnive

We are relentless in our pursuit of success Together we
approach each day with the energy passion and persistence
10 exceed expectations

Oneness

We are all PZ Cussons people We treat each other with
respect regardless of status We act professtonally and
together we celebrate our success with understated pride
We are quiet achievers

PZ Cussons Plc
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Ata
glance

The Group’s portfolio of categories
across a range of developed and
developing markets forms the
platform for our future growth

PZ Cussons Plc
Annual Report & Accounts 2012

Africa

Afnca remains the Group s largest regionand in Nigerta Africa s
most populous country (Circa 160 million peaple) and our biggest
single market we continue 1o operate m four categories Personal
Care Home Care Electrnicals and Food and Nutrition

The Personal Care and Home Care businesses have established
local brands with ongoing renovation programmes feading to
continued maintenance and growth of our market-share The
Electncals business leads the core refnigerator and freezer market
Within the Foed and Nutrition category we have two joint
ventures Nutricima (with Glanbia Plc) operating predormmantly

i the nutntional beverage sector and PZWilmar (with Wilmar
International Lirmited) that will operate in the branded ctls and
spreads market and will also refine crude palm oil once the plant
1s commissioned at the end of the calendar year

In Ghana and Kenya our established businesses and brands are
well placed to benefit from antcipated future growth in these
countres and the wider region

Revenue (2011 £3391m)
£362.2m
Home Care Personal Care Electncal Goods  Food and
Nutriuon




Asia

The Asian markets in which we operate provide a naturally
balanced geographic portfolio contaning both mature and
emerging markets with excellent opporturity for growth

Indonesia s the fourth most populous country in the world with
a population of circa 240 million currently growing at a rate of
around 2% per annum The economy Is the largest in South East
Asta with GDP growth rates of around 6% and consistent growth
in GDP per capita over the last decade Our Cussons Baby brand
1s the market leader and our distnbuton network also enabtes
our other Personal Care brands io be delivered to consumers
throughout the regiton  Australia represents a more mature market
where we have leading positions in the Home Care category
through our dish and fabric care products Our businesses 11t
Thatland and the Middle East are smaller and less well established
but have good growth potential

Revenue (2011 £176 1m)
£158.8m
Baby Care Personal Care Homa Care

Europe

Our business in Europe compnses a broad range of categornes
and markets Personal Wash in the UK s serviced by our Personal
Wash Centre of Excellence facilities in Manchester and focuses aon
the impenal Leather Carex and Onginal Source brands Poland's
growth is generated by the core Home Care business and also by
replicating the innovation from the UK Personal Wash category
The Food and Nutrition category is represented in Greece by
Mimerva and associated brands Productinnovation is key to
matntaining the leading positions within these markets and this
year has seen the development (and June 2012 launch) of the
Mum & Me range of products and the launch of Carex Protect-
Plus 1n the UK

This has been the first full year of the Beauty division based
inLondon The Beauty division markets and sells Sanctuary

St Tropez Charles Worthington and newly acquired Fudge and
will maxirmnse the internauonal and cross selling potenual of
these brands

Revenue {2011 £305 5m)

£337.9m

Personal Care Food and Beauty Homa Care
Nutsntion

PZ Cussons Ple
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Strategic
pillars

In order to achieve our vision our
business model is based on our four
strategic pillars

Selected categories

We operate in selected categories where our brands have a
strategic advantage and offer profitable growth opportunities

We succeed through understanding local consumer needs being
first to market and being unconstrained by big company
bureaucracy Faster and continucus innovation will ensure our
brands occupy leading positions in these categones

Progress and priorities

The Group has this year consolidated all of its Beauty businesses
into one glebal division Thes 1s a strategic move designed to
maximise the potential both in the UK and internationally of our
portiolio of premium beauty brands The Beauty range has been
extended through the Fudge brand acquisition {see page 17} The
Washing and Bathing division wathin the UK has delivered ropust
performance in a tough market through conunued renovation of
existing brands (see page 15} The launch of Mum & Me (see page
15} demonstrates our product and range innovaton Prioriues
nextyear are to promote and extend the new brand ranges and
continue the renovation process across the rest of the porifolio

P2 Cussons Ple
Annual Report & Accounts 2012

Selected geographies

Wa operate in specific geographies through our own infrastructure
orin parinership In these geographies we tallor our channel
approach for each category

Progress and priorities

We have grown our revenue this year through expansion in our
core geographies and penetration into newer territories The main
core geographic highlights of this year are the conttnued growth
of Cussons Baby in Indonesia (see page i3) the robust UK
performance and the continued development of the Food and
Nutrition edible oits joint venture with PZ Wilmar (see page 11}

We have also conunued 1o share category Innovation across
geographies dnven by our UK Washing and Bathing division and
our UK Personal Wash centre of excellence MNewer terntories have
been progressed mainly through the growth of the Beauty division
in the United States with St Tropez (see page 16) Priorities next
year wiil be to continue te expand in our existing geographies
through our core brands to continue to share category best
practice and nnovatien across geographies and further global
expansion of the Beauty division




Flexible supply chain

We operate an ever evolving supply chan designed to service
our categones We deliver innovative producis 1o our customers
from various sources quickly and efficiently Our supply chain
significantly contributes to Group profitabitity

Progress and priorities

Due to nsing raw material costs and wage iflation in emerging
markets the Group has inibiated a supply chain optmisation
project to ensure that ts supply chain cost base remains
competiuve The project will result in a reduction in the overhead
footpnnt of the Group s manufacturing activives (see page 9) The
current year has also seen continued investment in the expansion
of the edible cils joint venture with PZ Wilmar (see page 11} and
improvements in the supply chain in Indonesia where PZ Cussons
distributes to over 10 000 1slands 150 008 tradhtronal retaiters and
750 independent supermarkets

CAN DO people

We work with people who share our uigue CAN DO values Qur
CAN DO culture 1s the unifying strength that binds together cur
diverse businesses around the world We are responsible
demanding and have a sense of fun!

Progress and priorities

Qur CAN DO people continue to hive our core values This year our
employees in Thalland showed incredible courage and adaptability
throughout the flooding in October and enabled our operations to
continue in this very difficult peniod Further highlights include the
Mum & Me development team delivering from first concept to
launch within 14 months {sea page 15) the Indonesian Baby/Kids
range teams continuing to grow market share revenue and
profitabilty {see page 13} and the Beauty division producing a
strong performance through the integration of four brand cultures
teams systems and operations {see page 16} We will continue

to develop the enablers to allow our peopte to further embody
our CAN DO values

PZ Cussons Plc
Annual Report & Accounts 2012
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Financial
review

The Drirectors present the Group’s annual
report and audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 May 2012.

This year's highlights at a glance

Revenue up 4 7% to £858 9 million (2011 £8207 million)

Raw matenat costs, worsening trading environment in the
Australian Horme Care category and the social and economic
tensions in Nigeria decreased profit before tax and exceptional
items by 15 2% to £92 3 million (2011 £108 9 million)
Earnings per share fell by 90% to 14 74p (2011 16 20p)

Net debt of £179 million (2011 net funds of £51 8 mullion)
Exceptional costs of £43 8 millon were incurred

(2011 £0 8 millon} mainly in relation to a supply chain
optirmisation project, Beauty division’s acquisition and
integration costs, and a fullimpairment of the Australian

Tnx brand

P2 Cussons Ple
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Financial performance - overview

The Group delivered revenue growth of 4 7% for the year despite
challenging trading conditions in a number of markets Profits before
tax and exceptional items were 15 2% lower than the previous year
reflecting a robust performance in the UK strong trading in the
Beauty division and positive momentum in Indonesia more than
offset by the impact of three factors approximately £25 million of
increased costs from the significant year-on-year raw matenal cost
inflation a worsening ervironment in the Australian Home Care
category and the social and economic tensions in Nigeria

In Africa revenue growthin Nigeria was strong during the first haif
of the financial year but then affected by the soctal unrestin the
north and the impact of the partial removal of the fuel duty subsidy
in January Raw material costincreases dented margins in the first
half although these began to improve dunng the second half as a
result of price Increases and margin improvement inttiatives

In Asia, continued pesitive momentum delivered anather year of
revenue and profit growth in Indonesia although this was more
than offset by lower results in Austraha as well as tough trading
conditigns in Thailand and the Middte East

In Europe continued brand innovation and rengvation contnbuted
to a robust performance from the UK Washing and Bathing
division despite competitive trading conditions The Beauty
division delivered a strong performance in its first full year as a
separate entity as well as completing the acguisition of Fudge in
January Trading in Poland has been strong across both Home
Care and Personal Care whilst profitability in Greece ts lower as
aresult of the domestic econgmic situation although the results
are immatenal to the Group as a whole

The overallimpact of exchange rate movements in the year
resulted in a decrease in Group revenue and profitability of circa
£16 million and £2 million respectively

Financial position — overview

The Group s balance sheet remains strong with a net debt position
of £17 9 mullion at the year end despite higher working capital
levels particularly in Migerna

Underlying capital expenditure continues to run at or below normal
depreciation levels Other key cash outflows during the year
included £26 3 millson for the acquisition of Fudge £16 8 million

tor the investment in the Wilmar palrm oil joint venture £15 3 milhon
for contributions o the closed UK final salary schemes including the
de-nsking exercise and £8 B mullion for the purchase of addiional
shares in our Nigenan listed subsidiary

Major projects

Supply cham optirrusation project

As part of the Group s supply chain strategy and following a number
of years of nsing raw material costs together with significant
ongoing wage inflation in emerging markets the Group has been
developing programmes to ensure thatits supply chain cost base
remains at a compettive level

As aresult a major supply chaim optimisation project was inibated
in March and will continue to be implemented over the remainder
of this financral year This will significantly reduce the overhead
footpnnt of the Group s manufactuning activities There are two
companents to the project

First i order to move to a variable cost model forits developed
market Home Care businesses ihe Group s closing its
manuifacturing faciities in Australia with supply being moved

to other Group facilities as well as to third parties and is also
reviewing its manufacturing faciities in Peland

Second the Group intends to reduce the supply chain overhead at
a number of other manufactunng facihties Thisincludes clesing
its manufactunng facikties in Ghana with supply being moved to
third parties as well as to the Group s existing Nigenan faciliues,
in addition ta other gpuimisation prejects in Africa and Asia

The total cash cost of these initratives will be approximately
£19 9 million for redundancy and other associated stems with

payback expected within three years There will be a further
non-cash charge of approximaiely £19 mullion lor asset write
downs These have been treated as excepuonal charges with
£27 5 million charged in tha year to 31 May 2012 and the balance
falling in the next financial year

The benefits of this project will begin 1o be seenn the current
financial year through lower supply chain overheads the
ritigation of the impact of further wage inflation and the
avoidance of the high capital maintenance cost that would have
been associated with any closed orrestructured facilities

Exceptional tems

A net exceptional charge of £43 8 million belore tax was recorded
during the year (2011 £0 8 million} The exceptional charge relates
10 the net effect of the cost of the supply chain optimisation
project (£27 5 milhion) the Beauty division s acquisition and
integration costs (E6 3 million} the fulbimpairment of one of our
Australian Home Care brands (£9 7 milion) and the pension
scheme de-nsking charge (E0 3 milkon)

Of the exceptional charge of £43 8 million €177 rnillien refates to
cash and £26 1 million relates to non-cash items The majonity of the
cash items wilt impact cash flow nthe 12 months to 31 May 2013

Taxation

The effective tax rate before excepuonal tems was 27 0%
{2011 27 8%} and s lower principally due to decreased UK
corporation tax rates

Dmdend

The Company aims Lo pay an attractive sustainable and growing
dwidend The Board 1s recommending a maintained final dividend
of 4 487p (2011 4 4B7p) per share making a total of 6 717p

{2011 6 61p) per share for the year a 1 6% increase and the 39th
successive year of dividend increases The overall dwadend
remains sorme 2 2 tirmes covered by earnings per share before
exceptionat tems Subject to approval at the AGM the final
dividend will be patd on 1 Qctober 2012 to shareholders on the
regtster at the close of business on 17 August 2012

Pensions

The Group s three closed UK defined benefit schemes had a
surplus position at 31 May 2012 of £8 9 milion {2011 surplus of
£2 8 million) The Group has continued 1its de-nisking strategy
resulting tn an exceptional charge before tax of £0 3 mitlon
{2011 £2 4 milhon} Furiher detalls are provided tn note 23

Qutlook

Across the Group the facus remains on driving profitable growth
through brand innovation and renovation and through tmproving
margins via further cost reducticn intiatives The major supply
chain optrrisation project announced in March 1S on track 10
significantly reduce the overhead footpnint of the Group s
manufactunng activiies and the benefits will be seenn the
current fmancial year

Whilst input costs have shown signs of short-term easing they
remain volatile and In some cases close to therr highest levels

The balance sheet remains strong with only a small net debt
positton and ihe Group s well placed to pursue further growth
opportunities which fitits strategic ams

Last year s underlying revenue growth across the business
partucularly in the UK in the Beauty dmision and in Indonesia
together with the new Cussons Mum & Me and Fudge ranges
have provided encouraging mementurn 1n1o the current financal
year As aresult overall performance since the year-end has
been In line with expectations

Clearty the world remains uncertain and volatle However
cansumer demand for high quality innovative products serving
day-to-day needs continues and we are well placed to serve
those needs with a strong distribution footprintin key geographic
markets Whilst the situation in the Group s important Nigenan
market remains fragile the Board 1s conftdent of a return 1o

profitable growth in the current financial year
PZ Cussons Flc
Annual Report & Accounts 2012
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Business
review

Africa

Regional highlights

- Overallincreose in revenue of 6 8% reflecting o strong first half but @
second half affected by the social unrest inthe north of Nigena and the
impact from the fuel duty subsidy reduction

~ Profits lower as a result of the above as well as higher raw matenal costs

— Construction of the palm ol refinery with Wilmar on track for completion

by the end of the calendar year

Key brands

P2 Cussons Plc
Annuzl Report & Accounts 2012

Revenues have continued to increase this year
despite sociat unrest in the north of Nigeria and
the impact from the fuel duty subsidy reduction.

Product innovations

Robb

Robb one of Africas
leading brands in the
medicaments category
had a number of
mitiatives to sustain
market leadership

and enter new
subcategones Robb
Super Intense was
relaunched as Hot Robb
with new packaging
and a campaign with
Nigena s feothall
Premier League In
addition Robb Menthol
sweets were launched
nto the market giving
Robb access to the
soothing throat drops
segment

Canoe

To consolidate Its
positign as a leading
laundry care brand
Canoe known for its
laundry soap launched
Canoe detergent Into
the fabric care market
at a premium to our Zip
detergent brand Thss
introduction has the
objective to increase
our share of branded
detergents with a
premium offering to
meet consumer fabrnc
care needs




PZ Wilmar progress

As announced mthe last financial year expansicen of aur
presence in the Food and Nutrniuion category in Nigerna
through our food ingredients joint venture (PZ Wilmar) with
Singapore based Wilmar International Limited s progressing
Qver the course of the year PZ Witmar has made excellent
progress in 1ts development of a range of ol based branded
food products Central to PZ Wilmar s strategy 1s the
construction of a palm ol refinery in Nigeria in which our
investment to date s £18 milion Work on the refinery 15
proceeding well and in ing with the expected timeframe
to completion within two years Comrmussioning of the
refinery and launch of the range of branded food products
are both anticipated in the forthcoming financial year

£18m

total cumulative PZ
investmeant o date
into PZ Wilmar

In Nigeria revenue growth was strong during the first half of

the financial year underpinned by a stable economic and political
environment following the presidential elections in Apnl 2011
Curing the second half of the year trading was significantly
affected by two key 1ssues First social instability in the north
resulted in lower sales In those areas with trade affected by

local disruption and unceriainty Second the partal removal

of the fuel duty subsidy in January led to a week-long nationat
strike which adversely affected sales and costs duning the pencd
Whilss half of the fuel subsidy was subsequently reinstated
consumer disposable income has been affected by a doubling

of fuel costs resulting in lower levels of demand Despite the
ongoing disruption in the north the economic outlook for the
country remains encouraging with pesitive GDP growth rates
expecled 1o continue During the year the Narra weakened slightly
against the US Dollar and Sterling accounting for £1 8 mullion of
the Group s exchange loss of £2 muflion

During the year the Group s holding in its listed Nigerian
subsidiary was increased further from 66 8% to 68 8% at a
cost of £8 6 milion

The Group continues to operate in four categories in Nigeria
namely Personal Care Home Care Electrnicals and Food
and Nutntion

In Personal Care and Home Care the fogus has remained on brand
renovation across the portfolio of soaps detergents babycare
and medicaments The significant year-on-year increase in raw
matenal costs adversely affected margins in the first half although
this began to ease during the second half as a result of price
increases and margmn improvement INiLiatives

In Efectrnicals the focus has conitnued to be on the core range of
fndges freezers and arr condttioners sold through the HPZ joint
venture with Haler as well as the range of generators which are
separately imported During the year a further HT Cool World
store was opened taking the number to seven with further stores
planned in the new financial year

Nutricima the Faod and Nutrition joint venture with Glanbia Plc
has seen revenue growth of aimost 20% in the year to £72 million
despite tough trading conditions The brand portfolio has now
been extended to five brands Nunu Coast Bliss Olympic and
Yol with all performing well Continued increases in the cost

of milk and the weaker exchange rate have adversely affected
margins with the Group s share of profit being broadly Hat for
the year at £0 3 million {2011 £0 4 mulon}

Construction of the palm oil refinery with Wilmar 1s on track

with completion due by the end of the calendar year with a new
consumer food ingredients brand to be taunched o coincide with
the start of production in early 2013

Ghana and Kenya have continued to perform well with revenue
and profitability ahead of the pnior year In Ghana the Nutntton and
Electricals porifolios have continued to grow and a further HT Cool
World retail outlet was opened taking the nurnber to four

PZ Cussons Ple
Annual Report & Accounts 2012
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Business review The Indonesian Cussons Baby range has continued to
continued grow whilst the Australian business has faced a
number of challenges.

Product innovations
ASiCI Cussons Kids

The Cussons Kids

range continues 1o

grow in Indonesia after

prior year relaunches

The range has grown

32% year-on-year in a |
previously untapped

market segment and 1S

marketed in Indonesia !
as the trusted follow- |
on range of products '
to the successful

Cussons Baby range

It has rgjuvenated

Its packaging and

product presentation

The characters on the

Cussons Kids portfoho

were developed to

. . . depict child role models
Reglonul h'ghllghts allowing engagement
- Continued positive momentum in Indonesia with revenue and profit with the consumers as

Il as th
from the market leading Cussons Baby range chead of the prior year wellas thewrparenis

- Overaltreveniue and profits lower due to the challenging trading
conditrons in the Australion Home Care category

Radiant Laundry

The Radiant Laundry
range including
detergent powder and
hquid was relaunched in
Austraha Radiant Liguid
unit dose capsules were
the first advanced

liguid formulation
product to be launched
in the Australian

market Deliverng
premium performance
and creating brand
differentiation through
stronger brand clam the
advanced range removes
seven day dned In siains
Further extensions and
a pack size renovation

te the core hquid range
15 planned later this
financial year (0 ensure
brand relevance and
penetration in the fast
growing hquid segment

P2 Cussons Ple
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In Austraba the trading environment in the Home Care category
warsened during the year as retallers devoted greater shelf spacen
store to private label products resulting in branded suppliers having
10 trade with lower volumes and reduced margins Revenuen
Australia declined 27% resulting 1n the business moving from profit
10 loss for the year Measures to address the underperformance
of the Australian business have been under way for some months
and are proving successful with the business moving back into
profitability on a monthly basis towards the end of the iinancial year
These measures included mowing to a vanable cost model via the
closure of the local manufacturing faciity Revenue and profitability
of the Personal Care and Beauty porifolios grew year on year and
these remain the focus growth areas for the future

2%

rgvenue growth
of Cussons Baby
range in 2012

Indonesia Cussons Baby range
Cussons Baby continues to grow significantly in

In Indonesia the positive momentum has continued with another
year of growth in revenue and profitability The market leading
Cussons Baby range has continued to grow through portiolio
improvements and distnibution expansion Cussons Baby has
clearly established itself as the number one brand in its segment
with a marke1 share significantly ahead of its closest competitor
and s well placed to capitalise on the growth in the economy
and a populauocn of circa 240 million people Other brands in the
portfolio namely (mpenal Leather Morning Fresh and Carex
have also performed well

Of our smaller businesses within the Asian segment revenue and
profitability in Thailland were lower than the previous year as a
result of disruption caused by the significant flooding that afiected
the country whilst results in The Middle East were also adversely
affected by social and political unrestin that region

Indonesta after the pnor year relaunch The range has

grown 22% year-on-year sirengthening its market

leading position in the Indonesian baby toilletries
market with producis across five key caiegones

{powder bar soap hquid soap shampoo and cologne}

The rejuvenated portfolio offering more modern
packaging and improved formulations is the trusted

brand of choice and has benefited from a 360° activation

campaign which creates consumer awarengss via
TV campaigns and social media based engagement
between consumers and medical experts

This commercial awareness has been converted
into sales through a committed strong ieam of sales
and promotional stafi Addiuonally the growth s
supporied by a 15 strong network of depots allowing
an effective distribution to the most challenging of
Indonesian geographues reaching both tradiuonal
and modern cutlets to achieve maximum penetration
and speed to market Geographic expansion has
occurred in the Philppines and Vietnam wiath a
roll-out planned inte China Myanmar Pakistan and
Bangladesh during the latter part of this financial year

PZ Cussons Plc
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Business review The Group’s strategy of continuing to renovate and
continued Innovate its brand portfolios has ensured market
shares have continued to iIncrease in Europe.

Product innovations

Europe Impenial Leather

Thrs rmarket leading
brand was refreshad
with new contemporary
graphics in its range

of bar soaps and
innovative Foamburst
shower product The
top-sefling Limited
Editions products across
shower gels and bath
foams continued to offer
consumers sensual
fragrances and luxurious
sken benefits

Regionul high“ghts Onginal Source
The brand was
- RObUSt peFFOFmOT\CE n the UK WCIShlng Ond BGthlr‘lg d|ViS|0n d”ven by relaunched with stronger
brand nnovation and renovation despite competitive trading conditions packaging graphics
- Strong trading m Poland across both Home Care and Personal Wash hard-hitung claims to

further strengthen its
point of difference and
the line-up enhanced by
new seasonal editions

In addition the brand was
launched m Poland into
the leading Rossmann

Key brands drugstere chain

E’ {Poland)

E ourleading Polish
household brand was
rejuvenated this year
with a major relaunch
in detergent powders
with the new E Soft
Water Active Plus range
and new formulation
and packaging in its
fabric conditioner range
Sigrificant market
success was also driven
by the Shinewath £
CONsumer prormoticn
that was a massive hit
with consumers and
trade customers ahke

PZ Cussons Flc
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Carex Protect Plus
Building on s strong consumer and technical expertise

Carex launched a ground breaking new range called
Protect Plus 1n 2013 The new products deliver two-hour
antibactenal protection protecting consumers fram
bactena even after washing There are three hand washes
tailored to different skin types Onginal Sensiive and
Maoistunising for those with dry skin There s also a hand
gel in the range convenient for when onthe go The
launch builds further on the brand s number one leadership
position In handwash and quickly follows tha recent first
to market claim  works in seconds which now appears
on key products in the rest of the Carex range Launched
in the 1980s the brand has a long standing herntage as the
first antibactenal handwash and has continued to drive
category growth through first to market innovation

4 months

from concept 1o
rnarket delivery of
Cussons Mum & Me

The UK Washing and Bathing dwvissan produced a robust

Cussons Mum & Me
Cussons Mum & Mas a Personal Care range with

22 products across three key stages Bump New
Mum and Baby The novel range was developed by
PZ Cussons to guide mums through the journey from
bump to baby addressing the key needs of mums
and babies Sleep Skin and Hair Designed in-housa
In conjunction with both experts and mothers and
accessing the Group s existing expertise 1n babycare
products in Indonesia ihe range was taken from concept
to shelf in 14 months The innovative range features
products that have supenor reassurance inctuding
being hypoallergenic having paediatncian approval
support from strong consumer claims and backing
from climically proven results Cussons Mum & Me
launched into the UK market i June 2012 through a
E6 mullion campaign utiising extensive 360° marketing
via TV press and digital media Addiionally through
Bounty the No 1 UK Parenting Club a targeted sampling
campaign will be executed and over 1 8 million samples
will be distributed wia a hospital maternity department

product placement programme

Post penod end the division announced the launch of animportant
newbrand Cussons Mum&Me arange of personal care products
specifically designed for mothers and batkes The reaction from

performance wath revenue and profitability ahead of the prior year
retailers to the launch has been extremely positive

despite competitive trading conditions in the retallers with high
levels of promotions continuing Whilst consumers remained
cautious with lower disposable income brand innovauon and
renovauen across the portfolio resulted in ancther year of growth Trading :n Poland has been streng with growth in revenue and
impenal Leather remains the largest brand in the portfolro and new  profitabihity across both the Home Care brand E and the
packaging and fragrances were introduced duning the year across Personal Wash portiolio of Luksja Carex and Onginal Source
the portfolio of bar soap bath and shower gel ranges whilsithe
untque Foambpurst shower product continues 1o attract a loyal Profitability in Greece 1s lower than the previous year due to
consumer following Carex has conunued to maintam iis positonas  weak consumer demand as a result of the domestic economic
the UK s leading antibactenal handwash with Carex Protect Plus crisis although the results are immaternial to the Group as a
launched dunng the year with a new technology that kills bactena whole Despite this the focus continues 10 be on growing the
tor up to two hours after use QOngina! Source was the fastest value-added categories of butter cheese and spreads
growing brand in the portfelio with significant new product
launches in the year across shower gel handwash bath mens

and harr ranges

PZ Cussons Ple
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Business review The first year of the Beauty division has seen a strong
continued performance combined with a new brand acquisition
and product innovation across all ranges

Beauty
division

Division highlights

— First year of Beauty dwision has seen strong performance and the
merging of operations

— Fudge brand acquired and integrated

- St Tropez sales in US mare than doubled from prior year

- Significant product innovations including Sanctuary ‘Active Reverse),
St Tropez ‘Dark and Gradual Tan Plus’ and Charles Worthington
‘Salon at Horme'

Key products

PZ Cussons Pl
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Product innovations

Active Reverse

skin products

In June 2012 the Beauty
division launched the
Active Reverse range of
skin care products with
ballet star Darcey Bussell
as brand ambassador
The innovauve chnically
tested formulations
incorperate a six product
range that utdises the
latest peptide technology
to lock moisture and
nourishment deep into
the skin thereby reducing
ines and wrinkles

and improving tone

St Tropez

The St Tropez Self Tan
Brenzing Mousse 1s now
the too skin fimishing
product in the US with
significant category
growth predicted next
year The St Tropez range
has also now started
distripution in ten Latin
American countries In
the UK stranginnovation
through new product
launches such as Dark
and Gradual Tan Plus

are helping maintain

the number one market
position 5t Tropez holds




Business review skincare products called Active Reverse’ with ballet star Darcey
This 1s the first year of the separate Beauty dwision which has seen  Bussell as brand ambassador The Charles Warthington Salon
the merger of four brand cultures teams Systems and operations  at Home range has achieved a step-change for the brand into
The division has performed well bothin the UK and overseas amore premiem differentated offering [nJanuary the dwision
acquired the Fudge har-care brand for £26 3 milion in cash

There has been particularly strong growth from St Tropez in the
United States where revenue increased 2 5 fold 10 €7 5 mullion Fudge s a leading prermium hair-care brand sold predominantly
This has been delivered through distnbution via Sephora US through salon distribution i the UK Australia and New Zealand
launching in over 300 JC Penney Stores and extensive media

Looking to the future the division s planning to extend its

coverage including QVC St Tropez has alsc seen a number of
significant new product launches including a dark tan preduct
which 15 proving io be extremely peputar An exciting development
for Sanctuary was the launch during the year of a new range of

geographical footpnnt further and sell a wider range of products
wiathin 1ts existing geographies

£ 26 ° 3 m Fudge brand acquisition
The Fudge hair-care brand was purchased from the Australian-based

nvestment in Fudge Sabre Group in January 2012 for £26 3 millon Estabhshed in 1991 Fudge
hair-care brand 1s & Yeading prem:um hair-care brand sold predominantly through salon
distnibution in the UK, Australia and New Zealand It1s best known for its styling
products including the popular Har Shaper product although the large array of
products includes two styling ranges extreme colour ranges, a har-care range
and a professional salon support range The brand s revenue contribution in
2012 for the four months since acquisiton was E5 million and 11s sates are sphit
approximately 50/50 between Europe and Australasia During the year the
Fudge brand was successfully integrated into the existing Beauty division

P2 Cussons Plc
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Principal risks and
uncertainties

On behalf of and in consultation with the Board of Directors,
the Group Risk Committee is responsible for identifying,
assessing and prioritising all material risks facing the Group
and ensunng, where possible, that appropriate action is
taken to manage and mitigate those risks The table below
highlights the major nisks identified which may affect the
Group’s ability to deliver its strategy and the measures

taken to address them
Risks Descnption of nsks Measures to reduce the risks
Market risks
Political and The Group cenducts a substantial proportion The Group has a diverse geagraphic poertfolio however

economic stability

of s operations outside the UK 1in emerging
markets which have significant capacity

for profitable growth but which also have
anncreased nsk of political and ecenomic
instability

in developing its corporate strategy and (n order to help
mitigate the nsk that could anse inany one particufar
terntory the Board seeks to maintain an appropriate
balance both between mature and emerging markets and
within the developing world between its operations In
different terntones Inaddition the Group has extensive
and long establshed expenence in all key markets and the
Board continually monitors those markets to ensure that
any specific nsks (or opportunities) may be identiied and
addressed as they arnse

Demand risks

Demand for the Group s products may
be adversely mpacted by changes in
consumer preferences

The increasingly competitive environment
and continued growth of discounters could
adversely impact the rate of sales growth
and profit margins

Extensive knowledge of the Group s selected markets

15 a care strategic pillar and the Group actively monitors
the needs and aspirations of consumers on a regular

and ongoing basis and 1s centinuously developing new
products te satisfy them The Group will continue to
invest In selected brands and selected rmarkets in order
to drive profitable sales growth The Board believes that
competition Is healthy as it encourages and motwates the
Group s operations across the world to do their best to
serve the interests of consumers and our brands

Raw maternials

In comman with gther companies within its
sector the Group s profitabihity 1s affected
by price and supply fluctuations in raw
matenals used in the manufacture of its
products Keyistems such as olls and fats
packaging materials and energy are subject
to fluctuations in price and avallaility

The Group takes measures to protect against the
short-term impact of these fluctuations and shortfalls
however fallure to recover higher costs or shortfalls in
avaitability could have a negative impact on profits The
Group continually monitors the price and avallability of
materials against forecast demand to ensure that there are
adequate resources 1o continue in production throughout
the world The Group also continues to refine its raw
maienal forecasting processes and o strengthen its
procurement capabilities

PZ Cussons Plc
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Risks

Description of nsks

Measures to reduce the nsks

Financial risks

Foreign currency
and treasury nisk

The international nature of the Group s
activities gives nse 1o both transactional
exchange rate nsk {with the main exposure
relating to US Dollar trade balances) and
translation exposure when the results
assets and habihves of foreign subsidianes
are translated into Stering

The current uncertainty over the Eurozone s

economec outlook and Greece s future

within the single currengy ts a nisk given the

Group has a Greek operating unit If Greece

was to leave the Eurozone 1s hkely that

any replacement currency would devalue

against the Euro/Sterhing and reduce

- thecarrying value of the Group s
investment in Minerva

- cashreserves in Minerva and

- future income streams when converted
to Sterling

The Group requires its operating units to hedge therr matenal

transactian exposures on sales and purchases conductedin

currencies ather than their functional currencies The Group |
does not actively hedge its translation exposures as these |
are of an accounting rather than a cash nature, however the

international spread of the Group s operations itself reduces

dependence on individual currencies

The Group maintains a centrabsed treasury function which
operates on a non-speculative basis in accordance with
policies and procedures approved by the Board of Directors
and reviewed durnng the year by the Board and the Audit
Committee The aim of this function s to mitigate the effects
of any adverse movements m exchange rates and interest
rates on the Group s financial results and support operating
units In treasury matters

Throughout the Eurozone uncertainty the Group has
ensured that surplus funds in Minerva have been repatnated
to the UK parent company and held in Sterling Itis not
posstble for the Group to hedge againstthe nsk of a
devaluation in the carrying value of the Greek investment
or the value of future iIncome from Minerva f the Drachma
isTenstated Qverall the Group does not have a significant
exposure 1o the Eurczone given the geographic spread of
the operating uniis however the Board will continue 10
closely monitor tha situatton in Greece in an attempt to
mimmise any potential smpact

Operational risks

Staff retention and
recruitment

The Group recogmses that in order to deliver
sustained strong results it requires the right
calibre of people at all levels of the business
In particular the Group must compele to
recruit and retain capable individuals within
the business including trasming them in the
skills and competencies which are required
to delwer profitable growth

The Board believes that there 1s an attraclive employment
proposition acrass the Group in place which will continue
to attract capable recruits and that key management and
personnel are sufficiently well recognised incentivised
and challenged in order to retain them as far as possible !

Reputation risks

Should the Group fail to meet tugh product
safety social environmental and ethical
standards in all operations and activities

its corporate reputation could be damaged
leading to the rejection of our products by
consumers damage to brands and diversion
of management time inte rebuilding our
reputation

Product safety social environmental and ethical standards
continue to be the cornerstones on which our business 1s
based They are key focus areas for the Corporate Social
Respansibiity Committee a standing sub-commitiee

of the Board Should anyissues arnse In these areas the
Group has processes n place to enable a guick response

PZ CussonsPlc
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Corporate social
responsibility report

We are committed to conducting our
business with integnty and with care in
so far as the social and environmental
impact of our activities 1s concerned

Introduction

At PZ Cussans we believe passionately in Doing Good Business

It 1s something we have been doing for over 125 years and 1t1s a
key part of our culture and who we are We are committed to
conducting our business with integrity and with care sn so far as
the social and environmental impact of our activies Is concerned
We aim to make a positive impact on society through the products
whrch we sell through the way tn which our products are
designed manufactured and packaged and through the
contributions we make to the communities in which we operate

This report sets out the Group s values and principles in relation to
key aspects of corporate social responsibility {CSR) and how these
have been putinto practice duning the year CSR descnbes how a
business
- recognises the ways in which its actions affect those
around it and
- regulates those actions so that consistent with susiainable
business and development they have a posiuive impact

We consider the pnnciples of CSR to be integral to how the

Group conducts its operations and key to the results which the
Group has delivered in the past and la1ts continued success and
development in the future In particular we understand the patential
benefits which may be denved where CSR actvities are ahgned

to the concerns and demands of our stakehelders (including our
shareholders customers consumers suppliers employees and
the wider community) and we listen to and take aceount of those
concernsin shapng our business strategies and practices We also
recogmse that companies are subject to increasing regulation
particularly in respect of environmental 1Issues and we believe that
the pursuit of a proactive and positive CSR policy reduces the nsk
of adverse regulatory action

The PZ Cussons Plc Corporate Soctal Responsibility Committee
The Board 1s responsible for overseeing CSR within the Company
supporied by a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

{CSR Committee)

PZ Cussons Plc
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The CSR Committee was established to ensure that the principles
of CSR remain at the core of the Group s business activities
Reflecting the importance of CSR within the Group each of the
Directors 1s a member of the CSR Commuttee Accordingly the
members of the CSR Committee are Simon Heale (Chairman)
Richard Harvey Alex Kanelis Chns Davis Brandon Leigh

John Pantelireis Derek Lewis Jahn Arnold James Steel and

with effect from therr appointment to the Board in January 2012
Ngoz Edozien and Helen Owers The Chairman of the CSR
Commuttee reports to the Board on the Committee s proceedings
after each meeting on all matters within the scope of its duttes
and responsibilities

The terms of reference of the CSR Committee and further details
regarding 1ts members are avallable on the Company s website
[www p2cussons com)

The CSR Committee and the Board have reviewed and endorsed
this CSR report

‘Doing Good Business’

Qur CSR values and principles are set out in a statement on
Corporate Social Responsibility called Doing Good Business
The statement sets out The Big6 the six pnincipal areas in which
our operations have the greatest potential to impact —either
favourably or adversely - upon our stakeholders

Recognising that doing the rnight thing in business can sometimes
seem o nvolve difficult decisions the staternentis intended to
provide everyone throughout the Group and at all levels within

the business with guidance on how to conduct therr business
activities and gnwhat good business looks like at PZ Cussons

It 15 also intended to motvate and support all our employees to
identify and vigorously pursue opportunities across the Group to
optimise our activities so far as therr social and environmental
impact s concerned In doing 50 115 the belief of the Board and
the CSR Committee that we will make our business stronger more
sustainable and as a consequence more profitable




We believe that there should not be any conflict

or inconsistency between being a successful,
profitable orgarusation and, at the same time,
runruing our operations so that they have a positive
impact on society On the contrary, we believe that
beng socally responsible 1s vatue enhanang for our
shareholders and all of our other stakeholders

In other words, we simply
beleve in ‘Doing Gooed
Business!

The environment We are committed
to protecting the environment for the
benefit of our employees and the
public at large

Page 22 for further information

Health and safety We provide safe
working ervironments for all our
employees, contractors and visitars

Page 26 for further information

The Statement 1s In place across all of the Group s businesses and
its poticies and principles apply to every Director manager and
employee i all our businesses across our global operations

Consumer safety The health and safety
of our consumers 1s our paramount
consideration We will never

A copy of the full Doing Good Business Statement on Corporate compromuse it for any reason
Social Responsibility 1s available on the Company s website

www pzcussons com) Page 26 for further nformation

The Committee’s activities during the year
During the year the principal matters for the Commitiee Business conduct and ethics We
have included demonstrate ethical behaviour in al! our
_ Profit with 6 purpose business activities and in all our
Earlier this year the Committee adopted Group targets m dealings with third parties
respect of four key areas where our business iImpacts upon
the environment packaging carbon emissions water and

waste Further details of those targets and our performance
are set out on the following pages

Page 28 for further information

Our employees We treat each other
- Consumer safety with respect and all employees have
The safety and wellbeing of our consumers has always been of the night ta expect that their dignity waill

paramount importance to us Durnng the year, the Committee be fully respected in the workploce
adopted a new Group Consurner Safety Policy supported by a

Group Matenals of Concern Policy and the establishment of a
senior level Consumer Safety Steening Team to ensure Page 28 for further infarmation
consistent safety standards and pracuces across all of our

operations regardless of differences in local regulations and that

any emerging 1ssues are effectively managed Local community and Chq"ty We

recognise our responsibilities to society
- Commurication and, m particular, to the local communites
The Commuttee has continued to sponsor commurication in which we operate We are committed
programmes across all operating umits explaiming the to ennchlng the lives of our local
importance of The Big 6 to all aspects of our operations and
asking our employees to share their CSR stories Some of those communities
stories are set out in this report

Page 30 for further information
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Corporate social responsibility report
continued

The environment

We recognise that our business has an impact upon the
enviwonment both through our manufacturing and logtstics
operations and through our manufactured products and the way in
which they are used by our consumers We also recognise that we
have a responsibility —to all of our stakeholders —to run our
business in ways which minimise the adverse imgacts and make a
positive contribution to meeting global environmental challenges
We aim to identify and vigorously pursue opportunities across our
Group to reduce our reliance on Increasingly scarce matenals and
to minimise our Impact on the environment white delivering
margin improvemeant and continuing to build a sustainable
business thereby creatinga win win both for the environment
and our business We call our approach Profit with a Purpose

Environmental targets set

In previous reports we have stated our commutment to the

continuous improvement of our environmental performance by

- reporting and reducing the Group s carbon footprint

~ miimising waste and

- efficient use of energy water and other natural resources in our
office factery and warehouse environments

This has continued during the pastyear and 1o brmg greater
focus to this process and to motivate our local businesses and
employees we have set targets in four key environmental areas

Carbon Packaging

12% -10%

12% reduction in 10% reduction in

our carbon footprint  our packaging weight
by 2015 by 2015
Waste Water

15%  -10%
15% reduction in 10% reduction in our
waste disposed of water consumption

by 2015 by 2015
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Annual Report & Accounts 2012

A summary of projects carned out during the year as part of
the journey to delivering on our environmental commitments 1S
set out below

Carbon

Cur planet i1s getting warmer with many damaging consequences
It1s 3 global problem to which we all need to respond —and as a
business we are committed to doing our bit

We are focused on measunng and reducing the emissions
associated wath the fuels used to produce energy from our
factones eitherwvia direct consumption of fossil fuels suchas
diesel oils or gas or via indirect electnenty consumed In the
factones Key elements of our approach are conservation of
energy finding alternative more fuel efiicient processes and
using alternative low carbon sources of energy

Our absolute direct CO, emissions @ Scope 1and Scope 2 see
diagram on page 23} for the last four years have been 147729
metnc tonnes (2008/09) 133 181 metnc tonnes {2002/10} 141 083
metnc tonnes (2010/11}and 123 621 metnc tonnes (2011/12) Since
2008/09 we have reduced our absolute carbon emissions by

16 3% We have achieved & 12 4% reduction in carbon versus last
year against an increase of 4 5% in production tonnage This was
principally delivered by our Nigerian business which has been able
to implement more efficient processes and has moved to mare
carbon efficient fuels

We recognise that given the significant progress which we have
made In recent years contnuous improvernant on gur 2011/12 base
line will become increasingly challenging but we are commutted to
reducing our carbor emissions further and are already planning
initiatives across our businesses to meet our new target



Our carbon footprint scope

Scope 1 Direct

Usage

Electricity purchased
for use in our factores
and within our offices
world wide

Scope 2 Indirect

Usage

Fuel combustion in

our own factories Gas
including LPG diese! oil
heavy fuel oil and coal

Scope 3 and other indirect emissions are cutside of our Carbon footprint at present time

Areas
1 Employee business and commuting travel (1)
2 Emissions associated wath distribution
3 Emissions associated with third
party manufacturer
4 Production of purchased matenals

To date we have already delivered some significant savings in
carbon across our business

metric  In May 2012 our Kenyan factory

1 273“’““35 suceessful installed and

) commissioned a five metric tonnes
of carbon saved this year o haur Biomass fuelled boiler
to provide steam and hot water for
the factory saving 1 273 metnc
tonnes of carbon per year which
equates 10 65% of the Kenyan
carbon footprint for 201112 The
Biomass boiler burns organic waste
which would otherwise have gone
tolandfill By using this organic
wasle we are able to put awaste
crop 1o good use and avold the
burning of fossil fuels

(2} (3) {4}

- In Greece, energy saving activity resulted in a reduction of 770
metric tonnes of carbon which represents a 9 5% reduction in
the overall fooipnint of that business Thits has been achieved
through a variety of projects ranging from separating the cooled
loading bays into two 1o prevent the loss of cool ar when loading
trucks upgrading refngeration equipment and changing ights in
the warehouse to low energy bulbs at our Schimatan site

- InNigena our total operations have reduced carbon enussions
by 9 7% (Scope 1 and Scope 2) from a 2010/11 baseline aganst
anincrease in production volume of 9 7% dnven mainly by
improved efficiencies and moving 1o lower carbon fueis For
example at our Hlupeju manufacturing site we completed our
conversron of the diesel generators to cperate on a combination
of diesel and gas

Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP}

The Company has continued its commitment to parucipate In the
CDP The CDP s an independent not-for-profit orgamisation working
to drive down greenhouse gas emessions and sustainable water use
by businesses and ciies The CDP gperates the only global chmate
change reporting system gathenng data on company strategies and
performance with regard 1o carbon emissions and wateruse Asa
business we have been particrpating in the CDP for the last four
years with a continued commitment to reduce our carbon fooiprint
Currently we report on Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions We have an
ambition 10 ultmately work to Scope 3 (which includes transportation
and contract manufacturing activity}and hope to be able to measure
our carbon impact within Scope 3 in the corming years

PZ Cussons Plc
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Corporate social responsibility report
continued

Packaging

Packaging not only consumes glabal resources bui alsc generates
waste once our censumers have used the product Whilst we
recognise that eliminating packaging 1s not a realistic target 1tis
our ambition to reduce the amount of packaging which we use in
our products and we also encourage our consumers to reuse

and recycle

In order 1o meet our targets for the coming years we will optimise
existing packaging formats through hight weighting optimising
structural and matenal design and eliminating unnecessary
packaging materials while alsc ensunng that a ‘nght by design
philosophy 1s used for all future packaging initiatives

Packaging reduction projects that we have delivered include

- Our operating umt in Greece has successfully ight weighted
therr range of tubs used for Feta cheese and Benecal white
cheese sold under the Horno and Benecol brand respectively
They have also ight wetghted their two kitre PET bottles used
for our Horio Minerva and Mana brands of Extra Virgin Olive
Oils Olive Pormace oills Corn ol Sunfiower ol and Nikt Fry
seed ol Intotal these projects have successiully saved
19 8 metrnic tonnes of plastic

metric
19 8mmes
L]

of plastic reduction through
reduced packaging

- Inthe UK work has concluded on reducing the weight of our
Morning Fresh 450ml Impernial Leather Handwash 300ml and
Carex Handwash 333ml bottles and we will be starting
production at the end of July 2012 The light weightng has
enabled us to reduce the amount of plastrc we buy by 139
metnc tonnes We haveidentiied further savingsto
implement in the coming years

PZ Cussons Plc
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Waste

Waste can hava a significant impact on the environment whether

it 15 solid waste sent to landfill burnt or effluent \We recognise that
wastage occurs through cur manufactunng processes whether

n the form of packaging from incoming goods non-conforming
products which require disposal or water used for clearing our plant
at the end of production By strving to reduce the level of waste

we generate we can have a positive impact an the environment

by reducing the levels of natural resources which we consume and
the solid waste which goes to landfill This also delivers sigmificant
financial savings for the business

Total waste for disposal I1s our key management measure to ensure
that we reduce the level of wasie which we generate The total
waste figure which we consider comprises of sohd waste including
waste which s recycled plus the strength of effluent as measured
by Chemicat Oxygen Demand {COD) As our am s to ultimately
eliminate waste generated we have included recycled waste

to hetp drive a culture of elimimation of waste rather than ane

of recycling We recognise a zero waste culture i1s an ambitious

one however we will continue 1o encourage and support finding
secendary uses cr recycling of waste 1n a responsible manner to
avold sending waste to landfill and would expect to see a shift in the
percentages of waste recycled or reused versus that which 1s sent
to landfill

We have just started our journey on delivering against our waste
target and so far our operating unit in Poland has successfully
implemented a project to reduce the amount of waste water
discharged nto the public drainage system by 40 800m?® by
separating water which s used for cooling from water which 1s
used i the manufacture of our products The business has also
installed a treatment plant for effluent generated duning the
manufactunng of our personal wash products This effluent plant
has enabled us to reduce the waste sent to a speciabst treatment
contractor by 30%

Water

Water scarcity 1s an increasing threat to the world s population
and it has been estimated that by the year 2025 two thirds of the
world s population could be facing serious water shortages We
also recognise that we operate in regions which are defined as
water scarce water stressed or water vulnerable (as defined by
the United Nations}) and that consequently we play a role in
ensuring that water resources are used in an efficeent and
responsible way

Alarge part of the water footpnnt of our products 1s asscciated
with our consumers use of our washing and bathing products
and If we are to do all we can to reduce water usage we will not
only need to focus on the water tootpnnt of our manufacturing
processes but also on that of our consumers However we are
at the start of our journey and sowallinitially only focus on the
volume of water which we directly abstract during the
manufactunng process including water which 1s extracted

for cooling even if it1s returned to water courses after use




As this :s a new focus area for us we have |ust started to 1dentify
opportunities to make savings in our water consumption

Sustainable sourcing

Palm ol

Palm o1 15 the most widely traded vegetable ot in tha world and s
used In many food and household products Over 85% of the
world s palm o comes from indonesia and Malaysia where land
1s semetimes cleared of farest for palm plantations resuiting in
greenhouse gas ermisstons and a loss of wildlife hatitat In
common with our competiiors certain parts of our businesses
utihse palm ol and we share the concerns of our consumers and
other stakeholders in relation to palm oil soutcing end use and the
potential for damage 10 the environment

In recognttion of these concerns PZ Cussons committed to
membership of the Round tabie for Sustainable Palm Oil (RSPO)in
2010 The RSPO whrch was formed in 2004 1s a not-for-profit
association which unites members from across all sectors of the
palm ol industry including g1l palm producers traders cansumer
goods manufacturers retallers banks and investors and NGOs
and pressure groups}hwith the objective of promoting the growth
and use of sustanable palm ail products through credibte global
standards and engagement of stakeholders PZ Cussonsis
committed to promoting and communicating RSPO values across
our supply chain and has commitied to move to 100% Certfied
Sustainable Palm Cil via the use of RSPQ approved supply chain
mechamsms by 31 May 20i5

Wood puip

PZ Cussons uses wood pulp for labels to put onto our bottles and
packages n boxes for our products and in corrugated boxes and
trays used for transporung our products from our factones to our
customers Though we do not directly buy wood pulp or own or
manage loresis we recogmse that we have a responsibility to
ensure that the products which we procure are from susiainable
sources and minimise our requirements for wood pulp We have
Just started our jpurney to Improve our understanding of wood
pulp fibre drive transparency i sourcing and ensure that

PZ Wilmar

In December 2010 we announced the expansion of our Food
and Nutntion operations in Nigenia through the estabhishment of
a food ingredients joint venture with Singapore based Wilmar
International Limited one of Asia s leading agnibusiness groups

Patm ol 1s an integral part of Nigerian culture and cuising
However the Nigenan palm industry once aworld leader has
declined in recent decades and the country 1s currently in a net
deficit posttion of production versus demand Domestic product
15 often produced in unhygienic conditions and widely sold in
discarded second-hand water bottles

One of the largest single agro-nvestrments in Nigeria our PZ

Whlmar business s commutted to helping to rejuvenate Nigena s

palm ol industry from plantation 1o plate by

- bullding a state of the art palm oif relinery and packaging
operation (scheduled for commussioning later this year)

- Investing In the development of plantations to world class
standards and

- producing palm ol based products 1o world class quality
health and nutritional standards

There are a number of benefits for Nigena and its people

- Sale hygrenic gooed quality and affordable cooking
ingredients in tamper proot packageng

- Job creationin rural and agncultural areas — it1s anticipated
that the business will result in the creation of many thousands
of indirect jobs mcluding jobs with local farmers and outgrowers

- Investment n local schools and medical facilities

- Greater economic self suthiciency with a reduction in Nigenia s
supply shortage by 300 000 metnc tonnes and the
development of agncultural best practice

Palm oil 15 iIndigenous to Nigernia and therefore it does not
compete against local food crops or vegetation The
establishment of local plantations also fits ocur Group
commitment to use raw matenals from sustainable and
environmentally fnendly sources

sustainable forest management practises are used As stated
above we are already focusing on reducing the amount of
packaging and anticipate that this wiil also include the werght of
wood pulp which we consume

Forest Footprint Disclosure project

PZ Cussons participates annually in the Forest Footprint
Disclosure (FFD} project This 1s a special project of the Global
Canogpy Foundation iniiated in 2008 The FFD engages with
private sector companies in respect of disclosure of thewr current
understanding of their forest footprint based on exposure ta five
key commodities — soy, patm ol tumber cattle products and
biofuets We report on our use of palm oil and on the timber
sectors of the FOD

Our participation in the FDD has improved corporate awareness of
the 1ssues around the mamtenance of tropical forests resources in
developing countnes and has led us to start 1o assess our supply
chain in order 10 establish targets for use of certified sustainable
palm ol for sourcing sustainable wood pulp fibre and to dnve a
reduction In consumplion
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Corporate social responsibility report
continued

Health and safety

PZ Cussons I1s commitied to having safe and healthy operations
around the world and we continually strive to improve health and
safety standards across all of our operating units We seek to provide
safe working environments for all our employees contractors and
visttors and to ensure comphiance with allrelevant health and safety
laws and regulations at all our places of operation

Itis therefcre with great sadness that we report that duning the
year an industnal aceident resulted in the death of an employee
The accident was immediately reported to the refevant authonties
and aninternal Investigation was also launched into the causes

of the accident Improvernent actions and learnings have been
communicated across the whole of the Group to prevent any
recurrence The Company has conveyed iis deepest condelences
to the family of the deceased

We remain determined to drive continuous improvement across all
of our businesses We use regular internal and external audits to
help dnve continuous improvernent and all operating units participate
in the PZ Cussons World Class Manufactunng programme delivering
compliance checks and identfication of improvement opportunities
Two of our operating units PZ Cussons UK and PZ Cussons Indonesia
are certifted in an internattonally recogmsed Occupatronal Health
and Safety management system OHSAS 18001 and we have plans
to roll this out across other operating units over the coming years

PZ Cussons Nigena has already started a prograrmmme to achieve this
certification Further Nigenais alsoimplementing nsk assessmeani
procedures with near msss or hazard identification procedures
[HAZOP & HAZID) in all operating units employees are positively
encouraged to identify and report hazards or near misses and 1o
personally conduct work place nsk assessments as part of personal
objectives

The business tracks and reports two key health and safety
performance indicators in alt operating units  Lost Time Incidenis
[LTI} per 200 000 hours worked and First Aud Cases {FAC) per 200 000
hours worked LTls include all health and safety occurrences which
result in one day or more absence from work {excluding the day of
incident) FAC include alt health and salety occurrences (including
LTIshwhich resultin the employee being given firstad FAC include
cases where employees are treated for incidents which occur outside
ol the workplace as any treatment given may enable us toreduce the
number of employee days lost The FACs indicator was itroduced to
enable us to continue to Improve our health and safety performance
as we had successfully reduced LTls in some operating units to an
extrernely low tevel (for example one of our UK operations has now
operated for over 1 200 days (nearly four years)wathout a LT}

As the graph following shows we have successfully reduced

LTI frequency by 18 0% as a Group 10 a frequency rate of 0 41 per
200 000 hours worked and FACs have reduced by 14 1% o

2 04 per 200 000 hours worked Our LTI frequency rate s better
than industry standards however we will continue to dnive
improvement of these rates even further in the future
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Consumer safety

The safety of our products 1s of paramount concern tc our

consumers and to us Al each stage of the product development

matenals sourcing and manufacturing processes we assess

- whether productis pose any immediate health nsk during use
{such as interactions with the haw and skin)

- the potential longer-term impact on consumer health through
use of matenals with poor or unknown safety records

- that products are Hitfor purpose at the ire of use and have
undergone appropnate stability testing and manufactunng trials
before reaching the market and

- thatwe have considered reasonable foreseeable conditions of
use and used appropriale pack warnings and safety features
such as child proof closures when needed

We fully comply wath all relevant legistation tn the markets in which

we operate and where regulations allow we adopt acommeon

standard across the Group As an example of this approach

- the European Umon Cosmetcs Directive 1s our standard for
personal care products in ail markets

- Inour electncals and white goods business in Africa we only
source products from suppliers who are accredited with the
Conformite Europeenne {CE) Mark which certifies that thetr
products meet European Union health safety and
environmental requirements and

- n gur food business in Greece Codex Alimentarius EU
regulation 852/2004 and HACCP principles on the hygtene of
foodstutfs are all apphed Our factory also has BRC 1S0-3001
and 1S0-22000 cerufication

We adopt a precautionary approach 1o material usage In Europe
we follow ReaCh regulations {Registration Evaluation, Authornsation
and restnction of CHemicals) for controlling chemicals and use the
Substances of Very High Concern (SVHC} st 10 guide our matenals
policy wathin the Group Where we believe there are reasonable
grounds to restrict or prohibit the use of a matenal wewill do so
ahead of legislation




Qur technical teams actively work with industry associations
and regutatory bodies to ensure we are aware of legislative
requirements and work proactively to help shape the industry
response o managing future 1ssues Where necessary we use
specialist experuse such as Toxicolegists as part of the product
salety assessments

We apply the same standards to consumer safety whether our
products are developed and manufactured in our own factones or
externally sourced

Cosmetic product safety

All preducis designed for the Eurgpean and Asian market are
developed to meet the requirements of the EU Cosmetics
Directsve and products designed for Africa will do so by July
2013 The EU Cosmetics Directive represents the highest
safety standard and requires a detalled Cosmetic Product
Safety Report 1o be done for every product belfore being
placed on the market

Personal Care Centre Agecroft Laberatories UK

Consumer safety steering team

We have established a senior level steenng team to guide and
direct our approach to consumer safety and policy deployment
This team will ensure a common Group appreach s adopted and
that actions are implementad swiftly in all parts of the business
The team wili meet quarterly and be advised by expenenced
functional heads from around the Group

Managing ‘Materials of Concern’

We have adopted a Group Matenals of Concern list which

formalises our approach 1o matenial selection and acts as the

vehicle for communication around the Graup Where there

are reasonable grounds for concern on consumer safety or

environmental irmpact we wilt adopt a cautionary approach and

matenals may be restricted or prohibited ahead of any legislation

being put In place We recognise that many of these 1ssues are

complex and the following factors will be considered before any

actionis taken

- Thelatest scientific or ¢linical evidence and the epinion of
recogmised chemical safety bodies

- The global regulatory status of the matenal

- Thefunctionality of the ingredient and the availabllity cost and
safety profile of alternatwve matenals

- What would be appropriate actions proportionate to the scale
of theissue

The Matenals of Concern will be regularly reviewed by the
Consumer Safety Steenng Team and decisions to iImpose
restrictions will be ratfied by it
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Corporate social responsibility report
continued

Business conduct
and ethics

We aim to demonstrate ethical behaviour in all our business
activities and in all our dealings wath third parues We value our
relationships with our customers supplers and other business
partners and we demonstrate respect and integrity tn our dealings
with them We also recognise that we are only as goed as the third
parties with whom we partner and we expect our suppliers and
contractors 1o demonstrate similar high ethical standards and an
ahgnment with our values and principles We take due account of
this when establishing or continuing business relationships

Bnbery Act

Building on work already imtiated as part of cur commitment on

Business Ethics the Group has taken action to ensure continuing

comphiance with the UK Bribery Act since it came into effect

earlier in the year The Board advised by our external tegal

advisors has initiated a number of actions dunng the year including

- anskassessmentacross the Group particularly within
territones or areas which are percetved as high nsk

- starung the process of incorporating our Business Conduct and
Ethics standards (and other Big 6 values) into contract tender
and audit pracesses and decision making

- refreshing our global Speak Up whistleblower policy which
was established in 2008 to ensure that employees may report
any concerns over business practice, confidenually and without
fear of recnimination through a telephene hotline and online
faciity provided by a third party expert Speak Up 1s particularty
focused on any allegation or concern of malpracuce {inctuding
concerns over breaches of health and safety cnminal activity or
fraud and breaches of locai laws or environmental regulations)
and incorporates procedures which ensure that any such 1ssues
can be brought promptly to the attention of the Board and
addressed at the earhest opportunity

- the production of Codes of Conduct for key staff and

- the integration of anu-bnbery provisions into key commercial
contracts

We are committed o rolling out a further commurnication
programme for all staff in the year to come and o putting in
place formal compliance training for key staff

Codes of conduct

During the year we have continued the process of informing and
educaung our suppliers in respect of our Big 6values and related
codes of conduct Gomng forward we are committed to continuing
that process and to ensunng that compliance and alignment with
our vatues are an integral part of the supplier selection
engagement and auditing processes

Animal testing

Qur position on ammal testng remasns as it has for many years
We do not conduct safety testing on animals in respect of any of
our products nor do we commisston others to do so on our behalf
We recognise that in some regulatory environments there 1s a
requirement 1o do so —we do not operate In those countries or
product sectors We support the development of alternative test
methods and the stated intenuon of the EU to remove completely
the need for any testing on animals in the cosmetics industry

PZ Cussons Plc
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Our employees

Our employees are essential to the success of our business and to
achieving our business goals We value and celebrate the diversity
of every member of cur team of over 7000 employees working in
ten countnes across Europe Afnca Asia and North Amenca

PZ Cussons 1s commiited to a culiure where all employees are
treated with respect and have the nght 1o expect that therr dignity
will be fully respected in the workplace We are committed to
creating an environment in which afl employees have the
opportunity to reach ther full potenual and where everyone has a
voice regardless of role senionty or geography

Employee engagement

We conducted our first full employee engagement survey in 2010
This was based on the opinions of more than 75% of our employees
and calbrated against global FMCG norms The employee
engagement survey enabled each operating unit 1o develop its

own unigue action plan to address key areas for improvement

A follow up survey was carried out in November 2011 and enabled

us to check on progress against action plans and to challenge

ourselves 10 make progress against the targets which we had set

Overall seven out of ten of the survey categones have seena

significant improvement since lastyear Of parucular note 1s the

continued progressn

- Communication and integnty and Respect achieved a 7% and
a 6% improvement respectively i their satisfaction ratings
compared to last year and

- Communication and Managing Change where we were rated
sigruficantly above our benchmark global consumer goods
company norms

PZ Cussons donated £1 1o UNICEF for every completed employee
opinton survey Having done two surveys now we have donated a
total of £10 000



Performance management Developing PZ Cussons talent

Managing performance at PZ Cussons 1s more than just a set of We are committed to the training and development of our
activities and forms It 1s an everyday way of working to improve employees and have delivered more than 200 traimning courses
performance by taking action to coach and motivate our people across the globe in our operating umits The traiming courses are a

We measure performance based on business objectives aligned combination of management competency and technical skills
toteam funcuon operating unit and global business strategiesin  training and have included

conjunction with behaviours assessed agamnst key competencies - 187 leaders and future leaders from every operating unit
Together these provide arating which 1s linked to reward and to participated in our award winning global leadership programme
our global talent and succession planning activity This enables us (2011 Peer Awards in Excellence in Leading and Developrnent)
1o develop and motivate high performing and high potential The course was developed in-house and run in canjunction with
individuals prowding them with challenging and exciting careers Carporate Executive Coaching {CECO) and was designed to help
QOur performance development and review programmes have now emplovees recognise ther skills strengths and weaknesses
been rolled out globally and have been in place for two years and so develop as leaders within the business The course s

now being applied in the operating units as a future leaders
programme and
- our Graduate Development Programme in Nigeria has been

As an ongoing commitment to personal development and running in excess of ten years directly recruiting circa 30
developing the Research and Development (R&D) capabity in Nigertan graduates from acrass the country every year

the African businesses members of the R&D team in Nigerna

and Kenya have successfully attained a Diplema in Cosmetic Diversity and inclusion

Science from the UK Society of Cosmetic Scienusts through a PZ Cussons is an extremely diverse orgamisation in terrms of
distance learning programme The course 1s racognised by the its eihruc and cultural make-up and this 1s something that we
Royal Society of Chemistry and 1s endorsed by the Cesmetic continue to promote We employ many different natuonaliies
Toiletry and Perfurnery Association (CTPA} The Eiploma including Indian Chinese Polish Indonesian Thar Greek
course gives an excellent grounding in cosmetic science Australian Nigenan Ghanaian Kenyan and Brittsh We also
tncluding modules on formulation development quality value diversity in respect of gender and age

and product testing

0% 2%

Women employees ~ Women senior
managers

19.6% 7.4%

Employees with over  Employees over 50
15 years’ service

We do not employ any person below the local legal working age and
wewillnot 1nany circumstances employ anyone below the age of 16
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Corporate social responsibility report
continued

Local community and charity

We operate in a number of different countries with
diverse ethnic cultures and socio-economic dynamics.
As a business, we recognise our responsibilities to
society and in particular, to those local communities in
which we operate.

Employees across all of our operating units have
continued to show real commitment to supporting
their local communities and charities

.U PZ Cussons Nigena Foundation - In Nigena support
1™ for the Foundation has continued The Foundation was
g, established in 2007 wath the objective to positively impact
‘i local communities through schemes related to education

heatth potable water and infrastructure 34 projects in 23
locations around Nigena have been supported since the
Foundation was established including the following
projects this year

PZ Cussons Foundation/EDUcare Inspiration

Youth Contre Ibadan

A Youth 'nspiration Centre was built by the PZ Cussans Faundation

and donated to the Educare Trust {an Education and Health NGG)

The Centre has baen established to help Nigerian youths wha Opening of EDUcare Inspirat:an Youth Centre
mght otherwise have become involved in cniminal actvity due to

unemployment or boredom

Sustainable Water Sanstation and Hygiane (SWASH)

with Concern Universal

The Foundation partnered with the chanty Concern Universal

to help improve water sanitation and hygiene for five differant
communities in Nigaria Tha main element of the project was the
construction of hand boreholes and indiwidual household latrines
10 improve sanitation for those living 1n the communities

Expanding a medical faciiity in Bells University Otta

The Foundation assisted the medical facility at Bells University

Qtta through the construction of a new bullding which compnses

of four wards with adjoining bathrooms a treatment room  store Hand borehole construcied in Nigenia
and a lounge This has improved conditions for beth the medical

team and pauents attending the clinic

Training of Pimary School Teachers cz Jigawa State

College of Education

The Foundation was approached 1o assist the Jigawa State
College of Education (JSCOE) in its key role of training teachers
needed In he primary school systam in Gume! The Foundation
has begun a three year partnership with Voluniary Services
Overseas {V50] to assistwith prowiding the required expatriate
teachers to help with this training

Medical facility v Bells University Otta
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In the UK both the operating unit and head office
employees were busy supporting local chariies with
avariety of activities

UK

Salford Academy

PZ Cussons has been working with Saliord Academy for several
years to offer pupils different opportunities to learn life and
work skills This year we worked with students on how to make
a profitable shampoo which the students could sall in school
1o raise monaey This project covered Maths English Science
ICT Citizenship and also taught them about careers and
commumication skills Students learnt responsibidity
communicatian skills and the value of teamwark

Seasheil Trust

The Seashell Trust 1s a residental special school based In
Manchester supporting children and young people with sensory
impairments and prefound learning and communication
ditficulties The Trust and PZ Cussons have now been working
together for two years on research to investigate and evaluate
how olfaction might affect and support the development of
communication of students with multi-sensary imparment
The project has been looking at how bespoke fragrances can
improve a child s understanding and communigation including
the abitity of thesa children to make choices For example
simple chaices such as food ardrink based on smell hava now
been successfully introduced into the curnculum Further
research has also taken place andia amed at enhancing

mult sensory experiences for students such as releasing the
scent of burning wood at Banfire Night celebrations The work
has attracted international interest frormn Amernica and Denmark
and we are currently evaluating how the project rmight be
extended to assist dementia sufferers

Poland

Qur operating urut in Poland established the Carex Clean Hands Academy
in 2011 with the objective to reach 11 000 schools to educate efementary
and middia school children an hand hygiene The programme s in its
second year and centinues to offer educatronal matenals for schools to
run demonstrations from medical experts and competitions for children
and teachars with 300 schools joining the programmee this year

Greece

QOuremployees in Greece have supported tha municipalities of
Schumatan Snt Dimitrios (loanmina) and Andravida by providing poor
and homeless people with a chanty food bank

Thaiand and Indonesia whera two of cur businesses are
located ware affected by natural disasters dunng the year

Our factory in Thailand was only protected from flooding by the
extraordinary efforts of our employees who working arounag
the clock to help strengthen the site flood defences were able
1o keep the floac waters at bay when most neighbouring
facihties ware under water The Board would hike tc say a special
thank you 10 8ll of those employees for their amazing efforts

Up to 50 of our employees were directly affected by the flooding
and so our faciity became ther home Offices were converted
1o provide besic hving faciities including food clean water and
laundry facilities and a Peopie Centse was set up to provide
suppart for all pur employees including health education and
health screening at a time of icreased nsk of infection Indonesia
also suffered severe flooding in parts of the country Employees
N our operating units were generous in fundraising 1o help
colleagues affected by the flooding winch enabled with the
support of the business the distnbutipn of flood survival packs
to all employees financial support and access to loans Local
schools impacgted by the flood were also supported with
donatiens and survival bags

Thailand and Indonesia
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Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Alex Kanellis (age 47)

Group Chief Executive

Mr Kanellis has a Phd in mechanical engineenng He joined

PZ Cussons in 1993 He was appointed Managing Director of the
Group s business in Thailland in 1998 before becoming Managing
Director of Indonesia in 2001 He was appointed to the Board

in 2003 as Regienal Director of Asia before becoming Chief
Executivein June 2006 Mr Kanellis 1s a member of the
Naminatton Group Risk and CSR Commitiees

Chnis Davis {age 50)

Commercial Director

After working in semor Sales and Marketing roles for vanous
consumer goods compames Mr Davis joined PZ Cussons from
the BTR Nylex Group in 1993 and became Managing Director of
the Group s business in Australiain 2001 Hewas appainted to the
Board in 2006 as Regicnal Director of Afnca and became Group
Commercial Director in 2008 Mr Dawis 1s a member of the Group
Risk and CSR Committees

Brandon Leigh {age 41}

Group Finance Director

Mr Leigh gualified as a chartered accountant with Deloitte &
Touchein 1996 He joined PZ Cussons in 1987 and was appointed
to the Board as Group Finance Director in 2006 MrLeighisa
member of the Group Risk and CSR Committees

John Pantelireis {age 58)

Supply Chain Director

Mr Pantelireis was appomted an Executive Director of PZ Cussons
in 2005 and 15 a member of the Group Risk and CSR Commuttees
He has worked 1n a vanety of senior positions for PZ Cussons both
In Nigena and the UX and spent three years as Supply Chain
Development Director prior to his appointment to the Board
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Independent Non-executive Diractors

Richard Harvey {age 62)

Mr Harvey was appointed a Non-executive Director of PZ Cussons
Picin January 2010 and took up the position of Chairman on 1 July
2010 AFellow of the Institute of Actuaries Mr Harvey became
Group Chief Executive Qificer of Norwich Umon Plcin 1998 and
subsequently Group Chief Executive of Aviva Plc initially branded
CGNU after the merger of Norwich Union with CGU He has
worked extensively overseas in both mature and emerging
markets and was Char of the Associatuon of British insurers from
2003/05 Since retinng from Aviva Pic in 2007 Mr Harvey has
spent time in Africa supperting chantable imtiatives and has also
worked on other projects to accelerate business development in
Africa, including work for the Africa Progress Panel and the World
Bank He s a Non-executive Director of Jardine Lloyd Thompson
Plc Mr Harvey 1s the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and
amember of the Group Risk and CSR Committees

Derek Lewis {age 67)

Mr Lewis has been a Non-executrve Director of PZ Cussons Plc
since.June 2004 A retred solicitor and former partner of Addleshaw
Goddard LLP Mr Lewis specialised throughout his professional
career in advising on corparate and commercial matters

Mr Lewis 1s the Senior Nan-executive Directer and a member

of the Nemination Remuneration Audit Group Risk and CSR
Committees After eight years serviceto the Board MrLews
will retire with effect from the 2012 Annual General Meeting

Professor John Arnold (age 68}

Professor Arnold 1s Ementus Professor of Accounting and Financial
Management at Manchester Business Schoctand has been a
Non-executive Director of PZ Cussons Plc since January 2007

A chartered accountant his previous expenence Includes spending
12 years as Director and Dean of Manchester Business School
Professor Arnold i1s currently Chairman of the Co-operative
Performance Committee of Co-operatives UK a member of the
Council of the Greater Manchester Chamber Chairman of Feelgood
Theatre Productions and an academic adwisor to Ashnidge and 1o
IBS-ISCTE Business School in Lisbon Professor Arneld)s Chairman
of the Audit Committee and the Group Risk Commtttes and 2
member of the Nomination Remuneration and CSR Commuttees



Ngoz Edonen (age 47}

Ms Edozien was appointed a Non-executive Director of PZ Cussons
Plc in January 2012 She s Chief Executive West Africa at Actis
aleading private equity investor in emerging markets where sheis
responsible for all aspects of the Company s business in the region
Prior to joining Acus Ms Edozien was VP Strategic Planning and
Business Development for Pfizer Inc based in New York She was
transferred to Nigeria in 2005 to run Pfizer s businesses in East,
West and Central Afnca before being appointed in 2008 as Chief
Executive of the Equity Vehicle for Health in Afnica an investment
company focused on investng in private healthcare businesses

in the continent She has a background in strategic consulting
having spent seven years with McKinsey & Co working principally
in the consumer products and healthcare sectors A US/Nigenan
citizen shewas educated in the United States a3 Harvard University
and started her career in corperate finance at JP Morgan She s

a Non-executive Birector of Diamond Bank Ple, a company hsted
on the Nigerian Stock Exchange Ms Edozien 1s a member of the
Nomination Remuneration, Audit Group Risk and CSR Committees

Simon Heale {age 59)

Mr Heale was appointed a Non-executive Director of PZ Cussons
Plc in January 2008 and 1s Chairman of the CSR Commuttee and a
rmember of the Nomination Remuneration Audut and Group Risk
Committees A chariered accountant Mr Heale has worked ina
varety of serior positions for mulu-national companies in Amerca
and the Far East and spent five years as Chief Executive of the
London Metal Exchange Mr Heale 1s a Non-executve Director of
The Morgan Crucible Company Ltd Kazakhmys Plc and Marex
Spectron Senior Non-executive Director of Coats Plc and a
trustee and the treasurer of Macmillan Cancer Support

Helen Owers {age 49)

Mrs Owers was appointed a Non-executive Director of

PZ Cussons Plein January 2012 Untl recently she was Chief
Development Officer for Thomson Reuters Professional with
responsibility for the company s expansionin rapidly developing
economies and she continues 19 provide consultancy services 10
the Thomson Reuters group She played anmportant rolein the
development of the company s digital strategy and as President
of Gobal Businesses for Thomson Reuters Legal she built new
businesses in a number of emerging markets balancing local
consumer insights and needs with the globalisation of the
business and key preducts Before joining Thomson Reuters

Mrs Owers worked as a consultant with Germini Consulting
developing and implementing corporate and operationat
strategies for a number of consumer preducts chents Mrs Owers
15 a member of the Nomination Remuneration Audit Group Risk
and CSR Commitiees

James Steel (age 52)

Mr Steel has been a Nen-executive Director of PZ Cussons Ple
since October 2005 After qualifying as a chartered accouniant
with Price Waterhouse he became a corporate financier and
warked for Schroders Citigroup and Arbuthnot Securitiesin a
variety of positions both in the UK and overseas He s a trustee of
Independent Age Mr Steel 1s Chairman of the Remuneration
Committes and a member of the Nomination Audit Group Risk
and CSR Committees Following Mr Lewis retirement with effect
from 19 September 2012 Mr Steel will be appotnted Senior
Independent Director

The Non-executive Directors do not have service contracts
Detalls of the letter of engagement relating to each are set out
under the heading Service Contracts withun the Report on
Directors remuneration

Under the Company s present Articles of Association, all Directors
are subject to annual re-election by shareholders Each of the
Directors will retire immediately preor to the 2012 Annual General
Meeting and wih the exception of Mr Lewis wheo 1s retring from
the Board each being ehgible will offer imself or herself for
re-election at the meeting

The evaluation of the Board as reported within the Corporate
governance report concluded thateach of the Directors
centinues to demonstrate effectiveness and commitment to his
or her particular role and the re-election of each i1s accordingly
recommended by the Board
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Report of the Directors

Princtpal activities

The principal actmties of the Group are the manufacture and distnbution of soaps, detergents tolletries beauty products
pharmaceuvucals electrical goods edible olls fats and spreads and nutntional products The subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures
principally affecung the profits habilities or assets of the Group are isted in note 31 of the consolidated financial statements

The principal acivity of the Company 1s a holding company

Results and dividends
A summary of the Group's results for the year 1s set out in the Financial review on pages 8 to 9 of the Annual Report

The Directors recommend a final dnvidend of 4 487p (2011 4 487p) per Ordinary Share to be paid on 1 October 2012 to Ordinary
Shargholders on the register at the close of business on 17 August 2012 which together with the intenm dwidend of 2 23p (2011
2123p) paid on 2 Apnil 2012 makes a total of 6 717p for the year (2011 6 61p)

Directors

Executive Directors

Alex Kanellis — Group Chief Executive
Chns Davis - Commercial Director
Brandon Leigh - Group Finance Director
John Pantelireis - Supply Chan Cirector

Independent Non-executive Directors
Richard Harvey

Derek Lewis

Professor John Arnold

Ngozl Edozien

Simon Heale

Helen Owers

James Steel

Directors’ interests
The Directors interests in the share capital of the Company at 31 May 2012 tegether with their interesis at 1 June 2011 are detailed below

Ordinary Shargs

2012 201
Number Number

Beneficial
Mr R Harvey 33,208 18 360
Mr G A Kanellis 409,340 282 510
Prof J A Arnold 13,450 13450
Mr C G Davis 258515 180899
Ms N Edozien - -
MrSJNHeale 8,000 8000
Mr B HLetgh 86,022 74 828
MrDW Lews 45,000 40000
Mrs H Owers - -
Mr J Pantelireis 181,340 108 244
MrJTJ Steel 37,500 37500
Total 1,072,373 764 7%

1 The figures in the tables do not include 334 85642011 1 334 578) Ordinary Shares held by the Employee Share Option Trust{ESOTYat 31 May 2012 The ESOT
15 a discretionary trust undar which the class of benehcianes who may benefit compnses certaim employees and farmer employees of the Company and its
subsichanes mcluding members of such emplayees and former employees immedtate famities Some or all of the shares held in the ESOT may be the subject
of awards to Executive Directors of the Campany under the P2 Cussons Plc Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scheme the PZ Cussons Pl Executive Share Option
Scheme and/or the PZ Cussons Plc Parformance Share Plan details of each of which are given in the Aeport on Diractors remuneration Accordingly those
Executive Directors are inchuded in the class of beneficanes and are deemad to have a beneficial interest in all the shares acqurred by the ESOT

2 The figures in the tables do not include apiions granted over Ordinary Shares under the PZ Cussens Plc Executive Share Option Scheme conditional shares
granted under the PZ Cussons Plc Performance Share Plan or deferred shares granted {but not yet transferred to partctpants}under the PZ Cussons Plg
Deferred Annual Share Bonus Schema as a1 31 May 2012
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There have been no changes in the interests of any of the Directors between 31 May 2012 and the date of this report save that

Mr Harvey purchased on 30 Juna 2012 an additional 3 870 shares pursuant 1o a tracding plan The register recording the Directors
interests will be open for inspection at the 2012 Annual General Meeting No Director had any beneficial interest dunng the year in
shares or debentures of any subsidiary company Save for their service contracts or letters of appointment there were no contracts of
significance subsisting during or at the end of the financial year with the Company or any of its subsidiaries in which a Director of the
Company was matenally interested

Durning the year and up to the date of the report the Company maintained hability insurance for 1ts Directors and officers and pension
fund trustee liability insurance for Mr Kanelis Mr Davis Mr Leigh and Mr Pantelireis in thewr capacity as trustees of certain of the
Group s pension funds

Other substantial iInterests
The register maintained oy the Company under section 808 of the Companies Act 2006 disclosed the following interests in the shares
of the Company held at 24 July 2012

Number ot shares %
J B Zochonis 60619 580 1414
Zochonis Chantable Trust 49 860 040 1163
MaG 47232 219 1M
Mrs C M Green Settlement 20 328 280 474
J B Zochonis Settlement 19927130 465

No shares weressued during the year Further information about the Company s share capital 1s given in note 24 of the consolidated
financial statements

Directors

Derek Lewis who has served the Board as a Non-executive Director since 2004 has indicated his imtention to retire with effect from the
212 Annual General Meeting on 18 September Following Mr Lewis retirement James Steel a Non-executive Director since 2005 wall
be appointed Senior Independent Directerin his place

Political and charrtable contnbutions
Chantable contnbutions in the Urited Kingdom during the year amounted to £253 000(2011 £183 000} No political contnbutions were
made (2011 nul)

Research and development

The Group maintans in-house faciities for research and developmentin the United Kingdem Poland Indonesia West Afrrca and
Austraba mmaddiion research and development 1s sub-contracied to approved external prganisations Currently all such expenditure 1s
charged against profit in the year in which 1tis incurred as it does not meet the entena for capstalisation under IAS 38 Intangible assets

Payment of supplhers

The Group does not follow any code or statement on payment practice It1s the responsibility of the management of each operating unit
within the Group to agree appropriate terms of business with supphers upon entenng into binding contracts and to adhere to these
payment terms provided the relevant goods or services have been supplied in accordance with contractual obligatons The creditor
days are disclosed in note 19 of the consolidated financial statements

Employment of disabled persons

Duning the year the Group has maintained iis policy of providing equal opportunities for the appropriate employment training and
development of disabled persons Further information regarding the Company s policies in this respect are set out within the report
on page 93

Employee information

The Group recogmises the benefits of keeping employees informed of the progress of the business and of involving them in therr
company s perfoermance The methods of achieving such involvernent are different in each company and country and have been
developed over the years by local management workeng with local employees in ways which suit their particular needs and
environmeant with the active encouragement of the parent organisatron

Auditor
PricewaternouseCoocpers LLP has signified 115 wallingness to continue in of fice as Auditor to the Company and in accordance with
section 485 of the Companies Act 2006 a resolution {or its appointmeni will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
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Report of the Directors
continued

Enhanced business review
Areview of the functional performance of the Group 1s prowided on pages 10t0 17

Pnincipal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
The Group s business actvues financial conditian results of operations could be affected by a vanety of nsks or uncertainties These
are summarnsed In the Principal nsks and uncertainties section on pages 18 to 18

Corporate governance
The Group s statement on corporate governance can be found in the Corporate governance report on pages 44 to 48 of these financial
statemenis The Corporate governance report forms part of this Report of the Directors and is incorporated by cross reference

Annual General Meeting

The Company s 2012 Annual General Meeting will be held at the Company s Registered Office Manchester Business Park 3500 Aviator
Way Manchester M22 5TG at 10 30am an 19 September 2012 The resolutions which will be praposed at the 2012 Annual General
Meeting are set out In the separate Notice of Annual General Meeting which accompanies this Annual Report and Financial Statements

Share capital
As at 31 May 2012 the Company s 1ssued share capital consisted of 428 724 960 Ordinary Shares of 1p each

Rights and obligations attaching to shares
Subject to applicable statutes and other shareholders rnights shares may be 1ssued with such rights and restrictions as the Company may
by ordinary resolution decide or, if there 1s no such resolution or so far as 1t does not make specific provision as the Board may decide

Restrictions on voting
Unless the Board decides otherwise no member shall be entitled to vote at any meeting in respect of any shares held by that member if
any call or other sum which is then payable by that member in respect of that share remains unpaid

Powers of Directors
Subject to the Company s Memorandum and Articles of Association the Companies Acts and any directions given by special
resolution the busmess of the Company will be managed by the Board who may exercise all the powers of the Company

Purchase of own shares

Pursuant o sharehotder approval given at the 2011 Annual Genaral Meeung the Company s authonsed to make market purchases of
ts own Crdinary Shares The Directors intend to seek renewal of this authonty at future Annual General Meetings including the 2012
Annual General Meeting No shares were purchased from 1 June 2011 to 24 July 2012 {2011 nil}{other than the acquisibons undertaken
by the ESOT {see note 25})

Restrictions on the transfer of securities

There are no restrictions on the transfer of secunties in the Company except

- thatcertain restrictions may from time to tme be imposed by laws and regulations {far example instder trading) anc

- pursuant to the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonity whereby certain employees of the Company require the approval of
the Company to deal in the Company s Ordinary Shares

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to the Auditor

In the case of each of the persons who ware Directors of the Company at the date when this report was approved

- So far as each of the Directors 1s aware there 1s no relevant audit information (as defined by the Companies Act 2046) of which the
Company s Auditor 1s unaware

- Each of the Direciors has taken all the steps that he or she ought 1o have taken as Director to make himself or herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company s Auditor 1s aware of that information

This information 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provision of section 418(2) of the Companies Act 2006
By order of the Board of Dwectors
Mr S P Plant H

Company Secretary
24 July 2012
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Report on Directors’ remuneration

Foreword

The Remuneration Committee s responsible for overseeing the remuneration of the Executive Directors and the Chairman Itis also
responsible for the operation of senior management incentive schemes throughout the Group In desigring an appropriate incentive
structure the Committee seeks to set challenging targets armed at the generation of sustained shareholder value

Duning the year the Committee made a number of key decisions
- Salary increase of 4% for 2012/13 Woe reported last year that following a comprehensive review the Committee had concluded that
an overall salary increase of 12% was required in order to restore remuneration packages to market competitive levels We also
raported that in view of the continuing sensitivity over executive pay and the need to show restraint we had decided to phase this
over twa years with a 8% increase in 2011 and a further 6% increase expected in 2012 i sull appropriate
- Whilst updated benchmarking indicates that an additional 6% increase remains reasonable the Committee has decided to restrict
this year s increase in basic salanes to 4% in view of the performance achieved during the year and also to take account of general
pay and conditions applying 1o other employees across the Group Thencrease will take effect on 1 September 2012 and the position
will be reviewed again next year
- No change to other elements of the Executive Directors’ remuneration packages The annual bonus opportunity for 201213
remains at 60% of salary for on-target performance nising to a maximum of 100% of salary for out-performance The long-term
incentive opportunity will also rermain at 100% of salary
- Incentive out-turns in 2011/12
- No bonus pay-out For the year ended 31 May 2012 we again focused the annual bonus on performance aganst three key
indicators profit beforetax net working capital and operating cantribution margin The performance targets were not met dunng
the year with the result that Executive Directors did not qualify for any part of their benus entitlement for the peniod
- No vesting under 2009 PSP awards The Group operates along-term incentive scheme linked to real growth in earmings per share
above a threshold Despite delivering strong results in the first two years of the three year performance penod periormance during
the most recent year was such that overall the rmumimum performance threshold was not met As aresult nene of the awards made
to Directors in 200911 respect of the three years ended 31 May 2012 will vest These awards will now lapse

I hepe you will find the Directors remuneration repont clear transparent and informative As always we remain committed to ongeing
dialogue with gur shareholders and take an active interest in your views and voting on the remuneration repart

Jamtes Steel
Remuneration Committee Chairman

Introduction

This report on Directors remuneration has been prepared in accordance with the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and satisfies the requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority
Aresolution to approve the report will be proposed at the 2012 Annual General Meeting

The information on pages 41 to 43 relating to Directors interests in shares under incentive arrangements remuneration during the year
ended 31 May 2012 and Directors pension benefits constitutes audited information

Remuneration Commisttee

The Remunearation Committee of the Board {the Committee) s responssible for determining and agreeing with the Board the
remuneration golcy for Executive Directers The Committee 15 also responsible for determimng wathin such policy the remuneration
packages of ndividual Executive Directors for determining the remuneration packages of the Chairman and the Cormpany Secretary
and for approving the design and operation of all Incentive schemes for the Executive Directors and senior management The
Committee meets at least iwice a year and met on five occasions dunng the year ended 31 May 2012 The Commuttee s current
Terms of Reference which are reviewed annually and were last revised in March 2012 are avallable on the Company s website
{www pzcussons com)

The members of the Commtttee during the year were Mr Steel{Committee Chairman) Professor Arnold Mr Heale Mr Lewis and
with effect from thewr appomntment on 1 January 2012 Ms Edozien and Mrs Owers Each s a Non-executive Director of the Company
and ail are iIndependent of management and have no conflicts of interest or any day-to-day invelvement in runming the business

The remuneration of the Non-executive Directors (with the exception of Mr Harvey as Non-executive Chairman) s determined by the
Board of Directors No Director is involved in any decisions on the level and composttion of his own remuneration

The Committee was advised generally in relation to Directors remuneration durning the year by Deloitte LLP Delontte LLP has also
provided tax advisory services to the Group Dunng the year the Committee consulted Mr Harvey {in his capacity as Chairmanjon
1ssues where his expenence and knowledge have been of benefit to its deliberattons and Mr Harvey attended meetuings by inwitation
The Chiet Executive has also been consulted on proposals relating 1o the remuneration of members of the Group s semior management
1eam and he too atiended meetings by inviiation Neither Mr Harvey nor the Chief Executive attend when the matters under
consideration concern their own personal remuneration The Global Human Resources Directer also attended meetings by invitation
The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Commuttee and attends Committee meetings (save where his own remuneration 1s
under consideration)
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Report on Directors’ remuneration
continued

Policy on Executiva Directors’ remuneration

The Group s policy 1s that the remuneration arrangements for Executive Directors should

- besufficient to recruit motivate and retain executives of the calibre required

- be aligned with the enhancement of sustainable shareholder value

- prowtde a competitive tevel of remuneration against companies of similar size and complexity

- be structured such that an appropriate praportion of the remuneration package links reward to corporate and individual performance
over the short medium and long term and

- recogmse the long-term amhitions of and risks inherent to the Company

The following table summarnses the key elements of the Executive Directors current remuneration packages

Element Commentary

Salary and benefits Basic salary varies by individual and will iIncrease by 4% with efiect from 1 September 2012
Benefits include hife assurance health insurance and car benefits

Pension benefits Company contnbution of 20% of salary to a defined contnbution pension scheme (or receipt of
cashinlieu) Membership of a defined benefit pension scheme closed to further accrual since
2008 butwith a continuing salary linkage until 31 May 2013

Annual bonus Maximum gpportunity of 100% of salary (with 60% of salary payable for on-target
performance} dependent upon prafit before taxation net worlang capital and operatng
contribution targets

Performance Share Plan Annual awards of nghts over shares werth 100% of salary with 25% vesting for growth in

adjusted earnings per share of RPI+4% per annum nising pro rata to 100% vesting for growth
in adjusted earnings per share of RPi+10% per annum 1n each case compounded over a three
year performance period

Shareholding guidelines Requirement over time to build up interests in the Company s shares worth 150% of salary and
to reinvest half of any atter-tax bonus or gain ansing fram share incentive plans unul the
guidelne 1s met

Service contracts One year rolling service contracts

In designing an appropriate mcentiva structure for the Executive Directars and other senior management the Committee seeks to set
challenging performance crntena which are aligned with the Group s business strategy and the enhancement of sustained shareholder
valua The Committee s also rmindful of the need to avoid inadvertently encouraging risky or irresponsible behaviour including
behawviour which could raise enviranmental social or governance 1Ssues

The Committee receives updates from the Global Human Resources Director on pay and employment conditions applying to other
Group employees these are taken into consideraiion when setting Executive Directors remuneration consistent with the Group s
general aim of seeking 1o reward all employees farrly according 1o the nature of their role their performance and market forces

Balance of fixed versus vanable remuneration

The Commuttee believes that an appropnate proportion of the executive remuneration package should be vansble and performance-
related 1n order 1o encourage and reward superior corporate and individual performance The following chart illustrates the balance
between fixed and vanable remuneration for Executive Directors based on the pokcy for 2012/13
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Basic salary and benefits

Executive Directors salanes are normally reviewed annually with effect from 1 September to ensure the ongoing effectiveness of
remuneration arrangements Reviews take account of various factors including individual performance remuneration levels in
companies of similar size and complexity and pay conditions elsewhere in the Group

In 2011 the Committee undertook a benchmarking review wath advice and assistance from Deloitte LLP which indicated that Executive
Directors remuneration packages had fallen below market competitive levels The Committee concluded that an overall salary Increase
of 12% was reguired but recogrising the continuing sensitivity over executive pay and the need for restraint, determined to phase this
salary increase over two years hmiung the increase in 2011 to 6% wath the balance expected to become effective from 1 September
2012:f stll considered appropriate at that time

Whilst updated benchmarking indicates that an additional 6% increase in 2012 remains reasonable the Committee has decided to
restnct this year s increase In basic salanes to 4% n view of the perfiormance achieved during the year and the general pay and
conditions applying to other Group employees The increase will take effect on 1 September 2012 and the position will be reviewed
again next year Other elements of the Executive Directors remuneration packages remain unchanged

Detalls of the Executive Directors revised salanes (effective from 1 September 2012} are set out In the notes to the table on Directors
remuneration on page 42

Taxable henefits which are subject to perodic review include life assurance health insurance and car bengfits

Pension benefits

Since 1 June 2008 Executive Directors have participated in a defined contributior pension scheme under which the Group pays a
contrioution of 20% of salary inte the scheme on their behalf subject to a minimum employee contribution of 5% of salary Executive
Directors whose pension benefits have exceeded or are forecast to exceed the annual or Iife time allowances established by HM
Revenue & Customs are eligible at the discretion of the Commuittee to receive a cash payment of 20% of salary in heu of employer
pension contributions

Up to 31 May 2008 Executive Directers participated in a defined benefit pension scheme which provided benefits of up to two thirds
of final salary subject to a scheme-specific earmings cap With effect from 1 June 2008 no further benefits accrue under the defined
benefit scheme although the benefits payable will remain linked to salary until 31 May 2013 in ine with arrangements pertaining to all
members of the scheme when 1t was closed to future accrual Further detail on Executive Directors benefits under the defined benefit
pension scheme are set out In the table on page 43

Annual bonus scheme

Executive Directors and key senior executives are generally eligible to participate in an annual bonus scheme Inrespect of the year
ended 31 May 2012 each of the Executive Directors participated in the Sentor Executive Annual Bonus Scheme pursuant to which
they were eligible to earn a cash bonus linked to performance targets established by the Committee For the year ended 31 May 2012
Executve Directors could receive a bonus of up to 100%' of basic salary fwith 60% of salary payable for on-target performance)
dependent upon the achievermeant of profit before taxation net working capital and aperating contribution margin targets These targets
and bonus levels were established at the beginning of the year no changes were made during the year

The performance targets were not met dunng the year and accerdingly no bonus payments were made to any of the Executive
Directors in respect of the year ended 31 May 2012

Each of the Executive Directors will continue to participate in the Senior Executive Annual Bonus Scheme in respect of the year ending
31 May 2313 The ehg:bility of the Executive Directors to earn a cash bonus in respect of that penod will also be dependent upon the
achievernent of certain profit before taxation net working capital and operating contnibution margin targets for the Group

The Senior Executive Annual Bonus Scheme was introduced with effect from 1.June 2010 and replaced an earler Deferred Annual
Share Bonus Scheme Under that earier scheme awards of deferred shares were made to Executive Directors following the aitainment
of pre-determined annual financial targets Vesting of such deferred shares was then subject to three years continuing employment
During the yvear ended 31 May 2012 each Executrve Director receved certain shares which had been the subject of earlier geferred
share awards in respect of performance for the year ended 31 May 2008 (each having satisfied the condition that he complete three
years of continuing employment from the date of grant of the award} Suificient shares to satisfy deferred share awards are generally
purchased in the market and retained in an employee benefit trust pending theyr transfer to participants Further details regarding the
employee benefii trust are given in note 25 of the consolidated financial statements

1 The maximum bonus opportunity avaitable under the Seniar Executive Annual Bonus Scheme may be exceeded in exceptional cases a1 the discretion of the
Committee The maximum bonus cpportunity was not exceeded dunng the year ended 31 May 2012
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Report on Directors’ remuneration
continued

Performance Share Plan

Executive Directors and certain key executives are also generally eligible to participate in the Performance Share Plan which provides
for the grant of conditicnal rights to receive shares subject to continued emptoyment over a ithrge year vesung pertod and the
satisfacuon of certain performance critenia estabhshed by the Committee Annual awards to any participant are imited to nghts over
shares with a market value at the ume of grant equal to 100% of basic salary’

The year ended 31 May 2012 represented the final year of the three year performance period for awards made under the Performance
Share Plan in 2009 Despite delivenng strong resulis in the first two years performance i the final year was such that overall the
minimurn performance threshotd was not met As a resull none of the awards made 1o the Executive Directors in 2009 in respect of
the three years ended 31 May 2012 wili vest and these awards will now lapse

During the year ended 31 May 2012 new awards were made to the Executive Directors over shares with a value egual to 100% of basic
salary These awards are subject to adjusted earnings per share growth targets measured over the single three year performance
percd commencing on 1 June 2011 The Commuittee considers adjusted earmnings per share to be anymportantinchcator of the
Company s underlying financial performance provtding a clear line of sight for executives between their performance and potential
reward Further details of these performance conditions are set out in the notes to the table setting out Director s interests in shares
under incentive arrangements on page 41

The Commuttee intands to make further awards to Executive Directors on the same basis duning the year ending 31 May 2013 Such
awards are expected to be subject to similar performance targets measured over a three year performance period commencing on
1June 2012

1 This percentage may baincreased to 150% in exceplional cases at the discretion of the Committee

Exacutive Share Option Scheme

Prior to the adoption by the Company of the Performance Share Plan in 2008 Executive Direclors and ceriain other senior executives
were generally eligible for the grant of opuons under the PZ Cussons Pic Executive Share Option Scheme There have been no grants of
options under the Executive Share Opuon Scheme since the introduction of the Performance Share Plan and 1t 15 not expected that any
further awards wifl be made under this scheme

All options granted under the Executive Share Option Scheme have now either vested (and are capable of exercise} ar have lapsed

Limits on shares issued to satisfy share incentive plans

The Company s share incentive plans may operata over new 1ssued Ordinary Shares treasury shares or Ordinary Shares purchased in
themarket Inrelation to all the Company s share incentive plans the Company may not in any ten year period issue (or grant nghts
requinng the1ssue of} more than 10% of the 1ssued Ordinary Share capital of the Company to satisfy awards to participants nor more
than 5% of the issued Ordinary Share capital for executive share plans

Shareholding guidelines for Directors

The Committee has estabhished Shareholding Ownership Guidehnes which require Executive Cirectors

- to build up and retain holdings of shares {and/or deferred shares net of tax) worth 150% of salary from ume to ime and

- untl this share ownership threshold 1s met 1o invest 50% of any after-tax bonus inio the Company s shares They are also required t0
retamn shares with a value equal 10 50% of the net gain after tax arising from the acquisition of shares pursuant 10 any of the
Company s share incentive plans again until the share ownership threshold 15 met

All Executive Directors have complied with the above guidelines in respect of the year ended 31 May 2012

Mr Harvey 1s also required under his letter of appointment to invest 20% of his fees each year n the purchase of shares in the Company
and to retain such shares dunng the term of his appointment

Non-executive Directors

Non-executive Directors fees are generally reviewed every two years the [ast such review having taken place with effect from 1 July
2010 There have been no changes in the fees payable duning the year and the next review (scheduled for 1 July 2012} has been deferred
untid 1 June 2013 Details of the fees paid duning the period are set out in the table on Directors remuneration on page 42

The following information on pages 41 to 43 compnises the auditable disclosures of the Report on Directors remuneration
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Director’s interests in shares under incentive arrangements
Detaills of awards at 1 June 2011 and 31 May 2012 to Executive Birectors ara as follows

Number of Number ot Market
optionsd options! Opuon prce at

awards at Granted/ Exercised/ awards at exercise date of Earbest Vesung/
tJune  allocated vested Lapsed 31 May price award date of Expiry transier
Director Date of award 201 In year In year nyear 2012 {E) [£3] anercise date date
G AKanellis 08 Sep 05' 184 500 - - - 184800 1298 - 08Sep08 08 Sep 15 -
34 Aug 06 23210 - - - 213 210 1407 - 31Aug09 31 Augib -
06 Aug 07' 197 309 - - - 197 309 16726 - 06 Aug10 06 Aug 17 -
01 Oct 08¢ 225750 - 225750 - - - 17275 - - -
28 Jul 09 192 170 - - - 192170 - 22375 - - 27-Jul 12
30 Jul 1¢? 131 633 - - - 131633 - 343 - - 29 Jul 13
28 Jul 11? - 127 320 - - 127 320 - 3r - - 28 Jul 14

21 Aug 08° 38 4B0 - 33 480 - - - 1725 - -
14-Aug 0%° 60 B40 - - - 60 840 - 2223 - - id Aug 12
02 Aug 107 85 380 - - - B5 380 - 3498 - - 02 Aug13
CGDavis 31 Aug 06 71070 - - - 71070 1407 - 31Aug 09 31 Aug 1B -
06 Aug 07 333 539 - - - 131539 16725 - 06 Aug10 06 Aug 17 -
01 Oct 087 141 820 - 143 B20 - - - 17275 - - -
28 Jul-0% 122 900 - - - 122900 - 22375 - - 27 Jul 12
30 Juil 107 84184 - - - B4184 - 343 - - 29 Jul13
28 Jul 1?7 - 80 500 - - 80900 - 377 - - 28 Jul 14
21 Aug 08? 13 880 - 198380 - - - 1725 - - -
14 Aug 09° 38220 - - - 38220 - 2229 - - 14 Aug 32
02 Aug 19* 54 600 - - - 54 600 - 3438 - - 0ZAug1d
BH Leigh o1 Oc, 0B? 138 920 - 138 920 - - - 17275 - - -
28 Jul Q¥ 120 670 - - - 120 670 - 212375 - - 27 Jul12
30 Jul 18¥ 82653 - - - 82653 -~ 343 - - 29 Jul 13
28 Junii? - 78570 - - 74570 - 377 - - 28 Jul 14
21-Aug 08? 23320 - 23320 - - - 1725 - - -
14 Aug 09 37440 - - - 37440 - 2229 - - 14 Aug 12
02 Aug 10° 53 610 - - - 53610 - 3408 - - 02 Aug 13
J Pantelireis 08 Sep 05' 138 670 - - - 138670 1298 - 0895ep08 08 Sep-15 -
31 Aug 06 132 190 - - - 132190 1407 - 3Aug 09 3 Aug1s -
06 Aug 07" 117189 - - - 117189 16725 - 06 Aug10 0B Aug 17 -
01 Oct 08 127350 - 127 350 - - - 17275 - - -
28 Jul-0¥ 105 020 - - - 105020 - 22375 - - 27 Jul12
30 Jul ¥ 7¢939 - - - 719339 - 343 - - 29 Juk13
28 Jul 11? - §9 360 - - 69360 - 377 - - 28 Jul 14
21 Aug 0B 22 B850 - 22850 - - - 1725 - - -
14 Aug g9 34320 - - - 34320 - 2229 - - 14augl2
02 Aug 10° 46 660 - - - 46 660 - 3498 - - 02Aug13

Awarded under the PZ Cussons Plc Executive Share Option Scheme All awards have now vested and are capable of exercise

Awarded under the PZ Cussons Plc Performance Share Plan The vesuing of each award s dependent upen the extent to which an adjusted earnings per share
growth target s achueved aver a single three year performance penod No proportion of an award may vest unless the Company s adjusted earungs per share
g7ows by atleast RP) + 4% per annum compounded over the relevant performance genod 25% of the award will vest where adjusted earnings per share grows
by RPI + 4% per annum rising on a straight line pro rata basis to 100% vesting where adjustad earnings per share grows by APi + 10% per annum or better
compounded over the perfarmance penod Whete awards vest particspants will also receve a payment {in cash and/or shares as determined by the
Remunerauan Commiztea) on ar shortly following vestuing of an amount equivalent to the dvidends which would have been paid on those shares betwesn the
uma when the awards were granted and the umewhen they vest The msmmum parformance conditions relating to the awards made 1n 2009 m respect of the
three years ended 31 May 2012 have not baan attained with the result that the awards will lapse in their entirety

Awarged under the Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scheme following the attainment of pre determined financial targets Deferred shares will normally be
receved by participants follewing and condiional only upan three yvears of continuing employment from the date of the grant of the award

The aggregate gross gains made by the Directors on the exercise of share options under the PZ Cussons Executive Share Option
Scheme durning the year were £ml {2011 £734,132} The gains are calculated based on the market price at the date of exercise for share
options although the shares may have been retained and no gain reahsed

The aggregate gross gains made by the Directors during the year on the vesting of the Performance Share Plan award made in 2008
was £2 122 096 The gamns are calcutated based on the market price at the date of vesting although the shares may have been retained
and no gain realised

The market value of the Company s shares at 31 May 2012 was £3 23 per share The range durning the year was £2 85to £3 B8
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Report on Directors’ remuneration
continued

Performance graph

The graph below iflustrates the performance of PZ Cussons Ple measured by Total Shareholder Return (TSR} over the five year perniod
to 31 May 2012 against the TSR of a holding of shares in the FTSE 250 index over the same period based onan inttial investment of
£100 The FTSE 250 1ndex has been chosen as PZ Cussons Plc 1s a constituent of that index
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Remuneration during the year ended 31 May 2012
The following table shows the remuneration of individual Directors for the year ended 31 May 2012

Pension Taxable 2012 2011
Salary/tees Bonus  contnbutiens' benelits Total? Total
Executive Directors®

G AKanells 472 B75 - 94 575 29586 597,036 850955
CGDawis 300 937 - BB 314 17073 376,324 414750
BHLegh 295 875 - 59175 17 073 372123 407555
J Pantelireis 257812 - 51662 17073 328,447 356843

Non-executive Directors
R J Harvey 250 000 - - - 250,000 250000
JAAmold 52 500 - - - 52,500 51875
N Edozien® 21875 - - - 21,875 -
SJINHeale 52 500 - - - 52,500 51458
DW Lewis 52 500 - - - 52,500 51875
H Owers?® 21875 - - - 21,875 -
JTJSteel 52 500 - - - 52,500 51875
1831249 - 263626 80 B05 2175680 2287186

1 Withetffect frem 1June 2008 the Execuuve Directers became eligible for membership of the Cempany s new defined contnbution pension arrangement
Messrs Kanellis Leigh and Panteliress have each elected with the permission of the Committee torecevenstead a salary supplement egurvalent to 20% of
base salary these amounts are included in the column headed Pensicn Contributions Mr Dawvis continues to particrpate in the defined contribution pension
arrangement but as the amount of Company contributions was less than 20% of his salary due to fegislation intraduced in the Finance Bill 2011 the difference
beiween those contnbuuons and 20% of his base salary was paid as a salary supplement Both the penston contributions and the salary supplement are incluced
inthe column headed Pension contributions

2 Inaddition to the abova Executive Directors receved the following cash payments during the year in lieu of didends on past awards of deferred shares
made under the Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scheme which have not yet vested MrKanelks £11548 MrDawis £7126 Mrleigh £7162 and Mr Pantelireis
£6 464 The Executve Directors also receved the following cash payments durning the year m beu of dividends accrued under the PZ Cussons Pic Performance
Share Plan in respect of the award mage in October 2008 which vested in October 2011 Mr Kanellis £40 138 MrDawis £25 215 Mr Leigh £24 689 and
Mr Pantelirels £22 642

3 Asreported on page 39 the annual salanes of the Executive Diectors will be revised with effect from 1 September 2012 The fellowing annual salartes will apply
MrKanelis £489 200 MrDawis £317 200 Mrlesgh £312 000 and Mr Pantelreis £271 880

4 Ms Edozien and Mrs Owers were each appointed to the Board on 1 January 2012 at annual fees of €52 500 The fees payable in respect of Ms Edczien are paid to
her employer
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Directors’ pension benefits

The fallowing Executive Directors were members of the defined benefi pension arrangements provided by the Company All of these
defined benefit plans were closed to future accrual on 31 May 2008 and replaced by defined contnbution arrangementis Benefits
built up in the defined benefit plans will continue to recerve a salary link unul 31 May 20113 or the date that each Director leaves
employment with the Company if sconer The pension entitlements and comresponding transfer values below relate solely to the
defined benefit arrangements

Increase in Value ot net
Gross aceruad increase Value ot Valueo! Totalchangs
Increase in pension nat Totalaccrued pensionover accrued acecrued invalye
accrued of inflation pension at penod pensian at pensionat  dunng panod
pension al 31 May 2012 by 31May2091 31 May 2012 i)
fpa £pa Lpa £ £ £ [
G AKanelis 15085 7133 303428 115100 4344000 4896000 552000
CGDawvis 14090 451 24243 8300 395000 444000 45 000
BHLeigh 4918 2126 106022 23000 1252000 1448000 186000
J Pantelreis 6 498 2885 137 320 67700 2979000 3214000 235000

Notes

1 Pension accruals shown arg the amounts which would be paid arnually on retirerment based on service to the plan closure date {31 May 2008} and pensionable
salanes at 31 May 2012

2 Transfer values relating to benefils accrued in the Directars and expatrtale pension plans have beaen calcutated in accordance with the mathed and basis

determined by the Trustee of each plan on the advice of therr actuary to be consistent with current lagislation and the rules of the plans Transfer values relating

to unfunded pension benetits [see note 5) have baen calculated using a method and basis consistent with these used for the funded plans
3 The value of netincreasa (b} represents the iIncremantal value to the Director of his Increasa in pension over the yeas calculated on the assumptian that he left
employment with the Company at the year end Ites based on the accrued pension increase (a)

4 Thechange In the transfer value (¢} Includes the effect of fluctuations in the transter value due to factors beyond the control of the Company and Directors Such

factors include mortality assumptions (which ware revised by the Trustees of each plan duning the year following a raview of the transfer value bases) and gilt
yield movements

5 The Company provides unfunded unapproved pension benefits for Messes Leigh and Davis as thews benefits would have been subject to the intand Revenue
earnings cap introduced by the Finance Act 1889 had the earnings cap not been abolished by the Finance Act 2004 The funded benetits payabla to these
Directors remain subject to a scheme specific earnings cap which increases each year and 1s calculaied in a ssimilar mannet to the abolished statutory earnings
cap The above figures ;nclude both the funded and unfunded pension benefits

6 Massrs Pantelireis and Kanellis ara formet members of the expatrate pension scheme operated by the Company and addiional benefits are provided through
that scheme as their beneiins would have been subject to the Inland Revenue earnings cap nroduced by the Finance Act 1989 had the earnings cap not been
abolished by the Finance Act 2004 The above figures are inclusive of the expatnate pension scheme henefits

7 TheCompany operates a ¢efined contribution pensicn arrangement for current service Partictpation in the arrangement I1s optional and only Mr Davis chosa 1o
participate during the year The contributions paid to the arrangement duning the year by the Company inrespect of Mr Davis was £34 065 These centnibutions
are included in the Pensrons Contributions column of the table on Directors remuneration on page 42

8 AsMessrs Pantelireis Leigh and Kanelits chose not to participate m the defined contribution arrangement during the year they recewed a salary supplement
equivalent to 20% of base salary in lieu of pension provision As the amount of contnbutions paid 10 the defined contribution arrangement by the Company in

respect of Mr Davis were lass than 20% of his salary due to legislauon introduced in tha Finance Bill 2011 tha difference between those contributions and 20% of

his base salaty was paid as a salary supplement These contnbutions are also included in the Pensions Coninbutions column of the table on Directors
remuneration on page 42
9 Voluntary coninbutons paid by Directors and resulting benefits are not shown

Service contracts
Executive Directors have one year rolling service contracts No Executive Director including those proposed for re-election hasa

service contract with a notice period in excess of one year or contaning any provision for pre-deterrmined compensation on termunation

exceeding one year s salary and benefits tn kind
No Executive Directors hold any other positions outside the Group
Non-executive Directors do not have service contracts but are appoinied for imtial penods of three years normally renewable on a

similar basis The present letters of appointment for Professor Arnold Ms Edozien Mr Heale Mr Harvey Mrs Owers and Mr Steel wili
expire on 31 December 2012 31 December 2014 31 December 2013 31 December 2012 31 Decemnber 2014 and 30 September 2014

respectively Whilst the letier of appointment of Mr Lewts formally expires gn 31 May 2013 he has indicated hus intention to step down

from the Board at the Company s AGM {Annual General Meeting}in 2012
By order of the Board of Directors
James Steel

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
24 July 2012
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Report on corporate governance

The Board 1s committed to meeting the standards of good corporate governance as estabhshed by the Financial Reporting Council
from ume to time |n respect of the year ended 31 May 2012 the UK Corporate Governance Code published in June 2010 {the Code)
was applied by the Company The Code Is publicly available on the Financial Reporting Council s website (www frc org uk)

This report, together with the Report on Directors’ remuneration in respect of remuneration matters describes how the Board apphied
the Code during the year under review

Board evaluation

Composition and independence

As at the date of this report the Board of Directors has 11 members compnsing the Non-executive Chawrman, the Chief Executive three
other Exacutive Directors and six Non-executive Directors The names of the Directors together with their brographical details are set
out on pages 32 to 33 The size of the Board allows individuals to communicate openly and to make a persagnal contnibution through the
exercise of their indsvidual skills and experience

The Non-executive Directors have been appointed for therr specific experience and expertise and are all considered to be independent
of management and free from any business or other relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of their ndependent
judgement Mr Harvey 1s a Non-executive Director of Jardine Lloyd Thompson Ple which acts as insurance broker to the Company

Mr Lewss 1s a former partner of Addleshaw Goddard LLP which acts as legal advisor to the Company The level of fees payable to each
of Jardina Lloyd Thempson Plc and Addleshaw Goddard LLP 1s not matenal and the Board 1s wholly satisfied that it 1s appropnate to
designats each of Mr Harvey and Mr Lewis as independent Neither of them partcipated in any way in the provision of services by

the relevant supplier to the Company In addition in order that his independence 1s not compromised if at any ume the Board or a
Commuttee of the Board 1s considering any matter concerning one of the suppliers 1t has been agreed that the relevant individual

will withdraw from that meeting until such matters have been dealt with

Mr Lewis\is the Sentor Independent Non-executive Director and in this capacity he is avalable to shareholders if they have concerns
which contact through the normal channels of Chatrman Chief Executive or Group Finance Director has failed to resolve or for which
such contact 1s Inappropriate After eight years servige 1o the Beard with effect from the 2012 Annual General Meeting Mr Lewis will
retire and Mr Steel will be appointed Senior independent Non-executive Director

Non-executive Directors may serve on the boards of other companies provided that this does not involve a conflict of interest and that
the appointment does not restrict therr alility to discharge their duties to the Company in any way

As set out in the Report of the Drrectors the Board has resolved to comply with the provisions of the Code and each Director will seek
re-election annually

The Executive Directors service contracts and the letters setting out the terms of appointment of the Non-executive Directors are
avallable for inspection at the Company s registered office dunng normal business hours and at the Annual General Meeting

Diversity

The Company supports the Code provision that Boards should consider the benefits of diversity mcluding gender when making
appointments and 15 committed to ensunng diversity not just at Board level but also across the Company s senior management (eam
not least because it believes that business benefits from the wrdest range of perspectives and backgrounds The Company sam as
regards the composition of the Board 1s that it should have a balance of expenence skills and knowledge to enable each Director and
the Board as a whele to discharge their duties efiectively Whilst the Company agrees that itis entirely appropriate that it should seek
to have diversity on its Board it does not consider that this can be best achieved by establishing specific quotas and targets and
appointments will continue to be made based wholly on ment

Further details on diversity within the business are set outin the CSR report on pages 20 to 31

Performance evaluation
Effectiveness reviews of the Board and its committees are carned out annually The results are raviewed by the Chairman of the Board
or Board committee discussed in a formal meeting and any appropriate recemmendations are recorded and acted upon

The review pracess which was undertaken during the year concluded that all Directors continue to contnbute effectively and with
proper commitrment devotng adequate bme to carry out therr duties The performance of the Non-executive Directors 1s evaluated
separately by the Executve Directors The Remuneration Committee reviews Executive Directors performance with guidance from
the Chief Executive lother than in respect of his own positron)
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Operation of the Board
The Board 1s responsible for the Group s strategic development manitoring its business objectives and maintaining a system of
effective corporate governance

Six formal meetings of the Board were scheduled duning the year and the Directors met on a number of further accasions as necessary
to consider specific matters ansing and to review and develop the Company s corporate strategy

The differing roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive are acknowledged and set out in terms of reference which have been adopted
by the Board The Chairman 1s primanly responsible for the runming of the Board and ensuring that 1t1s supplied in a imely manner wath
sufficient information to enable it to discharge its duties The Chief Executive s responsible for coordinating the running of the business
and implementing Group strategy

All Directors communicate with each other on a regular basis and have regular and ready access to members of the Group s
managerment tearn Sentor executives areinviled o attend Board meetings to make presentations on specific matlers or projects
Board papers are prepared and issued to all Directors in good time pnor to each Board meeting to enable Directors to give due
consideration to all matters in advance of the meeting During the year the Board has maintained an understanding of the views of
major shareholders through face to face meetngs and briefings from the Company s brokers

The Board has adopied formal procedures for Directors to take iIndependent professional advice where necessary at the Company s
expense and each Director has full access to the services of the Company Secretary who 1s also responsible for ensuring that Board
precedures and all applicabte rules and regulations are followed

The Board has an appraved and documented schedule of matters reserved for its decrsion ncluding approval of the Group s strategy
annual budgets matenal agreerments and major capiial expenditure and acquisitions the approval of financial arrangements and the
manttoring of performance health safety and environmental matters and nsk management procedures

The Beard has alsc adopted a formal induction process for Directors including wisits to pnncipal sites and meetings with operating
management Directors may take additienal training where necessary as part of their continuing development at the expense of
the Company

Committees of the Board

The Board has established a number of standing commuttees to which various matters are delegated according to defined terms of
reference The terms of reference of the commitiees are available on the Company s website (www pzcussons com}and will also be
available at the Annual General Meeting Details of the principal standing cammittees of the Board are set out as follows

Normunation Committee

The Nemination Committee 1s responsible for regularly reviewing the structure size and composition of the Board and identifying and
recommending approprate candidates for membership of the Board when vacancies anse Dunng the year ended 31 May 2012 the
Committee members were Mr Harvey (Committee Chairman) Professor Arnold MrHeale MrKanellis MrLewis MrSteel and with
effect from therr appointment to the Board on 1 January 2012 Ms Edozien and Mrs OQwers The Company Secretary 1s secretary 10
the Committee

Dunng the year the Committee undertook the process of identifying new independent Non-executive Directors culminating in the
appointment to the Board of Ms Edozien and Mrs Owers In considenng these appointments the Norminatton Committee evaluated
the balance of skills knowledge and expenence of the Board and prepared a description of the role and capabilries required External
search agencies were engaged and a number of short-listed candidates were then invited 1o interview with members of the Commitiee
(Other members of the Board were then given the opportunity of meeting with Ms Edozien and Mrs Owers following which the Board
approved ther appointments

Remuneration Commuittee

The Remuneration Committee Is responsible for reviewing and recommending the framework and policy for remunerauon of the
Executive Birectors and semior executives which the Board as a whole s responsible for approving The Commiitee members are
Mr Steel {Commuitiee Chairman) Professor Arnold MrHeale MrLewis and wath effect from their appointment to the Board an

1 January 2012 Ms Edczien and Mrs Owers The Company Secretary 1s secretary 1o the Commutiee

The Remuneration Committee 1s responsibla for evaluaung the performance and determining specific remuneration packages for
each Executive Director the Chairman and the Company Secretary With the exception of the Non-executive Chairman the fees of
the Non-executive Direciors are determined by the Executive Directors

Further details of the Commuttee s responsibilties and actvities during the year are set out in the Report on Directors remuneration
on pages 371043
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Report on corporate governance
continued

Audit Committee

The Audit Commuttee 1s responsible for reviewing on behalf of the Board the Group s accounting and financial pohicies and its
disclosure practices internal controls internal audit and risk management ILis also responsible for overseeing all matters associated
with the appointment terms remuneration and performance of the external auditor and for reviewang the scope and results of the audil
and its cost effectiveness These responsibilities are discharged at the Audit Committee meetings and through regular reports from the
internal audit funcuon The Audit Commuittee comprises Professor Arnold (Committee Chairman) Mr Heale MrLewis Mr Steel and
with effect from their appointment to the Board on 1 January 2012 Ms Edozien and Mrs Owers The Commitiee meeis regularly with
the external auditor Professor Arnold a qualfied chartered accountant brings recent and relevant financial expenence to the Audit
Commuiitee The Company Secretary Is secretary to the Committee

As indicated above one of the duties of the Audit Committea Is to make recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment
of the external auditor Vanous factors are takan into account by the commitiee in assessing whether to recommend the auditer for
reappointment These include the quality of the reports provided to the Audit Commitiee and the Board and the level of understanding
demonstrated of the Group s business

PrcewaterhouseCoopers LLP {PwC} has been the Group s external auditors since 2007 In the opinion of the Audit Commuttee the
relationship with the auditors continues to operate effectively and the Committea remains sausfied with their independence To date the
Committee has not considered it necessary for PwC to retender for the audit engagement Itis however a reguirernent that the audit
partner responsible for the audit rotates every five years and accardingly the current tead audit partner, who has been in place since 2007
will rotate at the end of this current audit cycle There are no contractual obligattons restricting the Company s choice of auditors

The Group has a policy governing the conduct of non-audit work by the auditor The auditor 1s permitted to pravide non-audit services
which are not and are not percesved to be in conflict with auditor independence providing it has the skill competence and integnty to
carry out the work and 1S considered 10 be the most appropriate to undertake such work in the best inierests of the Group Assignments
with a value of £50 000 or more must be submitted to the Committee and activities which may be percewved to be in conflict with the
role of the external auditor must be submiited to the Commuttee for approval prior to engagement regardless of the amounts inveolved
All assignments are monitored by the Committee Details of the amounts paid to the external auditor duning the year for audit and other
services are set out in note 4 to the financial statements

Group Risk Committee

The Group Risk Committee is responsible for identifying assessing and prioritising all material nsks facing the Group and ensuring
where possible that appropriate action 1s taken to manage and mitigate those nsks The nsk areas which the Committee reviews
includes general business risk Including nsk ansing qut of the external financial environment, product safety nsk physical asset nisk
including factory health and safety and environmental nisks 1T and infrastructure nsks At least once a year the Board as a whole
reviews any matenal nsks facing the Group and the output of this review forms the basis of the work undertaken by the Commuttee
during the year

The Committee 1s responsible for developing and supporting the activities necessary to convert an approved framework of nsk imits
and nsk appetite policies into an effective plan for implementation across the Group This s achieved by ongoing review to develop
and implement plans to eliminate reduce o transfer nsk where practicable The Committee 15 alse responsible for reviewing the rnsk
management and control processes within the Group and encouraging and supporting two-way cornmunications of nsks both within
the business and with external stakeho!ders including sharehalders supplers and customers

The Group Risk Committee compnses Professor Arnold {Committee Chairman) MrDavis Mr Harvey MrHeale Mr Kanelis Mr Leigh
Mr Lewas Mr Pantelireis Mr Steel and with effect from thew appoimtment to the Board on 1 January 2012 Ms Edozien and Mrs Owers
The Company Secretary 1s secretary to the Comrmuttee It reporis formally to the Board after each meeting Ithas authanty to obtain
external advice as considered appropnate and the Board has resolved that it should be provided with suthicient resources to undertake
fully 1ts responsimliuies

The Board undertakes annually a formal review of the isk management process and the performance of the Group Risk Commuitiee

CSR Commuittee

The CSA Commuitee is responsible for reviewing and developing the Company s corporate strategy to ensure that CSR1s an integral
part of the strategy and that the Group s social environmental and economic acuvities are aligned The CSR Committee s also
responsible for the development of policies on all key areas of CSR including the environment health and safety consumer safety
bustness conduct and ethics employess and local community and chanty Further details of the Committee’s terms of reference and
actwvities duning the year are set out in the Corporate social responsibiity report on pages 20 to 31

The CSR Commutiee comprises Mr Heale (Committee Chairmany} Professor Arnold MrDavis MrHarvey MrKanelhs MrLeigh Mr
Lewrs Mr Pantelireis Mr Steel and with effect from their appointment to the Board on 1 January 2012 Ms Edozien and Mrs Owers
The Company Secretary 1s secretary io the CSR Commuttee The Committee reports formally to the Board afier each meeting it has
autharity to obtain external advice as considered appropniate and the Board has resolved that it should be provided wath sufficient
resources to undertake fully its responsibiliues
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Attendance at meetings

The number of scheduted meetings of the Board (excluding such ad hoc meetings as were necessary dunng the year to address specific
matters ansing) and of each of the Audit Remuneration Nomunation Group Risk and CSR Committees during the year ended 31 May 2012
together with a record of the attendance of the cument Directors who are their respective members 15 detatled in the table below

Remunera.ion
Board Audit Cammittee Committee Nomination Committee  Group Risk Committee CSR Committae

Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
meenhngs Numberof meetings Numberot meatngs Numberof meeungs Numbero! meetings Numberof meetings MNumberof
ehgible .o meeungs ebgbleto  meelngs  ehgblato  meetngs  elgbletc meeungs elgibleto mesungs  elgiblete  meeungs

attend  attended attend  attended attend  attended attend  attended artend  attended attend  attended
Mr R Harvey 6 6 nfa n/a nfa nfa 2 2 4 4 3 3
Mr G A Kanellis 6 B nfa n/a nfa nfa 2 2 4 4 3 3
MrC G Dawis <] 6 nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa 4 4 3 3
Mr B H Leigh 6 6 nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa 4 4 3 3
MrJ Pantelireis 6 6 n/a nfa nfa nfa n/a n/a 4 4 3 3
Mr D W Lewis 6 6 4 4 5 5 2 2 4 4 3 3
Prof J A Arnold 3] 6 4 4 5 5 2 2 a4 4 3 3
Ms N Edozien 3 3 2 2 3 3 o] 0 2 2 1 1
MrS.JN Heale 6 6 4 4 5 5 2 2 4 4 3 3
Mrs H Owers 3 3 2 2 3 3 0 ) 2 2 1 1
MrJ TJ Steel 6 6 4 4 5 5 2 2 4 4 3 3
Notes

n/a indicates that the Director 1s not a member of the Commities
No Director participates in mestings when matters relating to him are betng discussed

Remuneration
Details of Directors remuneration are set out in the Report on Directors remuneration

Business model
Information on PZ Cussons business model and strategy for generating and preserving longer-term growih and delivering on the
Company s stated objectives 1s set out In pages 6 to 7 of the Annual Report and Accounts

Going concern

The Greup s business activilies together with the factors lkely to affectits future development performance and position are set out
In the Business review The financtal positon of the Group and iquidity position are descnbed within the Financial review In addition
note 18 to the financial statements includes pelicies in relatien to the Group s financial instruments and nsk management and policies
for managing credit risk hquidity market risk foretgn exchange nsk price nisk and mterest rate risk

After making enquines the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources 1o
continue In cperational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly they continue to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng
the Annual Report and Accounts

Internal control

The Board 1s responsible for the Group s system of internal control and for reviewing 11s effectiveness Such a system s designed to
manage rather than eiminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss

The Board 1s of the view that there 1s an ongoing process for identifying evaluating and managing the Group s significant nsks that it

has been in place for the year ended 31 May 2012 and up to the date of the Annual Report and Accounts that it1s regularly reviewed by

the Board and that it accords with the Turnbull guidance for Directors on the Code Tha process includes

frequent comrmunication between the Board and the Group Risk Committee and subsidiary management on all critical business issues

- regular visits to operating units by the Board head office management and internal audit

- adetailed system of budgeting reporuing and forecasting

- regular review by the Board and Group Risk Commitiee of nisk throughout the Group and the sk management processes in place and

- taking necessary action to remedy any significant weaknesses found as part of the review of the elfectiveness of the internal
control system

Throughout the year the Board has carned out assessments of internal control by considenng documeniation from the Executive
Directors Audit Committee and internal audit function as well as taking into consideration events since the yearend The internal
controls extend to the financial reporting process and the preparation of consolidated accounts The basis for the preparation of
consolidated accounts Is as set out In note 1 to the financial statements

PZ Cussons Plc
Annual Report & Accounts 2012

47




Report on corporate governance
continued

The Group continues to take steps to embed internal control and nsk management further into the operations of the business and to
deal with areas for imprevemeant which come to the attention of management and the Board The Group has ethical guidehines and
defined fraud reporung and whistleblowing processes which are 1ssued to all employees within the Group

Relations with shareholders
Inits financial reporuing to shareholders the Board aims to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group s financial
position and prospects

The Company maintains a corporate website (www pzcussons com) containing a wide range of information of interest to insututional
and private investors and a subscription e-mail service 1s available which enables access to Company notifications and news releases

The Company has penodic discussions with institutional shareholders an a range of issues affecting the Group s performance The Board
15 also kept Informed of investors views through regular discussion of analysts and brokers briefings and investor opinion feedback

All shareholders including privaie investors have an opportunity to present questions to the Board at the Annual General Meeting and
the Directors make themselves avatlable to meet informally with shareholders after the meeting

General meetings of shareholders

The business to be conducted at the Annual General Meeting of the Company 1s set out in the separate Notice of Annual Generat
Meetng which accompanies the Annual Report and Accounts Resolutions put before shareholders at the Annual General Meeting will
usually include resolutions for the appointment of Directors approva) of the Report on Directors remuneration, declaration of the final
dividend and authonsation for the Board to allot and repurchase shares Voting at the Annual General Meeting 1s on a show

of hands and after each show of hands details of all proxy votes lodged for and against each resolution and the number of abstentions
are disclosed

At each Annual General Meeting there 1s an update on the progress of the business over the last year and also on current trading
conditions

Comphance statement

The Directors consider that the Company complied with the provisions of section 1 of the Code with the following exception

- Code Provision E 11 The Code specifies that the Senior Independent Director shou!d atiend suffigent meetings with a range of
major shareholders to develop a balanced understanding of the tssues and concerns of major shareholders The Senior Independent
Director met a limited number of shareholders during the year but shareholders are afforded the oppartunity to meet or consult with
hirn at therr discrebion in the event that they have any questions comments or concerns and he s available to speak to all
sharenolders at the Company s Annual General Meeung
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responstble for preparing the Annual Report the Report on Directors remuneration and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financal year Under that law the Directors have prepared

the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adepted by the European

Union and the Parent Company financial statements in accerdance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

{United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law} Under Company taw the Directors must not approve the financial

statements unless they are satishied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the

profit o7 loss of the Group for that peniod In preparing these financial statements the Directors are required to

- select surtable accountng policies and then apply them consistently

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

- state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed subject to
any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the Group and Parent Company financial statements respectively and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s Inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue
In business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable them

1o ensure that the financial statements and the Report on Directors remuneration comply with the Companies Act 2006 and as regards
the Group financial statements Article 4 of the |AS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and otherirregulanities

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company s website www pzcussons com Legislauonin the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Each of the Directors whose names and functions are histed on pages 32 to 33 confirm that to the best of their knowledge

- the Group financial statements which have been prepared in accardance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU give a true and fair view
of the assets labiities financiat pesition and profit of the Group and

- the Report of the Directors includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Group
together with a description of the principal nsks and uncertainties thatst faces

By order of the Board
Mr S PPlant

Company Secretary
24 July 2012
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
PZ Cussons Plc

We have audited the Group financial statements of PZ Cussons Plc for the year ended 31 May 2012 which compnse the Consolidated
mcome staternent Consolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome, Consolidated batance sheet, Consolidated statement of
changes in equity Consolidated cash flow statermment and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been appled
in their preparation 1s apphcable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umian

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully In the Statement of Directors Responsibilities set out on page 49 the Directors are responsibte for the
preparation of the Group financial statements and for being satishied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and
express an cpinien on the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Iretand) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report including the opintens has been prepared for and anly for the Company s members as a body in accerdance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, In giving these opinions accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands It may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior cansent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the ameunts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate 1o the Group s circumstances and have been consistently appled and
adequately disclosed the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors and ihe overall presentation of
the inancial statements In addition we read all the financial and non-financiat information in the Annual Report and Accounts to
wenufy matenal inconststencies with the audited frinancial statements If we become aware of any apparent maternal misstatements
or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our opimon the Group financial statements

- gwe a true and farr view of the state of the Group s affairs as at 31 May 2012 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended
- have been properly prepared in accordance with {FRSs as acdopted by the European Umion and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compantes Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Optnion on other matter prescrtbed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

- theinformation grven in the Report of the Directors for the financial year forwhich the Group financial statements are prepared s
consistent with the Group financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report sn respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required 10 report to youif in our opinion

- cenain disclosures of Directors remuneration specified by law are not made or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

- the Directors statermenti set out on page 47 In relation to going concern

- the part of the Corperate Governance Statement relating to the Company s compliance with the nine provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified for pur review and

- certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on Directors’ remuneration

Cther matter
We have reported separately on the Parent Company financial statements of PZ Cussons Plc for the year ended 31 May 2012 and on the
information in the Report of Directors remuneration thatis descnbed as having been audited

Nicholas Baden (Semor Statutory Auditor}

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Manchester

24 July 2012

PZ Cussons Plc
Annual Report & Accounis 2012




Consolidated income statement
Year ended 31 May 2012

Year enced 31 May 2012 Yaar endad 31 May 2011
Before Exceptional Before  Exceptional
exceptional itams exceptional 1tems.
items {note 3} Total tems (note 3} Total
No.es £m Em Em £m £m £€m

Continuing operations
Revenue 2 858 ¢ - 8589 8207 - 8207
Cost of sales {549 7} - {548 7 {495 5} - {495 B)
Gross profit 3092 - 3092 3252 - 3252
Selling and distribution costs {134 0} - (134 0 (135 0) - (135 0}
Administrative expenses {818) {43 8) {125 4) (82 5) 08) (83 3}
Share of results of joint ventures 12 {0 2} - (02) 04 - 04
Operating profit 2 934 (43 8) 486 1081 08 1073
Finance income 25 - 25 34 - 34
Finance costs {36) - {3 6} (2 6} - {26)
Net finance (expense)income 3] 11 - 11} 08 - 08
Profit before taxation 923 {43 8} 485 108 9 (0 8} 1081
Taxation 7 (24 9) 144 (105) {30 2) 20 {28 2)
Profit for the year 4 674 {29 4) 380 787 12 799
Attrnibutable to
Equity holders of the Company 9 631 287 344 692 12 704
Non-controlling interests 43 {07} 36 95 - 95

674 {29 4} 380 787 12 798
Basic EPS {p) 9 803 16 48
Diluted EPS (p} g 799 16 29
Adjusted basic EPS {p} 9 1474 16 20
Adjusted diluted EPS (p) g 14 65 1602
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 31 May 2012

2012 2011
Notes &m £m
Profit for the year 380 799
Other comprehensive expense
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension schemes 23 {115) 33
Exchange differences on translaton of foreign operations 21 (33 6)
Cash flow hedges - tair value {loss)/gain in year {¢7 i8
Taxation on items taken directly to equity 28 04
Other comprehensive expanse for the year net of taxation (73] 34 7)
Total comprehensive income for the year 307 452
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the Company 233 456
Non-controlling inieresis 74 {0 4}
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Consolidated balance sheet
At 31 May 2012

31 May 31 May
2012 201
Notes Em £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets 10 248 4 2339
Property plant and equipment " 2095 2257
Qther investments 13 05 H3)
Net iInvestment in joint ventures 12 387 208
Receivables 15 10 08
Retirement benefit surplus 23 391 393
5372 5211
Current assets
Inventones 14 1736 1817
Trade receivables and prepayments 15 1410 155 8
Investments 16 70 06
Cash and cash equivalents 17 659 887
Current taxation recevable 58 06
3933 4174
Total assets 9305 9385
Equity
Qrdinary share capntal 24 43 43
Caputal redermption reserve 07 07
Hedging reserve (1] 03
Currency translation reserve 284 301
Retaned earnings 4250 4386
Equity attnbutable to equity holders of the Company 458 3 474 Q
Non-controlling interests 612 611
Tota! equity 5195 5351
Liabilities
Non-current iabiltties
Borrowings 18 - 150
Other liabilties 20 09 22
Deferred taxauon habilines 21 506 587
Retirernent benefit obligations 23 kYR 459
886 178
Current liabilities
Borrowings 18 908 325
Trade and other payables 18 1520 2123
Current taxation payable 227 301
Provisions 22 169 37
3224 2856
Total habilities 4110 403 4
Total equity and liabihities 9305 9385

The financial statements from pages 51 to 85 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised forissue
They were signed on its behalf by

R J Harvey G AKanellis

24 July 2012
DU o~

12011
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Year ended 31 May 2012

Attnbutable to equity owners of the Company

Currency Caputal Non
Share transiation  redemption Retained Medging controlling
capnal resarve fasarve earnings raserve mnterasts Tatal
£m fm £m fm £m £m £m
At 1 June 2010 43 538 07 3973 {13} 673 5221
Profit for the year - - - 704 - 95 799
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension
schemes - - - (33 - - 33
Exchange differences on transiatton of foreign
operations - {237) - - - 99 (336}
Cash flow hedges —fair value gains in year - - - - 18 - 18
Cash flow hedges —tax on fair value gains - - - - {02) - 02)
Deferred tax on actuanal losses on defined benefit
pension schemes - - - 0B - - 06
Total comprehensive Income/lexpense} for the year - (237) - 677 16 {04) 452
Transactions with owners
Qrdinary dwvidends - - - (26 0) - - (26 0}
Acquisition of shares for ESOT - - - 23 - - 23)
Share-based payments charges - - - 23 - - 23
Deferred tax on share-based payments - - - 12 - - i2
Acquisition of non-controlling interests - - - 16 - 13) (29
Non-controliing interests diadend paid - - - - - {4 b) 4 5}
At 31 May 2011 43 301 07 4386 03 611 5351
At 1 June 2011 43 301 07 438 6 03 811 5351
Profit for the year - - - 344 - 36 330
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension
schemes - - - {11 5} - - {115)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations - 17 - - - K § 21
Cash flow hedges - farr value fosses in year - - - - 07) - ©7
Cash flow hedges —tax on fair value losses - - - - 03 - 03
Deferred tax on aciuanal losses on defined benefit
pension schermes - - - 25 - - 25
Total comprehensive incomef{expense) for
the year - 17 - 254 (04) 74 307
Transactions with owners
Ordinary dividends - - - {28 B} - - (28 8)
Acqursition of shares for ESOT - - - {2 8} - - {28
Share-based payments charges - - - {0 5) - - (05)
Deferred tax on share-based paymenis - - - {14) - - 14)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests - - - [5 5} - 31 (8 6)
Non-controlling interests dividend paid - - - - - (4 2) (4 2)
At 31 May 2012 43 284 07 4250 o1 612 5195
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Consolidated cash flow statement
Year ended 31 May 2012

2012 201
Nores £m £m
Operating activities
Cash generated from operations 26 575 130
Taxauon paid {21 6) {23 0}
Net cash generated from operating activities 359 900
Cash flows from investing activities
Investrnent ncome received 25 34
Purchase of property plant and equipment {18 9} (221
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 24 03
Purchase of intangible assets 10 o1 04
Acquisition of non-controlling interests 28 (8 6) (29)
Acquisition of business 28 {26 3} {62 b}
Repayment/Aadvance) of short-term deposits 1o joint ventures 16 36 (10 3}
Loans (granted tokrepaid by joint ventures 12 {16 8) 10
Net cash used in investing activities 62 2) (93 5}
Financing activities
Interest paid (3 6} {26)
Dvidends paid 1o non-controlling interests {4 2) {3 8)
Purchase of shares for ESOT 25 {2 8} 23
Dividends paid to Company shareholders 8 {28 8) 126 Q)
Repayment of term loan 18 {150} (150}
Increase in borrewings 18 594 164
Net cash generated fram/{used in) financing activities 50 33 3}
Net decrease in cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts {213) (36 8}
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the beginning of the year 17 876 1312
Effect of foreign exchange rates {0 4) {6 8}
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the end of the year 17 659 B76
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General Information
PZ Cussons Plc 1s a pubhc hmited company which s isted on the Landon Stock Exchange and 1s domicited and incorporated in the
United Kingdom under the Comparies Act 2006 The address of the registered office 1s given on page 93

These financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling because that 1s the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Group operates Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set out in note 1

1 Accounting polictes

The financial statemants have been prepared in accordance with International Finaneial Reporung Standards (IFRSs) as adopted for use
in the European Union {(EU) inctuding International Accounting Standards {IAS) and interpretations issued by the [nternational Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to Companies reporting under IFRS Further
standards may be 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB) and standards currently inissue and endorsed by the
EU may be subject to interpretations issued by the IFRIC

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with generally accepted accounting pninciples under IFRS requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and habiliies at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Although these estimates are based on management s
best knowledge of the amount evenior actions actual results ulimately may differ from those esumates

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except tor the revaluation of certain financial assets and financial
habilities including dernvative instruments) at fair value through the income statement

The financial statements have been prepared using consistent accounting pohcies except as stated below

Standards and interpretations

fa} New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following new standards and amendments to standards are mandatory for the first ime for the financial year beginning 1 June

2011

- Rewised IAS 24 Related party disclosures ssued in November 2009 and superseding IAS 24  Related party disclosures 1ssued
In 2003

- Prepayments of a mimimum funding requirement (Amendments to IFRIC 14} 1ssued in November 2009 The amendmaents correct an
unintended consequence of IFRIC 14 1AS 18- The hmit on a defined benefit assel mmimum funding requirements and ther
interaction Without the amendments entities are not permited to recogrnise as an asset some voluntary prepayments for minimum
funding contnbutions This was not intended when IFRIC 14 was 1ssued and the amendments correct the problem

{b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards effective in 2011 but not relevant ta the Group

- IFRIC 19 Extnguwshing financial habritties with equity instruments  This clanfies the requirements of IFRSs when an entity
renegotiates the terms of a financral habslity with its creditor and the creditor agrees to accept the entity s shares or other equity
instruments 10 settle the financial hability fully or partially The interpretation is effective for annual pericds beginming on or after
1 July 2010

fc) The folfowing new standards, new interpretations and amendments to standards and interpretations have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning 1 June 2011 and have not been early adopted

- IFRS @ Financialinstruments (effective 1 January 2015)

- IFRS 10 Consoldated financial statements {sifective 1 January 2013}

~ IFRS 11 Jointarrangements {effective 1 January 2013}

- IFRS 12 Disclosures of interests in other entities (effective 1 January 2013)

- 1AS 19 {revised 2011) Employee benefits (effective 1 January 2013}

- IFRS 13 Fair valug measurement {effective 1 .January 2013}

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of PZ Cussons Ple and entities controlled by PZ Cussons Plc
{its subsidianes) made up to 31 May each year Conirolis achieved where the Company has the ability to govern the financial and
operating policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its actvities

On acquisition the assets and habiiues and contingent habilities of a subsidiary are measured at their far values at the date of
acquisition Any excess of the fair value of consideration over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s recognised as
goodwill Any deficiency below the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired (1 e discount on acquisiiion} Is credited to the
income statement in the penod of acquisition
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1 Accounting policies continued

The total profits or losses of subsidiaries are Included in the consoldated income statement and the interest of non-centrolling interests 1S
stated at the non-controlling interest s proportion of the fair values of the assets and habilities recognised Subseqguently, losses applicable
to the non-controlling interest in excess of the nen-controlling interest s nterest in the subsidiary s equity are allocated against the interests
of the Group except to the extent that the non-controlling interest has a binding cbligation and s able to make an additional invastment to
cover the losses The interest of non-controlling interests in the acquiree Is Iniualty measured at the non-controlling interest s proporucn of
the net far value of the assets Labiliues and contingent habilities recognised \Where non-controlling interests are acquired the excess of
cost over the value of the non-controlling interest acquired s recorded in equity

Theresults of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of duning the year are included in the consclidated income staternent from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the eifective date of disposal as appropnate

Where necessary the accounts of overseas subsicharies are adjusted to conform to the Group s accounting policies All intra-group
transactions balances income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation

Operating profit
Operating profitis the profit of the Group before finance income finance costs and taxation

Exceptional items

The Group adopts & columnar income statement format to highlight significant tems within the Group resuits for the penod Such items
are considered by the Directors to be excegtional tn nature rather than be:ng representative of the underlying trading of the Group and
may include such items as restructuring costs acquisition related costs matenal imparments of non-current assets matenal profits
and losses on disposal of property plant and equipment profit or loss on disposal or termination of operations and matertal pension
settlements and amendments The Directors apply wdgement in assessing the particutar items which by virtue of therr scale and
nature should be disclosed in a separate column of the income statement and notes to the financial statements as Exceptional ttems
The Directors believe that the separate disclosure of these itemns 1s relevant 1o an understanding of the Group s financiat performance

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidianes i1s accounted for using the purchase method The fair value of constderation of the acquisition 1s measured
atthe aggregate of the fair values at the date of exchange of assets given liabifiues incurred or assumed and equity instruments 1ssued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree The acquiree s dentifiable assets halities and contingent habilities that meet the
conditions for recogmtion under IFRS 3 Business combmations are recogrised at their far values at the acquisiion date except for
non-current assets {or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance withIFRS 5 Non-current assets hetd for sale and
discontinued operations which are recognised and measured at the lower of the assets previous carrying value and farr value less costs
to sell

Interests in joint ventures

Ajoint venture 1s a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity that1s subject to joint
control thatis when the strategic finanoal and operating policy decisions relating to the activities require the unanimnous consent of the
parties shanng contrel Joint venture arrangements that involve the estabishment of a separate entty sn which each venturer has an
interest are referred to as jointly controlied entities The Group reports 1ts interests i jointly contrelted entities using the equity method
of accounting Under IAS 28 Investments in associates and IAS 31 Interests i joint ventures a single hgure for post-tax resuliss
presenied as a separate item on the face of the income statement as part of proiit before tax within operating profit Long-term loans
which are considered to be permanent as equity are combined with the Group s share of net assets/hiabilities and shown on a single ine
within non-current assets

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill artsing on the acquision of a subsiudiary or a jointly controlled entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets halilities and contingent hiabilities of the subsidiary or jointly controlled
entity recognised at the date of acquisition if after reassessment the Group s interestin the net farr value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets habilities and contingent iabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination the excess 1s recognised immediately in the
tncome statement

Goodwill also includes amounts to reflect deferred tax habilities established in relation o acqusitions in accordance with IFRS 3
Business Combinations Goodwill is inivially recognised as an asset and 15 subsequently measured at cost less any accurnulated
imparrment losses Goodwill1s reviewed for impairment at least annually

For the purpose of impairment testing goodwillis allocated to each of the Group s cash-generating units expected to benelit from the
synergies of the combination Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested forimparment annually or more
frequently when there is anindication that the urit may be impaired f the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 15 less than
the carrying amount of the unit the impairment loss s allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each assetin the unit Animpairment loss
recogrused for goodwill 1S not reversed in a subsequent period On disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity the attributable
amount of goodwill1s Included in the determination of the profit or loss en disposal
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

1 Accounting poltcies continued

Goodwill ansing on acguisiuons before the date of transition to IFRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts Goodwill
written off to reserves under UK GAAP prior to 1998 has not been reinstated and i1s not included in determining any subsequent profit or
loss on disposal

Other intangtble assets

An acquired brand is only recognised on the balance sheet where it1s suppoerted by a registered trademark where brand earnings are
separately identifiable and the brand could be sold separately from ihe rest of the bustiness Brands acquired as part of a business
combination are recorded in the balance sheet at far value at the date of acquisition Trademarks patents and purchased brands are
recorded at purchase cost Brands currently held are not amorused as the Directors believe they have indefinite lives due to their market
leading nature In accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of assets’ the brands are tested for impairment annually and whenever there s
an indication that the asset may be impatred Any impairment s recognised immediately in the tncorme statement

Applying indefirite lives to certain acquired brands 1s appropnate due to the stable long-term nature of the business and the endunng
nature of the brands A core element of the Group s strategy 1s to invest in bullding its brands through an ongoing programme of product
innovation and sustained and nising marketing (particularly media) investment A brand typically compnises an assortment of base
products and more innovative products Both contribute to the enduring nature of the brand The base products estabiish the long-term
positoning of the brand while a succession of inngvations attracts ongotng consumer interest and attention Indefinite Iife brands are
allocated to the cash generating units to which they relate and are tested annually for impairment

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset 1s increased 1o the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying arnount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the assetin prior years A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately as income
Profit oriosses an disposal of brands are included within operating profit

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recevable and represents amounts receivable for goods and
services provided in the normal course of business net of discounts rebates and sales related taxes but including interest recevable
on sales on extended credit and inceme from the prowision of technical services and agreemnents Sales of goods are recogmised when
titte has passed and the signthcant nisks and rewards of ownership have been transferred

Dividend income from investments 1s recognised when the shareholders’ nghts to receive payment have been established

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee All other leases are classified as operatng leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-ine basis over the term of the relevant lease
Benefits receved and recervable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are also spread on a straight-ine basis over the lease term

Forelgn currencies

The individual financial siatements of each Group entity are presented in the currency ¢f the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates {its functional currency} For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements the results and financial position
of each entity are expressed in Sterling which 1s the functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency for the
consolidated financial statements

In prepanng the financial statements of the Individual entiies transactrons in currencies other than the entity s functional currency are
recorded at the actual rate of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and
habihties that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date

Foreign exchange gains and losses anising from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and habihties denorminatet in foreign currencres are recogmised in the income statement

In order to hedge Its exposure to certan foreign exchange nisks the Group enters into ferward contracts

On consolidation the assets and liabtities of the Group s overseas operations are translated ai exchange rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date Income and expense #ems are translated at the average exchange rates for the penod unless exchange rates iluctuate
significantly Cumulative foreign currency translation differences ansing on the translation and consolidauon of foreign operations
income statements and balance sheets denominated in foreign currencies are recorded as a separate component of equity Applying
the exemption under IFRS 1 First ume adopuion of Internauoenal Financial Reporting Standards  the Group has set the currency reserve
to zeroat 1 June 2004 the date of transiion to IFRS and measured and recorded separately in that currency reserve all cumulative
foreign currency translauon differences ansing afier that date On disposal of a foretgn operation the cumulstive transiation differences
will be transferred to the iIncome statement 1n the period of the disposal as part of the gain or loss on disposal
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1 Accounting polictes continued
Finance incocme and expense
Finance income and expense are recognised In the ncome staterment in the period in which they are incurred

Government grants

Government grants related to property plant and equipment are reflected in the balance sheet as deferred iIncome and credited to the
Income statement over the useful lives of the assets concerned Government grants relating to income are reflected in the balance
sheet as deferred income and credited to the iIncome statement over the pencd to which tha grant relates

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit oblhigations

The Group operates retirement benefit schemes in the United Kingdom and for most overseas counines in which it carnes on business
Those in the United Kingdom are defined benefit schemes and defined contnbution schemes overseas schemes vary in detad
depending on local practice The UK defined benefit schemes were closed to future accrual on 31 May 2008

In respect of the defined benefit schemes the cost of providing benefits s determined using the projected umit credit method with full
actuarial valuations being carned out every three years or more frequently should a matenal change occur in any of the schemes
Actuaral gains and losses are recogrised in full in the penod inwhich they occur They are recognised outside the income statement
and presented in the staternent of comprehensive income

Past service costIs racognised :smmedhiately to the extent that the benefits have already vested and otherwise ameruised on & straight-ine
basis over the average period unul the benetits become vested The retirement benefit obligation recogrised tn the balance sheet
represenis the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecogmised past servce cost and as reduced by the
fair value of scheme assets Any asset resulting from this calculation 1s hmited to past service cost plus the present value of available
refunds and reductions in future contnbutions to the plan All components of the pension cost are Included within operating profit

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due

Share-based payments
The Group operates a Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scheme a Perfarmance Share Plan and an Executive Share Option Schemae for
senior executives all of whichinvolve equity-settled share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments under the Executive Share Option Scheme are measured at fair value (excluding the effect

of non-market based vesting conditions) at the date of grant The fair value determined at the grant date 1s expensed on a straight-hine
basis over the vesting penod Farr value 1s measured using the Black-Scholes pricing model The expected life used in the model

has been adjusted based on management's best esumate for the effects of non-transferabilty exercrse restnctions and
behavioural considerations

The awards under the Performance Share Plan are measured at the fair value at the date of grant and are expensed over the pertod to
which the performance relates based on the expected outcome of the vesting conditions

The awards under the Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scheme are measured at fair value at the date of grant and are expensed over the
penod to which the performance relatles

Taxation
Income tax expensa represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable »s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes 1items of income or expense that are taxable or deductitle in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible The Group s hability for current and deferred 1ax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deterred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habiities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used i the computation of 1axable profit and is accounted for using
the balance sheet hability method Deferred tax habihues are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it s probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utiised Such assets and liabiliies are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goadwill or from
the iniual recognition {other than in a business combination} of ather assets and liabslites in a transacuon that affects neither the

tax profit nor the accounting profit
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Deferrad tax habilibes are recognised for taxable temporary differences ansing on investments in subsidianes and interests in joint
ventures except where the Group s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that 15 no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avallable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered Deferred tax s calculated at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the penied when the llability 1s settled or the asset s realised Deferred tax1s charged or credited
to the income statement except when it refates to items charged or credited to equity in which case the deferred tax s also dealt with
In equity

Deferred tax assets and hiabilities are offset when there s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against current tax
habities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxauan authonty and the Group intends to settle its current 1ax
labiliues on a net basis

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administration purposes are stated in the
balance sheet at deemed cost at the date of transition to IFRS less accumulated deprectation and any accumulated impairment losses
All other assets are siated at histoncal cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses Historical cost imcludes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the item

Depreciation s charged so as to wnite off the cost orvaluation of assets other than land over their estimated useful ives using the
straight-ine method on the following basis

Freehold buildings at rates not less than 2%
Leasehaoid buildings at rates which wilt reduce the book value o nil on or before the termination of the leases with a

rminimum of 2%
Plant and machinery not less than 8%
Fixtures fittngs and vehicles notiess than 20%

In the case of major projects depreciation 1s provided from the date the projectin queston is brought into use

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset s determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and s recogrised in the ncome statement for the penod

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at each balance sheet date

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated net realisabla value Cost comprises direct materials and where apphicable
direct labour costs and those overheads that have heen incurred in bringing the inventonies to therr present location and condition Cost
15 calculated using the FIFQ method Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all esumated costs of complet:on
and cests to be incurred in marketing selling and distribution

Trade receivables

Trade recesvables are recogmsed imtally at farr value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less prowision for mpairment A prowision for imparment of trade receivables is established when there 1s objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms of the recevables

Research and development
Research and development expenditure is charged against profits in the year in which 1t1s incurred unlessut meets the critena for
capitahsation set outin IAS 38 Intangible assets

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts

Cash cash eguivalents and bank overdrafts includes cash at bank and in hand plus short-term deposits less overdrafts Short-term
deposits have a matunty of less than three months from the date of acquisiton Bank overdratts are repayable on demand and form an
integral pari of the Group s cash management

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial hahthties are recognised on the Group s balance sheet when the Group becemes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument
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1 Accounting polictes continued

Derivative financial instruments

The Group s activities expose It pnmarily to the financial nsks of changes in foreign exchange rates and to fluctuations in interest rates
The Group uses dervative financial Instruments (primarnily foreign currency forward contracts} to hedge its nisks associated with fareign
currency fluctuations relatng to certain firm commitments and forecasted transactions The Group uses denvative financial
snstruments (primarily Interest rate swaps} to hedge a propartion of the expasure to floating interest rate fluctuations

The use of inancial denvatives 15 governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors which prowide wntien pnnciples
n the use of financial denvatives consistent with the Group s risk management strategy The Group does not use denvative financial
nstruments for speculative purposes

Dervative financial instruments are nitially measured at fair value at the contract date, and are remeasured to fair value at subseguent
reporting dates Changes in the fair value of denvative inancial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of future cash
flows ara recognised directly in other comprehensive incame and any ineffective portion 1s recogmsed immediately in the income
statement

Borrowings

Interest-beanng bank loans and overdraits are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directissue costs Finance charges including
premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct Issue costs are accounted for on an accruals basis through the income
stalement using the effective interest method and are added to the catrying amount of the instrument to the extent they are not settled
in the period m which they anse

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest beanng and are stated at thesr nominal value

Financal habitties and equity
Financial labitbies and equity Instruments are classifled according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into An
equity sstrument 1s any contract that ewidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its habilities

Investments

Investrnents {other than interests 1n joint veniures} are recognised and derecogmsed on a trade date when a purchase or sale of an
investment 1S under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe estabhished by the market
concerned and are initially measured at cost including transaction costs

Investments are classified as either held-to-matunty held-for-trading loans and recewvables or avalable-for-sale Held-te-matunity
investments and loans and recevables are measured at amortised cost Held-for-trading and avaldable-for-sale investments are
measured at subsequent reporung dates at far value Where secunties are held-for-trading purposes gains and losses ansing from
changes m fair value are included m the income statement for the penod For available-for-sale investments gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value are recognised directly tn equity until the securty 1s disposed of or 1s determined ta be impaired at which
tme the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity 1S included in the income statement for the penod

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligatien as a result of a past event and 1t1s probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation Provisions are measured at the Directors best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date Prowvisions for restructuring costs are recogmsed when the Group has a cetalled formal plan for the
restructunng that has been communicated to affected parties

Dividend distnbution
Divmidend distribution to the Company s shareholders 1s recogrised as a hability in the Group s financial siatements in the period in which
the dividends are approved by the Company s shareholders In respect of interim dividends these are recogmised once paid

Crnitical accounting pelicies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Estimaies and accounting judgemenis are continually evaluated and are based on historical expenence and other factors including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

The preparation of financial statements under IFRS requires management to make assumptions and esumates about future events The
resulting accounting estumates will by defimuon differ from the actual results The assumptions and esumates that have a significant
nsk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and habilities within the next financial year follow below

PZ Cussons Plc
Annual Report & Accounts 2012 61



62

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Accounting for intangible assets

The Group records all intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination at fair value Intangible assets are deemed to have
indefinite fives and as such are not amortised but are subject as a rmimmum to annual tests forimpairment Deterrmining whether
intangible assets are impaired requires an esumaton of the value in use of the cash-generating units 1o which the intangible asset
has been allocated The value in use calculation requires management 10 estimate the future cash flows expected to anse from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value Detanls of key estimates are discussed in note 10

Retirement benefits

The Group has three main defined benefit schemes which are based and administered in the UK and are independent of the Group s
finances These schemes were closed 1o future accrual on 31 May 2008 Actuarial valuations are carried out as determened by the trustees
atintervals of not more than three years Thea retirement benefit cost under I1AS 19 1s assessed in accordance with the advice of a firm

of actuanes based on the latest actuanial valuation and assumptions advised by the actuary The assumptions are based on informatson
supplied to the actuary by the Company supplemented by discussions between the actuary and management The assumptions are
disclosed in note 23 Operating results are affected by the actuanal assumptions used These assumptions include discount rates
mortality rates inflation rates expected long-term rates of return on assets take up rates on enhanced transfer value exercises and may
differ from actual results due to changing market and econormic conditions and longer or shorter lives of participants

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue generally at the tme of delivery which represents the point at which the significant nsks and rewards of
ownership are transferred 1o the customer and when collection of the resulting consideration for those goods 1s reasonably assured
Should management consider that the critena for recognition are not met revenue s deferred until such tme as the consideration has
been fully eared Revenue s measured at the fair value of the consideration received of receivable and represents amounts receivable net
of discounts rebates and sales-related taxes but including interest recesvable on sales on extended credit and income from the provision
of technical services and agreements Dividend income from investments i1s recognised when the nght to receive payment 1s established

2 Segmental analysis
The chief operating decision-maker has been idenufied as the Executive Board which comprises the four Executive Directors

The Executive Board reviews the Group s internal reporting 1n order to assess performance and allocate resources Management has
determined the aperating segments based on these reports which include an allocation of central revenue and costs as appropriate

The Executve Board considers the business from a geographic perspecuve with Africa Asia and Eurepe being the reporting
segments The Executive Board assesses the performance based on operating profit before any exceptional iiems Other informauon
provided except as noted below to the Executive Board 1s measured in a manner consistent with that of the financial statements

Sales between segments are carried out at an arms length

Business segments

Africa Asia Europe' Elimmnations Total
mz fm &m £m fmn fm
Total gross segment revenue 3752 m3 5125 (2001) 858 9
Inter segment revenue {13 0) (12 5) [174 6) 2001 -
Revenue 3622 1588 3379 - 8589
Segmental operaung profit before excepuanal items and share of results of

|oint ventures 337 83 516 - 936
Share of results of joint ventures {0 2) - - - {0 2}
Segmental operaling profit before exceptional items 335 83 516 - 934
Exceptional items 61) (301) {7 6) - (43 8)
Segmental operating profit 274 {218) 40 - 496
Finance income 25
Finance cost 38)
Profst before taxation 485
Depreciation 84 58 83 - 225

1 Eutope segmental result includes revenue and profit from US and Australia in relation 1o Beauty division that is deemed to beimmatenal
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2 Segmental analysts continued

Atnica Agia Europe' Elminations Total
on £m £m Em Em Em
Total gross segment ravenue 3434 1890 4800 (19,7 8207
Inter segment revenue 43} (12 9} (174 5) 1517 -
Revenue 3391 1761 3055 - 8207
Segmental operating profit before exceptional items and share of results

of joint veniures 406 175 4986 - 1077
Share of results of joint ventures 04 - - - 04
Segmental operating profit before exceptional items M0 175 496 - 1081
Exceptional items - - {0 8} - (08
Segmental operating profit 10 175 488 - 107 3
Finance income 34
Finance cost 26
Profit before taxation 1081
Depreciation 83 56 77 - 216
1 Europesegmental result includes ravenue and profit from US that is deemed 10 be immatenal
3 Exceptional items
Year to 31 May 2012

Excaptional Excepnional

item before item after

taxation Taxation taxation

Exceptional iterns inciuded within operating profit Em £m Em

Supply chain optimisation 275 {97) 178

Pension scheme de-nsking charge 03 {01) 02

Beauty division agquisition and integration costs 63 {16) 47

Australian Home Care brand impairment 97 - 97
Peferred tax benefit of reduction in UK Corporation tax rate pnncipally relauing to brands - {(30) (30)

438 (14 4) 294

Year to 31 May 2011

Exceptional Exceptanal

1term betore tem atter

taxation Taxation taxation

Excepuional items ncluded within operating protit Em £m £m

Pension scheme de-nsking charge 24 {07 17
Pension schemes — benefit of change from RPl to CPI (75) 20 {5 5}
Acquisition expenses - St Tropez 17 {02} i5

Beauty division formation costs 42 (10 32
Deferred tax benefit of reduction in UK Corporation tax rate principally relating to brands - 21} 21
08 (20) (12}

Explanation of exceptional items
Year to May 2012
Supply chain optimisation

To ensure that the supply chamn cost base remains at a compeutve level a supply chain opurmisation project has been implemented to
significantly reduce the overhead footprint of the Group s manufactunng actvities The main activities involved in this project are the
closing of manufacturing facilities in Austraha and Ghana 1n addition to other optimisation projects in Afnica and Asia Excepuonal costs
principally refating to the wiite down of manufactunng facilities and certain other restructunng costs have therefore been incurred

Pension scheme de-nsking charge

The Group has finalised the de-risking exercise that was commenced in the prior year in relation to the enhanced transfer value exercise

for deferred members of the main UK defined benefit penston scheme
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

3 Exceptional items contnued

Beauty division acquisition and integration costs

The Groupincurred £1 1 million of acquisition and related costs for the purchase of the Fudge hair-care brand and associated inventory
Details of the acquisivon are given in note 29 In addion charges totalhing £3 2 million were incurred in integrating the Fudge brand
selling and logistics actvities into the Beauty diviston  Further costs totalling £2 ¢ million have been incurred rationalising the activities
of the Beauty division post Fudge integration

Austrafian Horme Care brand impairment

The current year performance and forward projections of our value dish-care brand in Australia Trix have been significantly affected by
both market competiuon and rationalisation by key retailers resulting in stgnificant uncertainty over future expected cash flows
Therefore a dacision was made to fully impair the brand at 31 May 2012

Deferred tax benefit of reduction in UK Corporation tax rate principally refating to brands

The UK corporation tax rate reduced to 24% from 26% on 1 Apnl 2012 As aresult of this change the deferred tax balances relating to
UX assets and habilities have been reduced to take account of the substantively enacted rate change The largest single effect of the
rate change s in relation to the deferred tax habiltes recognised when the Sanctuary St Tropez and Charles Worthington brands were
acquired and this has been disclosed as an exceptional item due 1o 1ts s1ze and the fact that 1t relates to previous acquisitions

Year to 31 May 2011

Pension scheme de-risking charge

The Group commenced a de-nisking exercise in refation to the UK defined benefit pension schemes in order to reduce the impact of
future volatiity in the valuation of the schemes assets and lhabiities The first element of this de-nisking exercise was an enhanced
transfer value exercise for deferred members of the main UK pension scheme This exercise commenced in May 2011 and the charge
inthe year of £2 4 millton represented an assessment of the hkely cost based on expected take-up rates

Pension schemes — benefit of change from AP to CPI

The Government announced in December 2010 that thenflation measure for determining minimum pension increases would move
from RP{ to CPl In general the CPlindex s lower than RPl and this led to a reduction in the scheme habilities as at 31 May 2011 The
effect of this change on the liabilities was reported through the income statement as a past service credit of £7 5 million due to it being
a change in benefit

Acquisition expenses - St Tropez
The Group incurred £1 7 million of acquisition and related costs for the purchase of St Tropez Holdings Limited

Beauty diviston formation costs

In February 2011 the Group announced the iormation of the Beauty division bringing the Group s more premium brands — Sanctuary
Charles Worthington and St Tropez - tegether as one strategic business unit The formation of the Beauty dmstan led to the consolidation
of the operations into a new Central London office and resulted in the clesure of St Tropez s Nottingham site and the closure of the
Sanctuary offices in London The Charles Worthington business previously integrated nto the PZ Cussons UK operating unit was also
transferred The exceptional costs pnincipally related to restructuning costs and certain other costs of integrating the three brands into a
new single operating unit

Deferred 1ax benefit of reduction in UK Corporation tax rate principally relating to brands

The UK corporation tax rate reduced to 26% from 28% on 1 April 2011 As aresult of this change the deferred tax balances relating to
UK assets and habihiies were reduced to take account of the substantively enacted rate change The largest single effect of the rate
change was In relation to the deferred tax lability recogmised when the Sanctuary and Charles Worthington brands were acquired and
this was disclosed as an exceptional temn due to 1ts size and the fact that it related to previous acquisiions

4 Profit for the year — analysis by nature
Profit for the year has been arnved at after chargingfcrediting)

2012 2011
£m £m
Net foreign exchange {gainklosses (23) 41
Research and development costs 35 32
Amortisation of government grants {03) (02}
Impairment loss on intangible assets 97 -
Impairment loss on tangible fiixed assets 124 -
Depreciation of property plant and equiprent 225 216
(Profit}loss on disposal of property plant and equipment {0 5) 01
Loss on disposa!l of intangible asset 01 -
Raw and packaging maternals and goods purchased for resale 4458 3960
Operaung lease rentals 29 35
Employee costs (note 5) maz 103
Auditors’ remuneration (see below) 11 12
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4 Profit for the year — analysis by nature continued
A more detailed analysis of auditors remuneration on a worldwide basis 1s provided below

2012 2014
Em £€m
Fees payable to the Company s auditors for the audn of the Company s annual accounts 01 01
Fees payable to the Company s auditors and their associates for other services to the Group
- The audit of the Company s subsidianes pursuant 1o legislation 05 05
Total audin fees 06 06
Fees payable to the Company s auditors and 115 associates for other services
- Tax services pursuant to legislation 02 02
- Other tax services 02 02
— QOther services 01 02
Total fees 1 12

Feas payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and 1ts associates for non-audit services to the Company are not required to be disclosed
because the consolidated financial statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis Included in the other services
amount above are fees paid to the Group s auditors in respect of their audht of the Group 5 UK rettrement benehit schemes 1otalling

£18 200(2011 £18 200)

5 Directors and employees
Employee costs
The average number of employees (including Executive Directors) was as follows

2012 201
Number Number
Production 3,891 4145
Selling and distnibution 2,653 2875
Administration 792 981
7.336 8 001
The costs incurred in respect of the above were as follows
2012 2011
£m Em
Wages and salaries 1013 1617
Social security and other cests 78 85
Post-employment benefits 26 22)
Share-based payments (credit)/charge (note 28} [0 5) 23
1112 1103
The post-employment benefits consist of
2012 201
£m £m
Defined benefit schemes {note 23} (10} 6 3}
Defined contnbution schemes (note 23) 28 33
Overseas minor defined benefit schemes and Nigenan gratuity scheme (note 23) o8 o8
26 22)
Directars’ remuneration
The costs incurred in respect of the Directors who are regarded as the key managernent personne! were as follows
2012 201
£m £m
Fees to Non-executive Directors 05 05
Wages and salanes 13 i3
Bonus - cash bonus - 02
Benefits 01 01
Post-employment benefits 03 03
Share-based payments {0 2) 10
Total 20 34

Additonal details are within the Report on Directors remuneration on pages 371043
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

6 Netfinance {expense}l/income

012 2011
£m Em
Net investment gains a5 02
Interest recevable from joint ventures - 01
Interest and dividends receivable 20 31
25 34
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts 3 6) (26)
Net finance (expense)/income 1 08
7 Taxation
2012 20151
£m Em
Current tax
UK corporation tax charge for the year 83 74
Adjustments in respect of prior penods (24) (10}
59 64
Overseas corporation tax charge for the year 123 66
Adjustments in respect of prior penods {0 4} 04
1¢ 162
Total current tax charge 178 226
Deferred tax
Temporary differences ongination and reversal {73) 45
Adjustments i respect of pnor penods - 11
Total deferred tax [note 21) {73) 56
Total tax charge 105 282

UK corperation tax 1s calculated at 25 69% (2011 27 69%;) of the estimated assessable profit for the year Taxation for other junsdictions
15 calculated at the rates prevailling in the respective junsdictions

Taxation on itemns taken directly to equity was a credit of £1 4 miulion {2011 £1 6 million) and relates to the movementin deferred tax on
actuarial losses on share option schemes and on financial denivatives recognised in the hedging reserve

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the prohit per the consohdated income statement as follows

2012 2011
£m Em
Profit before tax 485 1081
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 25 9% (2011 27 63%) 125 239
Tax etfect of revenue/expenses that are not taxable/deductible 39 04
Etfiect of different tax rates of substdiaries in overseas Junsdictions 20] 06}
Effect of UK rate change on deferred taxation {30) 120}
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures 01 Q1
Overseas withholding tax suffered on dvidends 18 09
Prior pencd adjustment (2 8} {0 3)
Tax charge for the year 105 282

The man rate of corporation tax in the UK reduced from 26% to 24% from 1 Apnl 2012 The change in deferred tax has resulted in a
reduction in deferred tax habilhtes of £3 8 million of which £3 0 million has been recognised in the iIncome statement as excepuional
inceme and £0 8 milhon direct to equity
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7 Taxation continued

The Finance Act 2012 was substantively enacted on 26 March 2012 and included legislation to reduce the main rate of corporauon tax
from 26% to 24% from 1 April 2012 A further reduction to 23% from 1 Apnl 2013 was substantively enacted by subsequent legislation
on 2 July 2012 All deferred tax assets have been remeasured at 24% as at the balance sheet date

Further reductions to the UK corporation tax rate were announced in the 2012 Budget on 21 March 2012 which proposed to reduce the
rate by 1% per annum 1o 22% by 1 April 2014 The changes had not been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and therefore

are not recogrused in these financial statements The impact of the proposed changes will be to reduce deferred tax habiiies in the

balance sheet by around £3 0 mithon

8 Dmdends

012 20H
Em £m

Amounts recognised as distributions to Ordinary Shareholders in the year comprise
Final dvidend for the year ended 31 May 2011 of 4 487p (2010 3 970p} per Ordinary Share 192 170
Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 May 2012 of 2 23p (2011 2 123p)per Ordinary Share 96 90
288 260
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 May 2012 of 4 487p {2011 4 487p) per Ordinary Share 182 192

The proposed final dividends for the years ended 31 May 2011 and 31 May 2012 were subject to approva! by shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting and hence have not been included as liabiities in the financial statements at 31 May 2011 and 31 May 2012 respectively

At 31 May 2012 the Employee Share Option Trust held 334 856 Ordinary Shares {2011 1 334 578 Ordinary Shares) The trust waived

any entitlement 1o the dividends on these shares

9 Earnings per share

2012 2011
Profit attnibutable to Ordinary Equity Shareholders (€ milion} 344 704
Basic earmings per share 803p 16 48p
Diluted earmings per share 799 16 29p

Basic earmings per share and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing profit for the perniod attnbutable to equity holders by

the weighted average number of shares in1ssue

2012 2011
Number Numnber

000 000

Basic weighted average 428,195 427215
Diluted weighted average 430,629 432048

The difference between the basic and diluted weighted average number of shares represents the dilutive eftect of the Deferred Annual
Share Bonus Scheme the Executive Share Opuion Scheme and the Performance Share Plan The weighted average number of shares

can be reconciled 1o the weighted average number of shares including diluiive shares as follows

2012 2011
Number Number
000 000
Basic weighted average Ordinary Shares inissue during the year 428195 427215
Dilutive eifect of share incenuve plans 2,434 4833
Diluted weighted average 430,629 432048
Adjusted earnings per share
2012 2011
Basic earnings per share 803p 16 48p
Excepltionalitems 671p (0 28)p
Adjusted basic earnings per share 14 74p 16 20p
Diluted earnings per share 799 16 29p
Exceptionalitems 6 66p 027p
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 14 65p 16 02p
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

9 Earnings per share continued

Adjusted basic and diluted earrungs per share figures are calculated by dviding adjusted profit for the year by the weighted average

number of shares in1ssue {as above) The adjusted profit tor the year s as follows

2012 2011
Em £m
Profit attnbutable to Ordinary Equity Shareholders 344 704
Exceptional items {net of taxauon effect} 287 {12)
Adjusted profit after tax 631 692
10 Goodwill and other intangible assets
Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
£m Em £m
Cost
At 1June 2010 347 1283 1630
Acquired during the year 1M1 5Eg 4 6895
Additions - 04 04
Currency retranslation - 10 10
At 31 May 2011 458 1881 23349
Acguired duning the year {note 29} - 246 246
Additcns - 01 01
Disposals - o1 on
Impairment loss - @7 87
Currency retranslation - (04} {04)
At 31 May 2012 458 2026 2484

Other intangible assets include the Group s acquired brands which are deemed to have indefinite lives

On 24 January 2012 the Group acquired the Fudge brand mtellectual property inventory and certain other business assets The Fudge
hair-care brand was valued at £24 6 million

Goodwill and other intangible assets which all have Indefimite useful lives are subject to annual iImparrment testing or more frequent
testing if there are indicattons of iImpatrment intangible assets and goodwill are allocated 1o the appropnate cash-generating units (CGUs)
based on the srmallest identfiable group of assets that generates cash inflows independently in relation to the specific intangible/goodwall
In the prior year the St Tropez Sanctuary and Charles Warthington brands and associated goodwill were treated as individuat CGUs and
tested separately for mpairment Following the formation of the Beauty division and the associated transfer of the aforementioned brand
related trade and assets into the division in June 2011 the Directors consider the most appropriate level for testing the imparrment of these
brands and the newly acquired Fudge brand to be as one Beauty CGU This represents a change from the pnior year presentation which
has been restated accordingly The recoverable amounts of the CGU's are determined from value-n-use calculations that use amounts
from approved budgets and plans over a period of five years (2011 five years) and pre-tax cash flows projected forward assuming a
perpetual growth rate of 2 3% (2011 3 0%) The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was 11 3% on a pre-tax basis

(2011 8 0% to 10 0%) The average per-annum growth rate appled to the initial penod ranged from 5 0% to 20 0% (2011 50% to

10 0%]) and was based on industry growth rates The net book value of ggodwill and other intangible assets by CGlUs was as follows

Other Cther

ntangible intangible

Goadwill Goodwill 3301 assets

2012 on 012 20Mm

£m £m £m £m

Oniginal Source - - 98 98
Trix - - - 96
Beauty division 404 404 188 2 1636
Qther 54 54 46 51
Total 458 458 2026 1881

The current year performance and forward projections of the Trix brand have been significantly affected by market competiion and
retaller rationalisation resulting in uncertainty over future expected cash flows A decision was therefore made to fully impair the Trix
brand at year-end The loss has been charged within exceptional administrative expenses in the income statement

A sensitvity analysis has been performed around the base assumptions and with the conclusion that no reasonable possible changes
In key assumptions would cause the recoverable amount of the goodwll and other intangible assets to be less than the carrying value
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11 Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures A3zse1sin
Land and Plant and htings and course ot
buildings machinery vahicles construction Total
fm £m fm £m Em

Cost
At1June 2010 140 8 184 6 405 333 3992
Currency retranslation 82 74 15) {21 {189)
Acquisitions - - 01 - a1
Additions 23 35 24 140 222
Disposals 02 (17 (36) - (5 5}
Reclassifications 13 167 n7 (387} -
A131 May 201 146 0 196 0 4886 55 3971
Currency retranslation (0 6) an 09 - 32
Addtions 03 17 15 154 189
Disposals on {21) 41 {0 2) (B 5)
Reclassifications 16 70 a8 {13 2) -
At 31 May 2012 1472 2009 507 75 406 3
Depreciation and amounts written off
At 1June 2010 164 11056 303 - 1572
Currency retranslation 07 08) 08) - (23)
Charge for the year * 35 nz 69 - 218
Disposals {01 (15) (3 5) - (51
At 31 May 2011 191 1184 329 - 1714
Currency retranslation {0 5) (34) 09 - (4 8}
Charge for the year 97 54 74 - 225
Disposals - {t7} 30) - (47}
Impairment loss - 124 - - 124
At 31 May 2012 283 1321 364 - 1968
Net book values
At 31 May 2012 1189 688 143 75 2095
A131 May 2011 126 9 766 167 55 2257

At 31 May 2012 the Group had entered into commitments for the acquisition of property plant and eguipment amounting to
£1 5 milhon {2011 £3 2 milion) At 31 May 2012 the Group s share in the capital commitments of the joint ventures was £3 0 million

(2011 £17 million)

A decision was made to imparr the Australian manufacturning faciliiies at year end as part of the supply cham optimisation project
The loss has been charged within exceptional adrministrative expenses In the income statement
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

12 Investments [n joint ventures

fm
Carrying value
A1 June 2010 ng)
Exchange differences on translatton of overseas net assets recognised in equity {35)
Share of result for the year taken to the iIncome statement 04
At 31 May 2011 41
Exchange differences on translation of overseas net assets recognised in eguity 13
Share of result for the year taken to the Income statement {0 2)
At 31 May 2012 {3 0}
2012 2013
Em £m
Aggregated amounts relating to joint ventures
Total assets 100 2 6877
Total iabihties (106 5) (75 9)
Net habrlities (6 3) 82}
Revenues 902 687
{Loss)/profit after taxation {0 5) )]

The Group accounts for joint ventures using the equity method A list of the investments in joint ventures including the name country of
incorporation and proportion of ownership interest 1s given in note 31

The netinvestment in joint ventures is broken down as follows

2012 201

£m £m
Investment in joint ventures — share of net habilities (30 (a1
Long-term loans receivable from joint ventures a7 249
387 208

Thelong-term loans recevable from the joint ventures are considered to be part of the Group s net Investmentan the joint ventures

13 Other investments

Non-current asset investments of £8 5 milllon (2011 £0 6 muliion) comprise a 31% mvestment in Norpalm Ghana Limited a patm ol
plantation in Ghana (note 31) The Group does not exercise significant influence over the affairs of this Company as it does not have the
ability to parucipate in the financial and operating policies of the entity and it 1s therefore not treated as an associated Company The
Directors consider the histonical cost of the iInvestment to be representative of its farr value at both 31 May 2012 and 31 May 2011

14 Inventories

2012 20m
£m £m

Raw materals and consumables 677 585
Work in progress 75 86
Finished goods and goods for resale 984 836
1736 1517

During the year ended 31 May 2012 £1 7 million (2011 £2 6 million} was charged to the income statement for damaged obsolete
and lost inventories The cost of the inventories recogrised as an expense and included in cost of sates amounts to £445 6 million
{2017 £396 0 million}
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15 Trade receivables and prepayments
Receivabies due within one year

2012 20m
Em £m
Trade receivables 1211 1276
Less provision forimpairmens of trade recevables [r0) {5 1)
Net trade recevables 141 1225
Amounts owed by joint ventures 48 78
Other recevables 148 186
Prepayments and accrued income 73 66
Currency denvative instruments {note 18} - 04
14190 15658
Recewvables due after more than one year
2012 2011
fm £m
Prepayments and accrued income 06 03
Other receivables 04 05
Total 10 08
Movements in the Group prowvision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows
2012 201
Em Em
At1 June (51 {8 5}
Provision for recervables impairment (2 0} [0 5}
Acquisition during the year - 02
Recewvables wrtten off during the year - 23
Unused amounts reversed 01 13
Currency transtation - 05
At 31 May {70) 51)

Provisions are estimated by management based on past default experience and their assessment of the current economic
environment The creation and release of recelvables 15 charged/{credited) to administration expenses in the iIncome statement

Trade receivables consist of a broad cross secuon of our internauonal customer base for whom there 1s no significant history of default
The credit nisk of customers 1s assessed at a subsidiary and Group tevel taking inte account their financial positions past expenences
and other relevant factors Individual customer credit imits are imposed based on these factors

The credit penod taken on sales ranges from 15 to 100 days {2011 13 to 95 days) due to the differing nature of trade recesvables i the
Group s geographical segments

No other receivables have been deemed to be tmpaired

The carrying amount of the Group s trade recervables are denominaied in the followang currencies

2012 201

£m £m

Sterling 266 280
US Dollar 60 55
Nrgenan Narra 258 351
Euro 188 215
Polish Zloty 88 62
Indonesian Rupiah 105 30
Ghanaian Ced 57 46
Australian Doltar 72 76
Other rinoer currencies 47 50
141 1225
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

15 Trade receivables and prepayments continued
The following table shows the age of trade recevables at the reportung date for which no allowance for impairment of trade recervables
has been raised

2012 201
£m £m
Not past due 947 104 4
Past due 0-90 days 186 157
Past due 90-180 days 06 10
Past due > 180 days 02 14
1141 1225
16 Current asset investments
2012 20Mm
£m £m
Unlisted 03 03
Short-term deposiis with [oint veniures 67 103
70 106
17 Cash and cash equivalents
2012 2011
£m £m
Cash atbank and n hand 342 2490
Short-term deposits 317 647
Cash and short-term deposits 659 887
Less bank overdrafts included in borrowings note 18} - {v1)
Cash and cash equivalents 659 876
The effective interest rate on cash and cash equivalents durning the year ended 31 May 2012 was 2 9% {2011 3 2%}
18 Borrowings
2012 2011
£m £m
Overdrafts due within one year - 11
Bank loans due within one year S08 314
Bank loans due after one year - 150
908 475
The borrowings are repayable as follows
012 2011
£m £m
Within one year 908 325
Between one o two years - 150
908 475

Bank overdrafts are repayabie ondemand The weighted average rate of interest on bank overdrafts was 19% (2011 2 3%) Bank
overdrafts are at floaung rates of interest and hence expose the Group to cash flow interest rate nsk All covenants attached to
borrowings have been complied with throughout the year
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18 Borrowings continued
All borrowings are at floating rate and the applicable weighted average interest rates are as follows

2012 2011
Interest Interest
2012 rate 201 rate
Em %} £m (%)
Borrowings 908 17 475 14
Tha Group s borrowings were denominated in the following currencies
2012
Sterling Total
£m £m
Analysis of borrowings by currency
Bank loans 908 908
908 908
201
Sterling Total
£m £m
Analysis of borrowings by currency
Bank overdrafts 1 11
Bank loans 464 464
475 475

The functional currency of the majority of Group entities 1s local currency Debt raised in currencies other than Sterling 1s in most cases
raised Iin the functional currency of the entity raising the debt

At131 May 2012 the Group had un-drawn facihties of £1017 mithon (2011 £123 6 milion) available to 1t Subsequent o theyear end the
Group has refinanced its committed borrowing faciliues in the UK The new factlity prowided by three banks 1s composed of a £45 mithon
term loan and a £90 milhion revolving credit facility with a final termination date of 1 March 2016 The covenants are matenally in line wath
the covenants of the previous facility

Financial instruments and risk management

The Group s operations expose 1t 1o a vanety of financial nsks that include the effects of changes in foreign exchange rates credit nsk
liquidity and interest rates The pnimary nsk faced by the Group is exchange rate nsk The Board has reviewed and agreed pohcies for
management of this nsk and has also approved all of the classes of financial Instrurmnents that may be used by the Group The Group s
treasury function reports to the Board at least annualty with reference to the apphication of the Gsoup treasury palicy The pohcy
addresses i1ssues of hguidity funding and investment as well as interest rate currency and commodity nsks

The Group s nsk management policies are designed to sdentify and anafyse these nisks to set apprepniate nsk imits and controls

and to manitor the resks and limuts continually by means of reliable and up-to-date systems The Group modifies and enhances its nisk
rmanagemaent policies and systems to reflect changes in markets and products The Group Risk Committee under authority delegated
by the Board formulaies the high level Group nsk management policy monitors nsk and receives reports that allow it to reviaw the
effectiveness of the Group s nsk management policies

Credit nsk management

Credit nisk 1s the risk that financial loss anses from the failure of a customer or counterparty to meet its obligations under a contract

Itanises pnincipally from lending trade finance treasury and leasing activiies The Group has dedicated standards policies and procedures
1o control and monitor all such risks Although the Group 1s potentially exposed to cradit loss in the event of non-performance by
counterparties such credit nisk s controlled through credit rating and equity price reviews of the counterparties and by irmting the total
amount of exposure to any one party The Group does not believe iis exposed to any matenal concentrations of credit nsk

Liquicdity management

Liquidiiy nisk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they tall due The Group mantains a strong
liquidity position and manages the iquidity profile of its assets abiliies and commitments so that cash flows are approprately
balanced and all funding obligations are met when due
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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18 Borrowings conuinued

The Group has committed credit facilities with high-quality internaticnal banks All of these facihties have similar or equivalent terms
and condiions The Group has negotiated facilities with s bankers that provide sufficient headroom to ensure hguidity and continuity
of funding

Market nsk management

Market risk 1S the nisk that movernents in market rates including foreign exchange rates interest rates equity and commodity prices
will reduce the Group s iIncome The management of market risk 1s undertaken using risk imits approved by the operating unit Finance
Directors under delegated authonty |

Foreign exchange risk

The Group s activities expose it 1o the financial nsks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates Subsidiary undestakings must
ensure that all transactional exposures ansing from commitments in a currency other than their functional currency are identified and
monitored The Group uses foreign currency forward contracts to manage these exposures

Price nsk

The Group 1s nat exposed to equity securities price sk Due 1o the nature of the business the Group 1s exposed to commedity pnice
nsk The Group does take measures to protect against short-term impacts of these fluctuations however fallure to recover higher costs
could have a negative impact on profits

Capital nsk management
The Group s obiectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In arder to maintain or adjust the caprtal structure the Group may adjust the amount of dvidends paid to shareholders return capital to
shareholders 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt The Group s capitalis not restricted

The Group had net {debt)/funds positions as at 31 May 2012 and 31 May 2011 respectively as shown below

2012 200
Em Em
Cash at bank and in hand (see note 17} 342 240
Overdrafts {see note 17) - {11
Short-term deposits {see note 17} 317 647 !
Cash and cash equivalents 659 876 '
Current asset investments 70 1086
Bank loans less than one year (90 B) {31 4)
Bank loans greater than cne year - {150}
Net (debt)/funds (17 9) 518

Sensitivity analysts

A 10% weakening of the Pound Sterling against the following currencies at 31 May would have increased equity and increased/
(decreased) profit/{loss) by the following amounts shown below This analysis assumes that all other vaniables in particular interest
rates remain constant

2012 2011

Income Income
Equity statemant Eguity 5 a ement
£m Em £m £m

Nigerian Naira 187 11 173 24 1
Euro 43 02 46 02
Indonesian Rupiah 39 07 42 06
Australian Dollar 20 {2 5) 35 07
Palish Zloty 22 03 25 02

A 10% strengthening of the Pound Sterling agamnst the above currencies would have had the equal and opposite efiect on equity and
profit by the amounts shown above con the basis that all other vanables remain constant
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18 Borrowings continued
Cash flow and interest rate risk
The Group s vanable rate borrowings are exposed to a sk of change in cash flows due to changes in interest rates

Fair values

Financial instruments utihsed by the Group dunng the years ended 31 May 2012 and 31 May 2011 together wath information regarding

the metheds and assumptions used to calculate farr values can be summarnsed as follows

Current and non-current investrments

In accordance with IAS 39 Financial instruments Recogmition and Measurement  unlisted investments are held in the Group s balance

sheet at cost becausa therr {air value cannot be measured reliably due to the lack of quoted market prices

Current assets and hrabilities

Financial instruments included within current assets and liabiliues (excluding cash and borrowings) are generally short-term in nature

and accordingly their farr values approximate to their book values

Borrowings and cash
The carrying values of cash and short-term borrowings approximate to their fair values because of the short-term matunty of
these instruments

The financial instruments held by the Group do not esther indvidually or as a class create a potentially significant exposure to market

credit liguidity or cash flow interest rate nisk

Fair values of financial assets and financial habilities

Set out below 1s a comparison by categary of the carrying values and fair values of all the Group s financial assets and financial liabihties

as at 31 May 2012 and 31 May 2011 None of the financial assets and habiities has been reclassified duning the year

2012 20M
Carrying Carrying
amountand  amount and
fair value fair value
£m fm
Loans and receivables
Cash and short-term deposits 659 887
Trade and other receivables 1337 1489
Short-term deposit with joint ventures 67 103
Financial derivative assets - 04
Loans to joint ventures 17 249
Financial labilities
Trade and other payables (182 6) {206 5}
Bank overdrafis - 1
Bank lpans {90 B) 46 4)
Financial denvative iabiliies {0 8) {06)
Amounts cwed 1o |oint ventures {34) (1)

The far value of trade receivables and payables 1s considered to be equal to the carrying amount of these tems due to thewr
shart-term nature

An analysis of the internattonal long-term credit ratngs of counterparues where cash and short-term deposits are held 1s as follows

2012 201

£m £m

AA 26 4 480
A 86 151
B 300 276
[ 09 -
Total 659 887

The short-term deposit of £6 7 million {2011 £10 3 millien)i1s a repayable on-demand balance with Nutncima Lid The balance earns

interest at arate of 11% (2011 7%)
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18 Borrowings continued
Denvative financial instruments

2012 2013
Assats Liabulities Assets Liabilities
£m Em £m £m
Forward foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedges - {0 8) 04 {0 6)
Total - {08) 04 {0 B}

Trading dernvatives are classified as a current asset or hability The fult fair value of a hedging dervative s classified as a non-current
asset or hability if the remaining matunity of the hedged item 1s more than 12 months and as a current asset or lability if the matunty of
the hedged item is less than 12 menths

Forward foreign exchange contracts
The net notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 31 May 2012 were £39 6 million
{2011 £33 3 million)

The hedged highly probabte forecast transactions denominated in foreign currency are expected to occur at vanous dates during the
next 12 months Gains and losses recognised in the hedging reserve in equity on forward foreign exchange contracts as of 31 May 2012
are recognised in tha income statement in the period or penods durning which the hedged forecast transaction affects the income
statement Thisis generally within 12 months from the balance sheet date unless the gain or loss 1s incleded in the initial amount
recognised for the purchase of fixed assets, in which case recagmition 1s over the lifetime of the asset

19 Trade and other payables

2012 pitdl]

£m £m

Trade payables 1040 n7e
Amounis owed to joint ventures 34 11
QOther taxation and social security 52 11
Other payables 94 227
Financtal dernivative iabilittes (note 18) o8 06
Accruals and deferred income 692 66 0
1920 2193

Trade and other payables comprise amounts cutstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs The average credit penod taken for
trade purchases 1s 56 days (2011 55 days} The Directors consider the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates their
fair value

20 Other non-current habilities

2012 2015

£fm £m

QOther payables 09 19
Accruals and deferred iIncome - 03
08 22
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21 Deferred tax

Revaluation Tax lcsses
Proparty Retrement  of property and other
plant and baneh? plant and uming Business Share based
equipment cbligations equipment  differences combunatons payments Total
Em £m £m £m £m Em Em

At 1 June 2010 (12 8) 40 {14 2} 01 (29 3) 34 (48 8)
{Chargel/credit to Income 21 37 - 02) 10 (0] -] (56}
Credit/{charge) o equity - 06 - 02 - 12 16
Acquisition - - - - 22 - {92)
Reclassification - {05) - 05 - - -
Currency translation 15 02 15 01 - - 383
At 31 May 2011 (13 4} 086 {127) a3 (375) 40 {587}
{Chargel/credit to iIncome {13} 28) {01 130 29 {14) 73
Credit/icharge) to equity - 25 - 03 - {14) 14
Currency translation @3 - (0 5} o8l - - (16)
Other - - - 10 - - 10
At 31 May 2012 {15 0) 03 {13 3} 108 (34 6) 12 {50 6}

Centain deferred tax assets and liabilittes have been offset in accordance withiAS 12 Incometaxes The following s the analysis of the
deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax habihties

2012 2011
£Em £m
107 103
{613} (89 O}

(50 6) (58 7}

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits s probable At the balance sheet date the Group recognised £8 1 million in respect of unused tax losses

{2011 £0 4 million) available against future profits None of the recognised losses are expected ta expire Temporary differences
arising 1n connection with interests in associates and joint ventures are not significant

22 Provisions

Restructuring

and warran y

provisians

im

At 1 June 2010 31
Currency retranslation {05)
Income statement 31
Utilised In the year 20
At 31 May 201 37
Currency retranslation {0 6}
Income statement 138
Utiised in the year -
At 31 May 2012 169

Provistons as at 31 May 2012 relate to restructunng costs in connection with the formauen of the Beauty division other restructuring
costs in relation to supply chain cptirisation and warranty costs Warranty costs account for £0 9 million (2011 £0 8 mithon) of the total
and are expected to be utiised over a three year period Restructunng provisions are expected to be utiéssed in the next 12 months
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

23 Retirement benefits

The Group operates retrement benefit schemes for most of its United Kingdom and overseas subsidianes These obligations have
been measured in accordance with 1AS 19 and are as follows

2012 2011
Surplus Deficit Total Surplus Deficit Total
£m fm £m £m Em £m
Expatnate plan 391 - 391 393 - 393
Directors plan - 43) 43) - 83) 8 3)
Main staff plan - {25 9) (256 9) - (28 2) (28 2)
Cther overseas units - 69 {6 9} - (5 4} (54)
391 {371) 20 393 419} (28)
The movements In the year are as follows
Overseas UK
returemeant retirement
benefitsand  benefits and
similar similar
obiigations obligations Total
£m £m £m
At 1 June 2010 {73 (74) (147)
Currency retransiation 03 - 03
Income statement (0 8) 63 55
Reclass:fication to provisions and other creditors 24 24
Contributions pad - 67 67
Utilised In the year 05 - 05
Actuanial movement {06) 28) (33
At31 May 2011 (5 4) 28 {2 6)
Currency retransiation 03 - 03
Income statement {0 8) 10 02
Contrnibutions paid - 153 153
Utilsed in the year 03 - 03
Actuarial movement 13} {102 (11 5)
At 31 May 2012 69) 89 20

Overseas retrement benefits and simifar cbhgations

Included within Cverseas rebrement benefits and simitar obligations are unfunded retirement benefit obligations relating to certain of
the Group s overseas subsidiaries and other employee related provisions for long service and sick leave These obilgations have been
measured in accordance with FAS 19

The most significant overseas scheme as at 31 May 2012 1s the Indonesian post retitement benefit scheme The obligations have been
measured 1n accordance with IAS 19 and a discount rate of 6 75% (2011 8 25%)and salary inflation rate of 8 0% {2011 8 0%} have been
used The scheme 1s unfunded and proviston for future obligations included in the above table 1s £5 5 million {2011 £3 9 rmilhion)

UK retirement benefits and similar obligations

Overview

The following three defined benefit schemes are the Greup s mam schemes which are based and administered in the UK
- Main staff plan - for all ehgible UK based staff excluding PZ Cussons Pic Executive Directors

- Directors plan - for PZ Cussons Plc Executive Directors

- Expatriate plan - for all eligible expatnate staff based outside the UK

On 31 May 2008 the three defined benefit schemes 1n the UK were closed 1o future acerual
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23 Retirement benefits continued

Employees within these schemes are provided with defined benefits based on service and final salary The assets of the schemes are

administered by trustees and are held in trust funds independent of the Group

The Group also operates an unfunded unapproved retirement benefit scheme The cost of the unfunded unapproved retirement
benefit scheme 1s Inciuded m the total pensicn cost on a basis consistent with 1IAS 19 Employee benefits and the assumptions set out
below In accordance with these unfunded arrangements the Group made payments during the year to former Directors of £147 534

{2011 £141 338)

The Iast tnennial actuarial valuatiens of the schemes administered in the UK were performed by independent professional actuaries at

1 June 2009 using the projected unit method of valuation

The Group has finalised the de-nisking exercise that was commenced in the prior year in relation to the enhanced transfer value exercise
for deferred members of the main UK defined benefit pension scheme The excepuonal charge of £0 3 milhion 15 in respect of

professional fees only For the year to 31 May 2012 the total defined benefit pension credit anising from the three schemes amounted to

£1 0 million (2011 credit of £68 3 million}

The major financeal assumptions used by the actuary were as follows

2012

2011

Rate of increase in salarnes

390% 4 35%
Rate of increase in retirement benefits in payment 290% 3 35%
Discount rate 4 60% 5 25%
Inflaton assumption 2 90% 335%
The mortality assumptrons used were as follows
2012 20m
Yaars Years
Weighted average life expectancy on post-retvement martality table used to determine benefit obligations
- Member age 65 {current hfe expectancy) 225 221
-Member age 40 bfe expectancy at age 65} 256 246
The assets i the schemes and the expected rates of return were
2012 20m 2010
£m £m £m
Equitres 6 60% 1200 760% 1210 775% 1145
Bonds 2 85% 998 410% 969 5 90% 413
Property 4 90% 437 5 65% 388 5 90% 725
Cash and other 0 50% 98 0 50% 52 0 50% 81
Totat fair value of scheme assets 2733 261 9 2364
Present value of scheme habiities (264 4) {259 1) {243 8)
Surplus/deficit) in the schemes 89 28 {7 4}
Related deterred tax (habiityYasset 21 {07} 20
Net retirement benefit surplus/{deficit) 68 21 {54}

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumptions the Group considered the level of expected returns on

nisk-free investments the histoncal level of the nsk premium associated with the other asset class in which the portfolio s invested and
the expectations for future returns of each class of asset The expected return for each class of asset was then weighted based on the
actual asset allocation to develop the expected long-term return on assets assumption for the portfolic The actual gain on plan assets

was £16 5 milion (2011 €28 8 mullion)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

23 Retirement benefits continued

The net reurement benefit incomeflexpense) before taxation recognised in the income statement in respect of the defined benefit
schemes 1s summarnised as follows

2012 2011
Em fm
Expected return on scheme assets 141 i4 2
Interest cost {131) {13 4}
Net retirement benefit Income before taxation 10 08
All above amounts are recognised in the Group s iIncome statement before armving at operating profit
The reconciliation of the apening and closing balance sheet pesition 1s as follows
2012 20m
£m £m
Surplus/{deficit) at beginning of year 28 (7 4)
Income recognised in the consolidated incoma statement 10 08
Exceptional income recognised in the consotidated income statement - 55
Conirnbutions paid 153 67
Actuanal loss {10 2) 2 8}
Net surplus at end of year 89 28
Analysed between
Retrernent benefit surplus 391 393
Retirernent benefit obligation {30 2) (36 5}

Actuanal gains and losses are recognised directly in the Consohdated statement of comprehensive income At 31 May 2012 a cumulatve
pre-tax loss of £37 6 mulion {2011 £27 4 millvan} was recorded directly in the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Movements in the fas value of plan assets were as follows

Asssts Assels

2012 2011

Em Em

1 June 2619 2364
Expected return on assets 141 142
Actuartal gains 24 146
Ermployer contribution 153 67
Benefits paid {20 4} {10 0)
31 May 2733 2619

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows
Oblhigations  Obligatans

2012 201
£m Em
1June {2591) {243 8}
Interest cost (131) 13 4
Actuanal losses {12 6) (17 4}
Past service credit - 75
Plan settlements - 20
Benefits paid 204 100
31 May {264 4) {2591}
Plans that are wholly or partly funded {260 3) (254 4)
Plans that are wholly unfunded {41) 47

(264 4) {258 1)
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23 Retirament benefits continued
The history of the plan for the current and prior years 1s as follows

012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Defined benefit obligation 2644 2591 2438 1961 2513
Plan assets 2733 2619 236 4 1918 2249
BenefitAdeficit) 8g 28 (7 4) {43 (26 4}
Experience adjustments on plan assets 24 146 368 {42 Q) (16 9)
Experience adjustmenis on plan liabihties (12 6) 174) {44 0) B15 45
Total actuanal gans and losses recognised in consolidated statement
of changes in equity {10 2) 28 72) 195 {21 4)

During the year ending 31 May 2013 the Group expects to make cash contributions of £6 5 milion (2012 £15 3 rmllion} to funded
defined benefit plans A further £2 8 million {2012 €2 8 mulltlon}is expecied to be contributed to defined contribution plans

The amount recognised as an expense in the consolhdated income statement in relation to defined contribution schermas s £2 8 million
(2011 £3 3 mullion)

24 Share capital

2012 201

Numbar Amount Number Amount

ooo £m 000 £m

Authortsed
Qrdinary Shares of 1p each $70,000 57 570000 57
Total authorised share capntal 570,000 57 570000 57
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary Shares of 1p each 428,725 43 428725 43
Total called up share capital 428,725 43 428725 43

25 Employee Share Option Trust
Included within retained earnings 15 the Employee Share Option Trust (ESOT)

The ESOT purchases shares to fund the Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scheme the Executive Share Option Scheme and the
Performance Share Plan details of which are provided in the Report on Directors Rermnuneration At 31 May 2012 the trust held 334 866
{2011 1334 578) Ordinary Shares with a book value of £1 0 mullion (2011 £3 9 milhion) The market value of these shares as at 31 May
2012 was £11 milhen {2011 £4 9 milhon} During the year the ESOT purchased 854 383 shares of the Cempany at a cost of £2 8 million
{2011 780 650 at a cost of £2 3 milhon} The trust has waved any entitlement to dividends in respect of all the shares 1t holds

26 Reconcihation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations

2012 2041
£Em Em
Profit before tax 48 %5 1081
Adsiment for net finance expensefincome} 1" {0 8)
Operating profit 496 073
Depreciation 225 216
Impairment loss on intangible assets — exceptional a7 -
Impairment loss of tangible fixed assets -~ excepuionat 124 -
{Profit)/loss on sale of tangible fixed assets (05) 01
Pension scheme contributions paid {15 3) {67)
Net pension credit for the year {02) 60}
Share of resulis from joint ventures 02 {04}
Share-based payment (credit)/charges {05) 23
Operaung cash flows before movements in working capital 779 1182
Movements in working capiial
Inventories [18 3) (21 5)
Receivables 122 (36 8)
Payables (26 1) 520
Provisions 18 11
Cash generated from operations 575 130
PZ Cussons Ple
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27 Operating lease commitments
At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future mimmum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases over certamn of its office properties which fall due as follows

012 2011

Em £fm
Within one year 28 45
In the second to fifth years inclusive 91 104
Over five years 75 101

The Group leases a number of premises These are subject 1o review dates ranging from 2012 to 2023

28 Share-based payments

The Group makes share-based paymenis to senior executives under three schemes These are the Performance Share Plan Deferred
Annual Share Bonus Scheme and the Executive Share Option Scheme The total creditin the year relating to the three schemes was
£0 5 mihion (2011 charge £2 3 mithion)

Executive Share Opticn Scheme

The Group operates a share option scheme for senior executives Options are exercisable at a price equal to the average quoted market
price of the Company s shares on the dealng day before the option1s granted Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group
for any reason outstde of the scheme rules Opuons under the scheme are exercisable 1n a penod beginning no earlier than three years
from the date of grant and are subject to performance conditions

Equity settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant The fair value determined at the date of grantis
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting penod based cn the Group's estimate of shares that witl eventually vest

Fair value 1s measured by use of a Black-Scholes model according to the relevant measures of performanee The model includes
adjustments based on management s best estimate for tha effects of exarcise restnictions hehavioural consideranons and expected
dividend payments The option hfe s derived by the modets based on these assurmpuons and other assumptiens identified below The
total expense included within operating profit in respect of the share opuon scheme was mil {2011 ml)

No options have been granted dunng the current or previous year under the Executive Share Option Scheme

The movement in total outstanding options in respect of the Executive Share Option Scheme 1s provided below

Weighted
average
Number of exercise
share prica
apliong £
QOutstanding at i June 2010 2604 470 14
Exercised (868 756) 14
QOutstanding at 31 May 2011 1735714 14
Exercisable at 31 May 2011 1735714 14
Lapsed {26 837) 11
Exercised {234 091) 13
Qutstanding at 31 May 2012 1,474,786 15
Exercisable at 31 May 2012 1,474,786 15
Weigh ed
avefrage
exercise
Pnce/share price
£ £

Range of pnices
31 May 2012 0717 15
31 May 2011 0717 14
Werighred
Number of average
share contrac

cp Ions term {years)

Weighted average contractual remaiming lile

31 May 2012 1,474,786 40
31 May 2011 1735714 50
PZ Cussons Plg
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28 Share-hased payments continued
There were no options outstanding at 31 May 2012 or 31 May 2011 that are cutside of the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based payments

Performance Share Plan

The Group operates a Performance Share Plan {PSP) for mam Board Executive Directors and certain key senior exaecutives The extent to
which such nights vest will depend upaon the Group s performance over the three year penod following the award date The Group s
performance 1s measured by reference to the growth of adjusted earnings per share over the retail price index over a single three year
perigd The fair value of the award 15 taken as the share price at the date of grant

On 21 July 2011 the Group made 1,038 070 awards under the PSP scheme {2011 973 908) The number of shares exercised in the year
was 1 399 482 at a market value of £4 719 665 based on tha market price at the date of exercise |n addition the number of lapsed share
optians totalled 56 572 The number of awards outstanding but not yet exercisabla s 3 029109 at 31 May 2012(2011 3 447 093) The
1otal credit incleded in operating profit in relation to these awards was £0 5 million {2011 expense £2 3milion) The credit relates to the
movernent in the cumulative charge for the awards in1ssue based on expected vestng

29 Acquisitions

2012
Cost of acquisitions
£m
2% of share capital of PZ Cussons Nigena Plc 86
Acquisition of Fudge har-care brand and related inventory 263
349

{i) Acquisition of 2% of share capital of PZ Cussons Nigeria Plc

Throughout the year to 31 May 2012 the Group has acquired additional share capital of its existing subsidiary PZ Cussons Nigena Plc
increasing the Group s stake from 66 8% to 68 8% The consideration for these additional shares was £8 6 milien resulting in the
acquisition of a non-controling interest of £3 1 milion and an amount debited to the consolidated statement of changes in equity of
£5 5 mithon

i) Acquusition of Fudge hair-care brand and related inventory

The Fudge brand intellectual property inventory and certain other business assets were acguired from Sabre Corporation {Aus) Pty Lid
and Sabre Europe {UK) Lid in an asset deal which completed on 24 January 2012 No legal entities were acquired The consideration
paid at completion was £26 Q million and was settled in cash A further £0 3 million was paid after completion No further consideration
15 due and there are no clauses for contingent consideration at a future date Fudge brand sales have contributed revenue of £6 O milkon
ang operating profit of £3 0 million 1o the Group s result in the four months since acquisition Details of the acquisition are as follows

{a) Purchase consideration and provisional fair value of net assets acquired

Em
Total purchase consideration 263
The prowisional assets and habilities recognised as a result of the acquisition are as follows

Provislonal

falr value

£m

Intangible assets 246
Inventories 21
Other creditors {0 4}
Net rdentifiable assets acquired 263
Goodwill -
Consideration paid 263

b) Acquisition refated costs
Acquisition related costs of £1 1 million are included in the income statement and are treated as excepuonal

{int) Prior year acquisition of St fropez Holdings Ltd
No fair value adjustments have been made in the current year in relation to the prior year acquisition of St Tropez Holdings L.1d The fair
values of assets and liabilites acquired, which were disclosed as provisional in the prior year inancial statements are now final

PZ Cussans Plc
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

30 Related party transactions

Milk Ventures (UK) Limited and Nutricima Ltd

The following related party transactions were entered into by subsidiary companies dunng the year under the terms of a joint venture
agreement with Glanbia Plc

At 31 May 2012 the outstanding long-term loan balance receivable from Milk Ventures (UK) Ltd was £23 7 million {2011 £23 7 milhon)
The Group receved interest from Milk Ventures (UK) Ltd of £0 1 milhon (2011 £0 1 million}

The Group sourced and then sold fixed assets power and raw materials to Nutneima Ltd to the value of £41 2 million

{2011 £52 1 mulhion) In addition the Group received distnbution fee income of £5 0 million (2011 £4 3 mullign) from Nutnicima Ltd
A1 31 May 2012 the amount outstanding from Nutncrma Ltd was £4 4 milion (2011 £7 7 milion) The amount outstanding from
the Group at 31 May 2012 was ml (2011 £1 1 million)

During the year the Group advanced a short-term depaosit 1o Nutrioma Ltd  Thes i1s repayable on demand and interest 1s charged at
market rates As at 31 May 2012 the outstanding balance was £6 7 milien (2011 £10 3 million)

Alltrading balances will be settled in cash

There were no provisions for doubtful related party receivables at 31 May 2012 (2011 nil} and no charges to the income statement in
respect of doubtful related party recesvables (2011 rul}

PZ Wilmar Ltd

The following related party transactions were entered into by subsidiary comparnes during the year under the terms of ajoint venture
agreement with Singapore based Wilmar International Ltd

At 31 May 2012 the outstanding long-term loan balance receivable from PZ Wilmar Ltd was £18 @ mulion {2011 £1 2 mulhion)

The Group sourced and then sold certain raw matenals to PZ Wilmar Ltd to the value of £0 4 milion {2011 £2 6 mullion } At 31 May 2012
the amount outstanding from PZ Wilmar Ltd was £0 5 miulion {2011 £0 1 miltion) The amount outstanding from the Group at 31 May
2012 was £3 3 milhon (2011 nil}

All trading balances will be settled in cash

There were no provisions for doubtful related party recewvahles a1 31 May 2012 (2011 nil} and no charges to the tncome statement in
respect of doubtiul related party receivables {2011 nil)

PZ Cussons Pic
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31 Subsidianes, joint ventures and non-current asset investments
Detalls of the Company s principal subsidiaries at 31 May 2012 are as follows

Parant  Properuon of

Incorporated  Cornpany s voung
Company Operauon n interest mnierest
PZ Cussons Austrahia Pty Ltd Manufactunng Australia 1100% 1100%
PZ Cussons Middle East and South Asia FZE Distnbution Duban 1100% 1100%
Seven Scent Ltd Manufacturing England 1100% 1100%
PZ Cussons (Holdings) Ltd Holding Company England *100% *100%
PZ Cussons {International) Ltd Provision of services to Group companies England *100% *100%
PZ Cussons (UK} Ltd Manufactunng England t100% 1100%
PZ Cussons Ghana Ltd Manufactunng Ghana 190% 190%
Minerva SA Manufacturing Greece *100% *100%
PT PZ Cussens Indonesia Manufactunng Indonesia 1100% 1100%
PZ Cussons East Africa Ltd Manufactuning Kenya 1100% 1100%
HPZ Ltd? Manufactunng Nigena 152% t52%
PZ Cussons Nigena Plc Manufactunng Nigena 169% 169%
Harefield Industnal Nigena Ltd Distaibution Nigera 1100% t100%
PZ Power Company Ltd Power generation Nigera 169% 169%
PZ Tower Lid Manufactunng Nigena 165% 169%
PZ Cussons Polska SA Manufactuning Poland t99% 199%
PZ Cussons (Thalland) Ltd Manufactunng Thaland 1100% 1100%

During the year PZ Cussons Beauty LLP was formed of which PZ Cussons (Holdings) Ltd has a 100% interest as the Corporate member
PZ Cussons Beauty LLP brings together the Charles Worthington Sanctuary and St Tropez businesses and as such its principal
operations are the marketing and distnibution of beauty products PZ Cussons Beauty LLP has a 100% interest in St Tropez Inc

a US beauty product distribution company

Parent

Incorporated Company s

Joint venture companies Oparatlon in nterest
Milk Ventures (UK) Ltd Holding Company England 150%
Nutricima Lid Manufactunng Nigena 150%
PZ Wilmar Food Ltd Manufactuning Nigena 151%
PZ Wilmar Ltd Manufactuning Nigena 149%
Parent

Incorporated  Company s

Qtherinvestments QOperation n Interast
MNorpalm Ghana Ltd Manufacturing Ghana 131%

' HPZ Ltd s 74 99% owned by PZ Cussons Nigeria Plc and 1s therefore consolidated

Shares held by the Parent Company
i Shares held by a subsidiary
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Five year financial record

2012 201 2010 2009 2008
Yearto 31 May £m fm tm Em £m
Gperaung profit before exceptional items 934 1081 1014 06 764
Net finance {(expensel/income 11 08 04 {18} 01
Profit before taxation and exceptional items 923 108 8 1018 888 765
Exceptional items {43 8) {08} - (44) -
Profit hefore taxation 485 1081 1018 844 765
Taxation {10 5) (282} (291} (24 0) (212)
Profit for the year 380 799 727 604 553
Attribuiable to
Equity holders of the parent 344 704 637 496 470
Non-controling interests 36 95 90 108 83
Net assets attnbutable to equity owners of the Company 458 3 4740 4548 3899 3487
Nets {debt)/funds 17 9) 518 865 232 {320)
Per Ordinary Share
Basic earnings 8 03p 16 48p 14 89p 11 64p 1104p
Adjusted basic earnings 14 74p 16 20p 14 89p 12 39p 1078p
Dwvidend (intenm and final declared post year-end) 6MNM7p B61p 5890p 527p 470p
Times cover — after exceptional items 12 25 25 22 23
Times cover - before exceptional items 22 25 25 24 23
Net assets 106 90p 11056p 106 08p 80 94p 8133p
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
PZ Cussons Plc

We have audited the Parent Company financtal statements of PZ Cussons Plc for the year ended 31 May 2012 which compnse the
Company Balance Sheet and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been apphed in therr preparation s
applicabte law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Pracuce}

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors respeonsibilities set out on page 49 the Directors are responsibla for the
preparation of the Parent Company financial staterments and for being sauisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility 1S
to audit and express an opimon on the Parent Company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards reguire us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s Ethical Standards
for Auditors

This report including the opimons has been prepared for and only for the Company s members as a body in accerdance with Chapier 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not 1in giving these opinions accept or assume responsibility for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaiming evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Parent Company s circumstances and have been consistently
apphed and adequately disclosed the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors and the overall
presentation of the financial statements tn addition we read all the financial and non-hnancial iInformation in the Annual Report and
Accounts to identify matenal nconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal
misstatements or inconsistencles we consider the imphcations for our report

Opinion on financial statements

In our optnion the Parent Company financial statements

- give atrue and far view of the state of the Company s atfatrs as at 31 May 2012

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountng Practice and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirernents of the Cormpanies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

- the part of the Report on Directors remuneration 16 be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
2006 and

- thenformation given In the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the Parent Company financial statements are
prepared s consistent with the Parent Company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you If in our

opinmon

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us or

- the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Report on Directers remuneration to be audited are notin agreement
with the accountng records and returns or

- certain disclosures of Directors remuneration specified by law are not made or

- wae have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of PZ Cussons Plc for the year ended 31 May 2012

Nicholas Boden (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Manchester

24 July 2012
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Company balance sheet
At 31 May 2012

2012

2m

Notes £m £m
Fined assets
Investments
Subsidiary companies 4 1234 1234
1234 1234
Current assets
Debtors falling due within one year 5 1312 1086 2
Investments 3] 03 03
1315 1065
Creditors - amounts {alting due within one year 7 {218 8} {178 7}
Net current habilities {87 3) (72 2)
Total assets less current liabilities 361 512
Creditors — amounts faling due after one year 7 62 212)
Net assets 299 300
Capital and reserves
Equity ordinary share capital 8 43 43
Capital redempution reserve 9 07 07
Profit and loss account 9 249 250
Total shareholders’ funds 299 300

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

RHarvey G A Kanellis
24 July 2012

PZ Cussons PLC J/f f v

Registered number 19457

/04!
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied under UK GAAP are detalled below They have all been applied consistently throughout the
year and the preceding year

Basis of preparation

The accounts have been preparad in accordance with the Companies Act 2008 and United Kingdom Generally Accepied Accounting
Practice (UK GAAP} under the histonical cost convention As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 an entity profitand
loss account s notincluded as part of the published consolidated financial statements of PZ Cussons Plc The proiit for the financial
year dealt wath in the accounts of the Parent Company i1s £31 7 million {2011 £21 6 million)

No cash flow staternent has been included as the cash flows of the Company are included in the consolidated financial staternents of
PZ Cussons Plc which are publicly avallable The consolidated financial statements of PZ Cussons Plc have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reperting Standards

Amounis paid to the Company s auditers in respect of the statutory audi were £6 000 (2011 £6 000)

Faoreign currencies
Assets and habilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the date of the Company balance sheet Exchange gains or losses are
recognised in the profit and loss account

Taxation and deferred taxation
Current tax including UK corporatton tax s provided at amounts expected to be paid or recovered using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation 1s provided in full on timing differences that resultin an obhigation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax or anght
to pay less tax at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they crystallise based on current tax rates and law Timing differences
arise from the incluston of items of income and expenditure in taxation computations in penods different from thase in which they are
included in finanoal statements Deferred tax s not provided on tming ditferences anising from the revaluation of fixed assets where
there s no inding contract to dispose of these assets nor on unremitted earmngs where there 1s ne binding commutrment to remit
these earnings Deferred tax assets are recognised 1o the extent that it 1s regarded as more likely than not that they will be recovered
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are notcapitalised they are recogmised in profit or loss in the penod in which they are incurred

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial labilities are recognised on the Company s balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Instrument

Borrowings

Interest-beanng bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds recewed net of direct 1ssue cests Finance charges inciuding
prermums payable on setilement or redempuion and directissue costs are accounted for on an accruals basis through the profit and
loss account using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent they are not
settled in the penod in which they anse The Company has not entered into any transactions involving dernvative mstruments

Financial lrabilties and equity
Financiat labilities and equity instrumenis are classified according to the substance of the coniracteal arrangements entered into
An eguily snstrument Is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducung all of its labilities

Current asset nvestments

Investments (other thaninterests in joint ventures) are recognised and derecognised on a trade date when a purchase or sale of an
investrment 1s under a contract whose terms require delivery of the iInvestment within the umeframe established by the market
concerned and are iniyially measured at cost including transaction costs

Own shares held by ESOT
Transactions of the Company-sponsored ESOT are wreated as being those of the Company and are therelore reflected in the Company s
financial staterments In particular the trust’s purchases and sales of shares in the Company are debited and credited directly to equity

Dvidend distnibution
Dradend distnbution to the Company s shareholders 1s recogrised as a hability in the Company s hinancial statements in the penodin
which the dividends are approved by the Company s shareholders In respect of intenm dividends these are recognised once paid

PZ Cussons Ple
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Notes to the Company financial statements
continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Investments in subsidiaries

Invesiments i subsidianies are held at cost, less any prowision for imparment Where equity settled share-based payments are granted
10 the employees of subsidiary companies the fair value of the award\is treated as a capital contiibuuon by the Company and the
investment in subsidiaries are adjiusted 1o reflect this capital contnbution

Cnitical accounting policies and estimation uncertainties
None of the above accounting policies are considered to be critical 1¢ the financial statements of the Company There are no significant
areas of estimation uncertainty

New accounting pelicies
The Company has not adopted any new United Kingdom Financial Reporting Standards in the year and there are none in 1ssue but not
yet effective that are expected to have an impact on the Company

2 Directors emoluments

2012 201

Em £m
Aggregate amount of Directors emaoluments 28 43
Emoluments of the highest paid Director 06 07

For the year ended 31 May 2012 the highest paid Director received Company pension contributions of £85 000 (2011 €80 000}

3 Dividends
2012 20M
Em £m
Amounts recognised as distributions to Ordinary Shareholders in the year compnse
Final drvidend for the year ended 31 May 2011 of 4 487p (2010 3 970p} per Ordinary Share 192 170
Interirn dividend for the year ended 31 May 2012 of 2 23p {2017 2 123p} per Orchinary Share 96 90
288 280
Proposed final dwvtdend for the year ended 31 May 2012 of 4 487p {2011 4 487p) per Ordinary Share 192 192

The proposed final dividends for the years ended 31 May 2011 and 31 May 2012 were subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual
General Meeung and hence have not been included as habihties in the financial statements at 31 May 2011 and 31 May 2012 respectively

At131 May 2012 the Employee Share Option Trust held 334 856 Ordinary Shares (2011 1334 578 Ordinary Shares) The trust wawved
any entitlement to the dwvidends on these shares

4 Investments in subsidianes

Shares Loans To.al

£m £m Em

Costat 1June 2011 and 31 May 2012 1250 30 1280
Provisions at 1 June 2011 and 31 May 2012 {4 6) - {4 6)
Net book value at 31 May 2012 1204 30 1234
Met book value at 1 June 2011 1204 30 1234

Details of the Company s direct subsidiaries at 31 May 2012 are as follows
Paren Proporuon ot

Incorporated  Company s voung
Subsidiary companies QOperaton n interest Interest
Charles Worthington Hair & Beauty Ltd Holding Company Engfand 100% 100%
PZ Cussons {Heldings) Lid Hotding Company England 100% 100%
PZ Cussons {International} Lid Provision of services to Group companies England 100% 100%
Minerva SA Manufactunng Greece 100% 100%

PZ Cussons Ple
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5 Debtors

2012 201

Em £m

Amounts owed by Group companies 1307 1042
United Kingdom corporation taxation recoverable - 14
Overseas taxation recoverable - 01
Deferred taxation 05 05
1312 106 2

£19 7 mullion {2011 £34 7 mullion) of amounts owed by Group companies are interest beanng and are based on market rates of interest
£111 0 mullion (2011 €69 5 million) of amounts owed by Group companies are non-interest beanng All of the balances are unsecured
have no fixed date of repayment and are repayable on demand

6 Current assetinvestments

2012 200
Em £m
Unlisted 03 03
7 Creditors
2012 201
£m £m
Due within one year
Bank loan 894 620
Amounts owed to Group companies 1237 1139
United Kingdom corporation taxation payable 56 45
Overseas corporation taxauon payable - 01
Accruals and deferred ncome 01 02
2188 1787
2012 201
£m Em
Due after one year
Bank loan - 150
Amounts owed to Group companies 62 62
62 212

Amounts owed to Group cempanies are unsecured non-interest beanng have no fixed date of repayment and are repayable on demand

At 31 May 2012 the Company had undrawn overdraft facilittes of £10 0 rrulion (2011 £30 0 million) avallable to it and commuitted
factities of £45 0 mullion (2011 £61 O mithon)

Financial instruments and risk management
The Company 1s exposed to financial nsks ansing from changes ininterest rates Other financial nisks are not considered significant

Financial instruments uulised by the Company dunng the years ended 31 May 2012 and 31 May 2011 together with information
regarding the metheds and assumptions used 1o calculate fair values can be summansed as follows

Current asset investments
In accordance with FRS 25 Financial instruments recogniton and measurement  unhsted mvestments are held in the Company s
balance sheet at cost because their fair value cannot be measured reliably due to the lack of quoted market prices

Current assets and habilities
Financial instruments included within current assets and habilities (exciuding cash and borrowings} are generally short-term in nature
and accordingly therr fair values approximate to their book values

Borrowings
The carrying values of cash and short-term borrowings and current asset Investments approximate to thair fair values because of the
shori-term maturity of these instruments

The financial nstruments held by the Company do not either indmdually or as a class create a potentally significant exposure to
market credit quidity or cash flow interest rate risk
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Notes to the Company financial statements
continued

8 Share capital

2012 201
Number Amount Number Amount
000 Em o000 £m
Authorised
Ordinary Shares
QOrdinary Shares of 1p each 570,000 57 570000 57
Total authorised share caprtal 570,000 57 570000 57
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary Shares
Qrdinary Shares of 1p each 428,725 43 428725 43
Total called up share capital 428,725 43 428728 43
9 Reserves and movements in shareholders’ funds
Capnal
Calledup  redempuon Protitand
share capital resarve  loss aceount Total
£m fm £m £m
At 1June 2011 43 07 250 300
Profit for the financial year - - 317 N7
Acquisttion of shares for ESOT - - {28) 28}
Share-based payments - - 02 02
Dividends paid - - (28 8) {28 8}
At 31 May 2012 43 07 249 299

10 Employee Share Option Trust
Included within retained earnings is the Employee Share Option Trust (ESOT)

The ESOT purchases shares to fund the Deferred Annual Share Bonus Scheme the Executive Share Option Scheme and the

Performance Share Plan details of which are provided in the Report on Directors Rermnuneration At 31 May 2012 the trust held 334 856
{2011 1334 578) Ordinary Shares with a book value of £1 2 million (2011 €3 9 milhon) The markel value of these shares as at 31 May
2012was £11 milhon (2011 £4 8 milion} During the vear the ESOT purchased 854 383 shares of the Company at a cost of £2 8 milhion

{2011 780650 at a cost of £2 3million) The trust has waived any enttlement to dividends 1n respect of all the shares it holds

11 Share-based payments

The Company makes share-based payments to semor exacuirves under a Performance Share Plan and untit 31 May 2010 a Deferred
Annual Share Bonus Scheme The total credit in the year relating io the two schemes was £0 3 milion {2011 £1 3 mullion charge}

Performance Share Plan

The Company operates a Perfermance Share Plan (PSP} for marn Board Executive Directors {excluding the Chairman) and certain key
semor executives The extent to which such nghts vest will depend upon the Company s performance over the three year pernod
following the award date The Company s performance s measured by reference to the growth of adjusted earmings per share aver a

single three year penod The fair value of the award 1s taken as the share price at the date of grant

On 21 July 2011 the Group made 1038 070 awards under the PSP scheme (2011 973 908) The number of shares exercised in the year
was 1 399 482 at a market value of £4 719 665 based on the market prnice at the date of exercise In addiiion the number of lapsed share
options totalled 56 572 The number of awards outstanding but not yet exercisable 1s 3 329 109 at 31 May 2012 ({2011 3 447093) The

total credit included in operating profitin relation to these awards was £E0 3 milion (2011 expense £1 3 millien} The credit relates to the

movementin the curmnulatuve charge for the awards in 1ssue based on expected vesting

12 Contingent habilities

The Company 1s a guarantor to a borrowing facility relaiing to leans prowded io certain Group UK entities The amount borrowed under

this agreement at 31 May 2012 was £82 0 milhion (2011 £40 0 mulhion)

In addition the Company s party to cross guarantee arrangements relaung to an overdraft facility for certain Group companies

accounts at Barclays Bank Plc The maximum exposure at 31 May 2012 was £10 0 million (2011 €10 0 milion)
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Further statutory and other information

Health and safety

PZ Cussons aims to maintain a safe workplace at all locations in which 1t operates We continue to ensure that our business actvities
are undertaken in a responstble manner and n accordance with the relevant statutory legislation and that employees at all levels
participate in the development promoticn and mamntenance of a safe and healthy working environment for employees visitors and the
public The Company employs health and safety specialists and where appropnate provides on-site medical facilities for employees

The Cornpany continues to monitor and increase standards of health and safety at work through nsk assessment safety audits formal
incident investigation and training Qurinvestmentn plant and equipment enables us to modernise designs and operate safer and mora
efficient processes

Empioyment and staff development

As an international group and particularly bearing in mind cur operations in devetoping countries we focus resource on the
employment and development of local staff with the intention of assisting both our operations in those countries and the local
community Employees are invelved at all levels of decision-making throughout the Group with effective communication via regular
consultation groups and brefings Training is vital to ensuring continuous improvements in performance and over the past year
employees of all grades have received traiming through a wide range of courses

Tha employment policies of the Group embody the principtes of equal opportunity training and develepment and rewards appropriate
to local markets which are tailored to meet the needs of its bustnesses and the argas in which they operate This includes procedures to
support the Group s policy that disabled persons shall be considered for appropriate employment and subsequent training and career
development The Company continues to share valuable experience and best practice within the Group through employee secondment

Communmity and chanty

We support arange of chantable causes bothin the UK and overseas mainly through a UK based shareholding trust and additional
contributions are made throughn staff time and gifts in kind PZ Cussons continues to provide assistance and donations to stgnificant
global fund-rarsing initratives and recognises 1ts responsibility 10 the communities in which it operates We are committed to
estabhishing and mamtaining strong relationships with community groups particularly in developing markets

Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has signified its willingness to continue in office and a resolution for its appointment will be proposed at
the ferthcomeng Annual General Meeting

Directors’ report of PZ Cussons Pic
For the purposes of section 234 of the Companies Act 2006 the report of the Directors of PZ Cussons Plc for the year ended
31 May 2012 comprises this page and the iInfformaton contained in the Report of the Directors on pages 34 10 36

Registered office
Manchester Business Park
3500 Aviator Way
Manchester

M225TG

Registered number
Company registered number 19457

Registrars

Computershare Investor Services Plg
PO Box 82

The Pavihons

Bridgwater Road

Bristo!l BS99 7NH

Company secretary
SPPlant
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